
 
INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA  
Monday, June 19, 2023 – 7:00 p.m.  

Lakeshore Library – Community Room 
 
 

1. Call to Order   

• Land Acknowledgement Statement 
 

 
2. Approval of Agenda          (copy & motion)  
 

[Motion #2023.  – THAT the agenda of the June 19, 2023 meeting be approved 
as presented.] 

 
3. Declaration of Interest 

None at time of agenda creation 
 
4. Delegations to the Board 

a) Intellectual Freedom and Our Library - Leadership Team 
 
5. Consent Agenda         (motion) 
 

a) Approval of Previous Minutes          (copy) 
Recommendation 
THAT the May 15, 2023 Special Board Meeting Closed Session Minutes and the 
May 15, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes be approved as presented.  

 
b) Correspondence           (copy) 

Recommendation 
THAT Correspondence Items 5b.01.01 to 5b.07.01 for June 19, 2023 be 
received. 
 

c) CEO Reports           (copy) 
Recommendation 
THAT the CEO Report 5c.01.01 for May 2023 be received. 
 
  

Consent Recommendation 
[Motion #2023. – THAT the consent agenda items 5 a) to 5 c), and the 
recommendations contained therein be approved as presented.] 

2a.01.01 



 2 

 
6. Business Arising  
 a)     Donation Reserves  
 

[Motion #2023.   THAT the Board delegates the CEO to approve purchases 
from the Donation Reserve up to a limit of $10,000 and will report on these 
expenses in the following monthly CEO Report.  Expenses greater than 
$10,000 will require Board approval.] 

  
7. Reports  

a)       Municipal Council Report                 (copy & information sharing) 
 
b) Library Board Report        (information sharing) 

 
c) Board Committee Reports           
 

• Fundraising Committee            (information sharing & motion) 
 
 
d) Health & Safety Update                           (copy & motion) 

 
[Motion #2023.   THAT the minutes of the JHSC May 18, 2023 meeting be 
received.] 

 
 

e) Trends Report 
 

[Motion #2023.   THAT the Staff Report –LIB-06-2023 Library Trends be 
received as presented.] 
 
 

8.  Policy   
a) ACCESSIBILITY – Integrated Access Standards Policy #A-2023-14 

(copy & motion) 
[Motion #2023. THAT the ACCESSIBILITY – Integrated Access Standards 
Policy #A-2023-14  be approved as presented.] 
 
b) EMPLOYMENT – Social Media Policy #E-2023-15 

(copy & motion) 
[Motion #2023. THAT the EMPLOYMENT – Social Media Policy #E-2023-15  be 
approved as presented.] 

 
c) EMPLOYMENT – Hours of Work and Overtime Policy #E-2023-16 

(copy & motion) 
[Motion #2023. THAT the EMPLOYMENT – Hours of Work and Overtime Policy 
#E-2023-16  be approved as presented.] 



 3 

 

 
d) EMPLOYMENT – Working Alone Policy #E-2023-17 

(copy & motion) 
[Motion #2023. THAT the EMPLOYMENT – Working Alone Policy #E-2023-17  
be approved as presented.] 
 
 

9. Strategic Issues 
None at time of agenda creation 
           

10.  New Business 
 None at time of agenda creation 
    

  

11. Comments and Announcements 
 a)   Calendar of Events                (link) 

https://innisfil.bibliocommons.com/events/search/index 

  

12. In Camera 
 No in camera at time of agenda creation 
  
13. Adjournment  
 

[Motion #2023. – THAT the meeting be adjourned] 
 
 

https://innisfil.bibliocommons.com/events/search/index


 4 

 
CORRESPONDENCE LIST for June 19, 2023 

 

5b.01.01 
CBC.ca, May 24, 2023, article entitled Libraries are Being Accused 
of Offering Child Porn. Librarians Explain why That’s Not True, 
written by Nick Logan 

 
(copy) 

5b.02.01 
CBC.ca, May 23, 2023, article entitled  Brandon School Division 
Rejects Call to Remove Library Books on Sexuality, Gender 
Identity, written by Cameron MacLean 

 
(copy) 

5b.03.01 
The Uniter, March 23, 2023, article entitled City Support For 
Libraries Is Overdue, written by Matthew Frank 

 
(copy) 

5b.04.01 
The Walrus, June 12, 2023, article entitled Have You Been To The 
Library Lately?,  written by Nicholas Hune-Brown 

 
(copy) 

5b.05.01 
The Ottawa Citizen, June 12, 2023, article entitled By The Book: 
Ottawa Public Library Take A Stand on Intellectual Rights, Book 
Bans and Cancel Culture, written by Joanne Laucius 

 
(copy) 

5b.06.01 
Bradford Today, June 10, 2023, article entitled Despite Protesters, 
Drag Queen Storytime Offers ‘A Way to Connect’, written by 
Michael Owen 

 
(copy) 

5b.07.01 
Ilovelibraries, June 13, 2023, article entitled Illinois Bans Book 
Bans, written by Phil Morehart 

 
(copy) 

 



1 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for May 15, 2023 
 

INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD  
MEETING MINUTES  

Monday, May 15, 2023 – 8:00 p.m.  
Lakeshore Library – Community Room 

 
 

In Attendance: Rob Nicol, Councillor Jennifer Richardson, Councillor Robert 
Saunders, Barb Baguley, Sue Bennett, Rhonda Flanagan, 
Cynthia Gordon, Raj Grover 

Staff in Attendance: Erin Scuccimarri, Jennifer Miyasaki 
 
Regrets: Anne Smith 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

• The meeting was called to order at 8:21 p.m. 

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Motion #2023.40 
 Moved by:  Raj Grover  
 Seconded by: Cynthia Gordon  
 

THAT the agenda of the May 15, 2023, meeting be approved as presented. 
CARRIED. 

 
3. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

There were no disclosures of interest. 
 

4. DELEGATIONS TO THE BOARD 
No delegations 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Motion #2023.41 
 Moved by:   Rob Saunders 
 Seconded by: Cynthia Gordon 
 
 THAT the consent agenda items 5 a) to 5 c), and the recommendations 

contained therein be approved as presented. 
CARRIED. 

  

 5a.01.02 



2 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for May 15, 2023 
 

 
6. BUSINESS ARISING 

a) Truth & Reconciliation Committee 

• Membership 
o The CEO advised that at least 2 members are still required to strike 

this Committee; it was suggested that a former Board member be 
permitted to join the committee; the Board agreed. 

 
Motion #2023.42 

Moved by:  Rhonda Flanagan   
Seconded by: Raj Grover 

 
 THAT the Library Board request that Wendy Van Straten, a former Board 

Member and Truth & Reconciliation Committee Member be appointed to the 
Truth & Reconciliation Committee. 

CARRIED. 
 

b) CEO Evaluation Committee 

• Recruitment 

• Chair is Ex-Officio 

• Barb Baguley and Raj Grover volunteered for the Committee; CEO 
Evaluation Committee has been established. 

 
 
7. REPORTS 

a) Municipal Council Report  

• A report was shared with the package 

• No additions in the meeting  
 

b) Library Board Report 

• Members did a roundtable; items shared included: 
o Pitch-In Day was well attended 
o Lions club is hosting several events for youth and adults including 

Bingo, darts, and an open mic night 
o A fundraiser was held at Nantyr Shores to assist in funding the band’s 

trip for a competition 
o Little Free Library at the IRC is in place 
o Chair Smith has been accepted as a trustee on the FOPL Board 
o Annual Report to Council was well received 

 
c) Board Committee Reports 

• Finance Committee 
o The Committee met on May 3, 2023 to review the Q1 2023 Operating 

and Capital Results 
o A summary report and financial reports were shared in the package; 

an error with a date on the report was noted and will be corrected. 



3 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for May 15, 2023 
 

 
 
 

Motion #2023.43 
Moved by:  Jennifer Richardson   
Seconded by:  Raj Grover 

      
THAT the Finance Committee Report LIB-03-2023 regarding the 2023 Q1 
Operating and Capital results, dated May 15, 2023 be received (subject to a 
correction). 
 

         CARRIED. 
 

d) Health & Safety Update 
 

Motion #2023.44 
Moved by:  Sue Bennett   
Seconded by:  Barb Baguley 
      
THAT the minutes of the JHSC April 20, 2023 meeting be received. 

          CARRIED. 
 

e) Q1 2023 Collections Report LIB-04-2023    
 

Motion #2023.45 
Moved by:  Raj Grover   
Seconded by:  Cynthia Gordon 
 

 THAT the Q1 2023 Collections Report LIB-04-2023 be received. 

CARRIED. 
 

f) Economic & Social Value of the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library Report  LIB-05-2023 
        

Motion #2023.46 
Moved by:  Sue Bennett   
Seconded by:  Jennifer Richardson 
 

THAT the Economic & Social Value of the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library Report    

LIB-05-2023 be received. 

CARRIED. 
 

 



4 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for May 15, 2023 
 

8. POLICY  

a) EMPLOYMENT – Mileage Policy #E-2023-11 
 

Motion #2023.47 
Moved by:  Rob Saunders   
Seconded by: Cynthia Gordon 

THAT the EMPLOYMENT – Mileage Policy #E-2023-11 be approved as 

presented. 

CARRIED. 

b) OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation (CASL) 
Policy #2023-12 

 

Motion #2023.48 
Moved by:  Rhonda Flanagan  
Seconded by: Barb Baguley 

THAT the OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation 
(CASL) Policy #2023-12 be approved as presented. 

CARRIED. 

c) OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Rules of Conduct Policy #2023-13 
 

Motion #2023.49 
Moved by:  Jennifer Richardson 
Seconded by:  Sue Bennett 

THAT the OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Rules of Conduct Policy #2023-13 

be approved as presented. 

CARRIED. 

9. STRATEGIC ISSUES 
 There were no Strategic Issues to discuss this month. 

 
 
10.  NEW BUSINESS 

No new business 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for May 15, 2023 
 

 
11. COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCMENTS 

a) Calendar of Events 
o Link to Library offerings was provided in the agenda. 
o Annual Presentation to Council occurred on May 10, 2023 
o Board Members are planning to attend upcoming Neighbourhood 

Nights 
 
 

12. IN CAMERA  
 No In Camera 

  
 

13.   ADJOURNMENT 
Motion #2023.50 

  Moved by:  Barb Baguley 
  

THAT the meeting be adjourned at  8:57p.m. 
CARRIED. 

 
 

  



6 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for May 15, 2023 
 

 
DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 

 
The next Library Board meeting will be held on 

Monday, June 19, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 
Innisfil Public Library & ideaLAB – Lakeshore Branch – Community Room 

 
 
 
 

_______________________________  ________________________________ 
Anne Smith, Board Chair    Erin Scuccimarri, Secretary 



����������	��
��	�
��
���	����
�������
�������������������	��	�
���	��������	����������
�� !�"#$�%&�'& ()*�"+�,$�+-$�%$,"& )�.++/*0�1 .,&, &)*�$2'1& )�#+3�"#$4�%#++*$�"#$ ,%+11$%" +)*5 %/�6+(&)�7�898�5$3*�7�:+*"$!;�<&4�=>0�=?=@�>;??��<�ABC�D�6&*"�E'!&"$!;�F�#+G,*�&(+

H"I*�:$,J$%"14�5+,�&10�6$"I*�C&1/��.+G"�H"�&)!��11�9+4*��,$)I"�91G$0�' %"G,$!�&"�"#$�K&)%+G-$,�:G.1 %�6 .,&,4� )K&)%+G-$,�+)�<&4�LM0�&,$�"#,$$�+J�"#$�.++/*�"#&"�*+�$�'$+'1$�#&-$�!$�&)!$!�.$�,$�+-$!�J,+��*%#++1�+,

NO�PQR NST��U�5b.01.01



�����������	��
����
���
�������������������������
���	�������	�������	���	��������
�����������������
����������������	��

 �������������	��������	�	�	!��
���
�	�
��	��	�����������	�
��������	��������������	��
��
��"
���������
����	����	�
��
#�	����
#��������	�
��	��	"	��	��
����������!����
"
������	���������������	����$�
����������%�
������	�
����
����
��	��
��	��������
��	����

���	�����	���	"
�����
���
�	�
������
#�	��
���	�����	������&'�$(�	����
��
����
����������
��$�
�����	��	��� ����	"
��

���	��
�� �����
�
������������	����	���	�����������������
�������	����
���	�����
�� ������������������������	���������
�����
�"
������������
!�	�����	����
�

��������

������"	�
������
����	���
��
����)*
��	�
���
�������	�����	"	��	��
��*
�����������
�	���������������	����!)��	���+	���	����!���
,	����"
��-������&���	��������
��������������	������
���������	�������
�������./0012�32�4135675�89/77:�;<=<2<75�10>09?2�93::�?7�10@7=0�:<A131B�A77C2�75�20DE3:<?BFG05601�<605?<?BH<A131<02�310�<5�?/0�I7:<?<93:�91722/3<12�32�?/0B�JG/?�A39C�3G3<52?�KL8L�A77C�A352$�
�
�����������	"
�����������
�����������	��
������� �������	����"
�
�����������������
M���
����	�
�!� �
�
���
�
��	"
�
"
���

���	 ��
�	��
����������������	��
��	�������	��	���N���������
����������
����������
���O	�����	!�����"���	����	"
��	�
��	�
������������	������������	������	��
����������	"
���
������������	�
��	 	�����
����
��	���������	�
�
��"
���$�
���
��
"
���
�������"���	�
��
������������
�������	�����
�����	�	�	�N��P
���	��!�Q�O-���������� 	��!�����!���"
����	�
��	����������
��	��	��
�	�������	���������������������	��
������	��
���������������	�����R���	����������	������S��	������T���	���
�����	�
���
	�
��%�
��������"
����
��������������	����������
��
����"
�������������������������	��
��������	��

������	���������



����������	�
������������������������������
������
������

����� !"!�#��"$!%���&'#�$%()&!*�+"$#�$"����&%�!#,%-#� %%.��&'"&�$%)&"�)�$%)&#)&�!#�"&#/�&%��#0("��#/($"&�%)")/�12345����(#�6�&'#�&#",�!#�7%)�� �#�+%!� (��/�)8�9")$%(-#!�:( ��$�1� !"!*;��$%��#$&�%)�#07�"�)��'%< %%.��"!#�$'%�#)�")/�<'*�&'#!#��'%(�/� #��%,#&'�)8�+%!�#-#!*%)#=>�����������?�����>4'#!#�"!#�"!%()/�@=A�,����%)� %%.��"&�9")$%(-#!�:( ��$�1� !"!�#�;�B9:1C�D#)&!"��3!")$'6"$$%!/�)8�&%�D"'���6�<'%�"�%)8�<�&'�E))#���D",7 #��6��#"/��&'#�$%��#$&�%)�&#",�+%!�&'"&��%$"&�%)")/�FG�%&'#!��"!%()/�&'#�$�&*=�E&;���,7%��� �#�&%�!#"/�#-#!*���)8�#� %%.6�$%-#!�&%�$%-#!6� #+%!#�7(&&�)8��&�%)�&'#��'#�+=�3(&D"'�������"/",")&�&'"&�H<#�/%);&�$"!!*����#8"��$%)&#)&6�*%(�.)%<6�&'"&����"���)#��)�&'#��")/=HD"'����#07�"�)#/�9:1�'"��"�&#",�<�&'�"!#"��%+�#07#!&��#��)�-"!�%(���( I#$&�6�")/�&'#*�<%!.$�%�#�*�<�&'�7( ���'#!��")/�-#)/%!�6�"��<#���"��!#�*�%)�7( ���'#!�;�)%&#�6��� !"!*�I%(!)"���")/,#/�"�!#7%!&�6�&%�/#&#!,�)#�<'"&� %%.��&'#*��'%(�/��&%$.=�

J�?�����K����	��?�������������
������
��L��?������
�����M������������������N���	?L O�PQ



��������	�
�	���������	��������������	��	�������	�����������������������������������������������	��������������������	������	��������������������������	����������	�����������	�	 ��!����
�	�������������������	��� ��������������	 �� ��"��	�����������	���������������������	���	����	��"��	�������	���
�������	��	 �!��#�����������������	����	�����	���������$"	���
�	��� �������������
���	������	�����������	�
���������������	��������������%������!�#�����������	��������	����������������������	�����	��������	�
�����	�
��	����������	��	�
�	 ���	��	��������������"�������������!�&��
�"�������	���������� ��	����	���	��"�����$'������	"���������������������������	������������	���
�"�����	�������	 ��������	��� ��� ��"������� �����������	����������������������
�"��� �"�����	������"��������	������	��!

(	
��	������������������&��	�����������������������"����	�������	���"�����"���������	�
�����	
�)*!�+,��-����.�,�/



����������	
	����
���
����
	��������������������������������� ��!� ��"������#�� ���������#��� ����$�����������%� ����#�!���$���&����$�'�� ��(���)��*��)���$&� ����������"� ������+,��- ���!���.� ����/���$��������0�����������$����� ���$� ��������������������1� ����2��3� ������4�!����5�� ��� ��������(���$6��2'!���,,��,��� �����2��������77���,������ �� ����#��$&������ ��$�/(/�8�%�6(# � ���������!�������#�#��������������!����)��%� ����� �� ����# ���9#����$�� � �&�!��$���$�� � �������9#����9,��������:���� ��� #���,����!��,��&���������$6;��<���=>�����;��	
	��	�?>�������	�����@
�������A����?�
�>	����
>���	��?�B�C�D�E�D��F�@�	����������������	�
��<��������?��
?����?�	�;GHIJ�@��@���
�<��@
����>�<�	���C��������
C

K������/�7,����&�7���!����"�/����� ����&����,�� #��$�� � ���L����#M���N#�����0����������O���PQ6�R(��8��7�S/(/T



�����������	
����
������
��������	���
��
���
���������
������	���
�������������
����������
���
���	���
�������������������������������
����
����
�����
����������
���		����������
��������������������
	�����	�����������
�������
�
�
�
���
	��
����
�����
		��������	��	
���������	���
��
���
������
����	���
�����
�� ������
		�����������������
��������������������
���
		������
���� �������
����
����	���
��
�� ���	�����������������
������������
�
		 �����
����!�������	������������
���		�������������	���
�������������������
��������������
���������� ������������	
����
�� �����������
��"
��������������
����������
��
�����
���
���������
��
�������#�������	���	���
���� �����
�������	�	���
�����
�������
����������������������������
��
��
�����������
�������
��
��������������������$%&'(�)�*+,-.+�/0�1,234�5+0367.�870/3,97�57..�:,6�1+;<+=�9,,>1�3,�-2..+=�:6,?�14+.@+1A�

B����
�����	
����
		������������CD���������������������	���	���
������E�� ����������	���������������
	F
�����
�
����
		��������
		���C���������������		�������������	����'+637/0�9,,>1�20=+6�15623/0GH
�	�������������� �����	���������������
	�F
�����
��������������
	�������	���������������������������	���
���� �
���������������������
	�I�����
	�#���
���J��I#K��������
�����
�����
��
LM�=7G1�7N,)O733.+�,@+6�1+;<+=�9,,>1�/0�1,234�5+0367.�870/3,97�./9676/+1LAPQ



�����������	
��
������
������
��
�������
������
���
�����
������


���
�
���
������
����
����
����
�����
 ��
���
�����
�����
���������
���
������
��������!
���"�����
#����
$�!
���
����"�
�����
��
%��&
'����������(�
���
�����
�
)����
��
*����
+���
���+������
,����-
���
$�"�
.�������
,�����!
/�������
������&
�������
�(&
%��&
������
���%�����
)�����
��
'����
)�
)�����
���
+������
*��������$�"�
.�������
,�����
��
��������
��
���
01
���
�(&
�����
���
(��������
�
���"�
����
#����
$���������2��
���
����
��
�����
���
�����
�����������
�����
�������
�������������
�
������(���
������
���
��(�������
�
������
����������&���������
������������&
��
����
��
���(����
��
���
���&
(��������&
��������
��������������������&
������
���
������
���������&
�������
���
������
������

#��
����
#���"�
����!
#
+������+�������&
���
(�������
�����
�
�����
��������
���
������������
+�
3������&
���
����
����
�����
���������
���
����
��������
������(�����
�
������#
(���
���
$�4�
.�������
,�����
��
(�������
��
���
5��������
.�����
��������
6���
,����7/�/8



�����������	
��	����	�������	��������	��	����	���	�����	�������	��������	�������	�����	���������	����������	���	����������	���������	����	�������	�����	����������	���	��������	��	��������������	���	�������
	�� ��	!����	"������	���	��	���	������	�� ���	�	����	��	���	�������������	��	�	#����	$%	���	�������	&�������	��������	�������	��	��� ����	#���"�����	���	������	�����	�������	$'(	��	���	��������	����	��	�������	�������	��	���	������������	������	��������	��	�	������	�����	$)	����	����	���	�������	$)*�	�����	��������	��	���������������	���	���	����������	��	������	�����	���	���	��	$+	����	���	��	
�������������	&��������	��	�����	������	��������������,�-
	���	��������	���������	����	����	
�	����������	��������������	��	���	��������������	��	.������	��	��	��������	���������	���������	��	����
/��������	��	���	��������	0���	1�����	��� ���	#���	2���	�������	����	�	������	��	�����	��������	��	��������	��	�����	��������	�����	
�������	������	���	����������	���	���������������������	��	����	��������3�	��� �	��	���	�������
	���	��	��������	�������	���	���	���������	�����	��������	��	������	�����������



��������	�
�����������	������	��������	����	���	����	��	�	�������	���� 	!�������	!������	����	"���#	��	!����#���#!���#	$�������$��	��#��	���	%��&����	%�#�	� 	%���#�'	���#	(��#��	)���!�'	�	!��&����	��"���	��*������+,*��	$��������	#������	"���	��	 �!�	���������',	��	���#+		,-�'	�	�����	����	�� �	��	����&�	� 	����	.��/	����������	��	��	�	�������'	����	������	����	0����#	��	��"����+,	1�	���#	$��$��	��0�	�����	�$������'	���	����	#������	&���	����	�����#	&���	!���#$�������$��	�!!��������	��#	����&$�	��	���	���	%��&����	%�#�	� 	%���#�	��	�	,��!�#���,	����0�	!������	����	$���������	��2�!�	��	��	��&�0�#	 ��&	���������+

�������������	 ��&	���	����	��3�	4�� �!���	5��&��6	%�������	7�#���'	8��"���	�$'	-�9'	8��#��'	��#	-�9���1�����'	��	������	:����	1+	1�����	��#	�����������	;�!����	<&������'	��0�	����	!����!�=�#	 ��	#�$�!�����	� ��9���	#�0���$&���	��#	��9���	�!��0���+	*��	����'	$�������#	��	%��#��"�!�	4����'	��	�0�������	��	&������������	���	���	����	���2�!��#	��	!����	 ��	���	��&�0��+	>:����	1+	1�����	��#	;�!����	<&������?����4�� �!���	5��&��@A�B�	��C��� D	�E	F



���������	
�������������������
������
���
�����������
������

����
������� !"�#$%&'��()&"��* +,�-.$/ &�0&!&/)'"$�&1$2+�,$*�. 1/&/ &'��&/)�/)�($'3 '%�+$�%/$* '%�!&..��+$�1&'1$$"��+,&+��$4)�()$(.)�3$'�+�. ")567#����&4(1)..�)8(.& ')3� +���2(�+$�+,)�(&/)'+�+$�1)�&�(&/+�$9�4&" '%�+,&+�3)! � $'�* +,�+,) /!, .3�:��$4)+, '%�+,&+� ��&!+2&..;��+&+)3�$'�+,)�1&!"�$9�+,)�. 1/&/;�!&/35�<=)�3$'�+�,$')�+.;�"'$*�*,&+���&((/$(/ &+)�9$/�+,&+�!, .3>� '�+,&+�(&+/$'���);)�>�12+�(&/)'+�>&1�$.2+).;>�*)�*&'+� '?$.?)3�* +,�+,) /�!, .3/)'���/)&3 '%5�@+�12 .3��1)++)/�/)&3)/�><��,)��& 35�@9�+,)/)����$4)+, '%�&�(&/)'+�,&��A2)�+ $'��$/�!$'!)/'��&1$2+>��&4(1)..�&'3��&, ..��& 3. 1/&/ &'��&/)�&?& .&1.)�+$�3 �!2���*,;�&�!)/+& '�1$$"�4&;�1)� '�+,)�. 1/&/;5��2+�+,);�,&?)'�+,&3�4&';� ��2)��&+�+, ��($ '+5B9+)'>�()$(.)�C2�+�*&'+�+$�<9)).�,)&/3><��& 3��&4(1)..5������D$2/'&. �+ !�E+&'3&/3��&'3�7/&!+ !)�FG1$2+������)*��$//)!+ $'��&'3�!.&/ H!&+ $'�FE214 +�&�')*��+ (FI)($/+�)//$/

JKLKM�NONPQ��
RN�����S�T�����U��������V��SW���X�Q��
RN�����S��

Y���U��N
��� Z�KL�$$"��3)&. '%�* +,�%)'3)/>��)8�)3>�&'3�#-�[\� ��2)��,&?)�1))'�+,)�+&/%)+�$91&'�� '��$4)�G4)/ !&'�. 1/&/ )�5&'3�+,)/)�&/)�'$*� '�+&'!)��$9� +�,&(()' '%



���������	

�������������	������������
�
����������
���
���������������
� �����!"
��
���
�����#$%&'(&)*+,-./0.),.112034%+)/$4/%'()*1%)(516+37&(2(0+5/1%8+4('1%6+,9(+%:8;8<(=):>1)5(&?6+3@AB@C@ADC?EA>6FGHI9+)5J*&+5(&?K.1$')+01

L%+$&/(%,(4(4M('(4M'+,()>(%%/N1%()B2(O5B=.1)*1-(+0+/%)5M+%%/%0M11-)+5+;'+%&1%P,.112G/Q/)/1%M1+'&1O5'$)5(()4((5/%0+5R/%,(%56+))(3#/0.P,.1121%H$()&+3B6+3@AB@C@AST8.(2)(+U(4*V8;8W

XY�Z[\ X�]�̂�5b.02.01



���������	
�������������������������������������������������������������� !�"#$$%&�$% '($!�)*&)!$�+�'+",$!�#)-#�&"#��.�-/0*+&) 0�+1($%�(#$�2%+*!�*�3"#��.�4)5)&)�*%$6$"($!�+�"+..�(��%$0�5$�7��,&�!$+.)*-�8)(#�&$9 +.)(/�+*!�-$*!$%�)!$*()(/�1%�0�.)7%+%)$&:; *!%$!&��1�'$�'.$�)*�<+*)(�7+=&�&$"�*!>.+%-$&(�")(/�&#�8$!� '�1�%�(#$�0+%+(#�*�&"#��.!)5)&)�*�0$$()*-?�8#)"#�%+*�)*(��(#$�$+%./�0�%*)*-�#� %&:@#$�(% &($$&� .()0+($./�5�($!�A>B�(��%$6$"(�+�'%�'�&+.�(��"%$+($�+�"�00)(($$��1�(% &($$&�+*!'+%$*(&�(��%$5)$8�7��,&�+5+).+7.$�)*�!)5)&)�*�&"#��.&:@#$�&"#��.�!)5)&)�*�8+&�)* *!+($!�8)(#�"+..&?�.$(($%&�+*!�$0+).&�+1($%�+�!$.$-+()�*�+(�)(&�<+/�C0$$()*-?�.$!�7/�1�%0$%�&"#��.�(% &($$�+*!�-%+*!0�(#$%���%%+)*$�;+",$*&"#0)!(?�"+..$!��*�(#$!)5)&)�*�(��&$(� '�+�"�00)(($$�(��%$5)$8�(#$�"�*($*(��1�7��,&�+5+).+7.$�)*�&"#��.�.)7%+%)$&?�+*!%$0�5$�()(.$&�!$$0$!�)*+''%�'%)+($?�)*". !)*-�D+*/�7��,&�(#+(�"+ &$!�� %�,)!&�(��E $&()�*8#$(#$%�(#$/�+%$�)*�(#$�8%�*-�7�!/:D2$1�%$�(#$�5�($?�7�+%!�"#+)%��)*!+�F�&&�&+)!�(#$%$�8$%$�0+*/�D$%%�%&�+*!� *(% (#&D�)*;+",$*&"#0)!(=&�'%$&$*(+()�*:F�&&�&+)!�(#+(�7/�!$*/)*-�(#$�'�&&)7).)(/�(#+(�'$�'.$�"� .!�1$$.�.),$�(#$/�+%$�7�%*�)*�(#$�8%�*-7�!/?�D/� �+%$�!$*/)*-�(#$�%$+.)(/��1��(#$%&:�2$"+ &$�)(�)&�*�(�/� %�$9'$%)$*"$�!�$&�*�(�0$+*(#+(�)(�)&�*�(�(#$�%$+.)(/��1��(#$%&:DG��������H��@ $&!+/=&�7�+%!��1�(% &($$&�0$$()*-�8+&�#$.!�)*�I)*"$*(�<+&&$/�;)-#�3"#��.�)*�(#$&� (#8$&($%*�<+*)(�7+�")(/?�8#$%$�)(�#+!�7$$*�%$.�"+($!�(��+""�00�!+($�(#$�* 07$%��1'$�'.$�$9'$"($!�(��+(($*!:<�%$�(#+*�JK�'$�'.$�L�7 (�*�(�;+",$*&"#0)!(�#$%&$.1�L�%$-)&($%$!�(��&'$+,�+(�(#$0$$()*-�7$1�%$�&"#��.�(% &($$&�5�($!��*�(#$�'%�'�&+.�7%� -#(�1�%8+%!��*�<+/�C:M�.+%-$�* 07$%��1�'$�'.$�)*�(#$�+ !)$*"$�#$.!� '�&)-*&�& ''�%()*-��N2@O�'$�'.$?�8#).$��(#$%&#$.!�&)-*&�!$".+%)*-�(#$)%��*$>8�%!�%$&'�*&$�(��(#$�'%�'�&+.P�D4�*=(:D



�����������	
���
��
��������	���
�����	���
������	����
��	��������������������	����	������	��
����
���	��	������	����
��	�������
������	 	����	����
��	��
��	��!����
��	��������������������
��	��������
��	�!�	��	����������	�����	�����	"�	��	��	��
��
���
���	��	����������
������	��
���		������������������	����
����	��������	������		����
���	������
����������
������	�!#������	�	����	���	���	����������������	����!��	��
����!#��
 	��		���������
����	�������
��#�������
�	�����
�	������������������	���������	��
�������������� ����������	�
��	�#�
���
���	��	��!
$����	����������
��	��	����	��		��������������	������������������	�������
�����
��
�������	 �	��
���	�� 	��������	
��������������	������	"�
�����
����	��	����	�������%&
�	�����
�'	
�(&)&*



��������	
��	����	�����	����	
����������	���
��	���
��	��������	
��
	���
��
	��	������	���	����������	
���	����	
���	����
����	��	�������	��	��������������	����	��
�	
���������	���	��������	���	�����	
�	���	�������	
���	�������	
����	����
������	�������
 ����	���
���	���	����
�!��	��	�	
����������	�����	
���	
��	
���
���	��������	
��	����	�����	����
����������	���
��	"�������	#���$�%�&



����������	�
��������
���������
�������
�����������
��������������������	������
	��������	�������������

	���������������	�����������
��
����
������������������
����������������
����������
�����

	�������
�����������
�
������
���������
�	

���� �����!� 

���
�����"�#�$������������

	���		��
�	
�!��� ���������	����
������
���%&'()*+,-.&�/'001�+(�2&'()+(�3/-++0�456515+(�,+�&.*+6.�7%289�'()�1.:;'0.);/',5+(�<++=12&'()+(�7%289�/+**;(5,>�*.*<.&1�?.'&�.??./,1�+?�@&+@+1.)�1/-++0�<++=1�<'(����A����
���
���	�!������
��������������
���
�B������������C����		�
�����
���������
����������� 

��������
���D

E�����	��B�����������������		������� �������������������������������	�����
����������������������
�����

	�������
���F����������
��
��!�
���������
������������
���������������
�	���		�����������
	��������
�		
�������
������
�����G�����
���� 
��������������
������C�����������!�������
	���������������

B��������
���
�	���������������������!��������!������������H�������I������B�!�����

	���������
��I����JK��	����L���MK�KN



���������	�
����������
��������������������������
�����������
	����������������
��������������������������������������������	�����������������

�������	��������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���
	����
��������������������������������������������!�	�"�����������������������#��������������������������������������
����������
���������������������������������$�������������������������������������������������
���������������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�������������	��������������������%��&��������'������������������������
�����
��������	����������	������������� ��������������������(����������
��������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������)������������!�	�"������������������������)������)���������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������
��������*+�������,���-+�+.



���������������������	��
�����	
���������	���������������������������������������������������������
�����������������
������	�
������������������� !"�#���������	������	
����������$�����%�$�&��������	�
�	
������'�	
��(�))��$�(�))�(�

	
�����
*���	�
����
���
��������������
��+�,��-��.���$�/�������$�0��	��1��1���	����
�	���������������.����	����
�23��
������������	
���	���������$��
����4�*���.�
��
������5�	��$�������	�	�	�
��������	�������������6&7����	����
����������	
������
�������������������8.���������	4�������������������������	�������������9�����������
�����������.��:��
��$���
���������������	
���.�������	�
��������������	
����������
��������������������������

���������������	
��������	�
������������
�-�����,��-���$��.�;�
����9������%�4	��'��
	����������	��������������������������������������������
�����������$���<��$�������������	�$���������=������
�����	�
����������������������������������������������������.����������	����	����.��������������������	�
��	������������	�
�����������<�����
������	�����������	�
�������$����
�
����.���������������������������	������������,>�
,�,���	
�����
�	����
�����������������.���	������,>��,�?;�������@���A;';B



���������	�
�����	������������
�������������	���������
	����������
��������������������������������������������	������������������������������
��	��������������
�������������������
�����
����
��
������������������
�������������	�������
���
�����������������	���	������������������� ����������������!�
���������������
�����������
�������"#�$%&�%'�(%)*%+*�$%&�,+%-�.(�(/'&001.+02�3*'*4(�-3*'*�/%�0*/�3*156781,�9&.:.;*�<8+8;8=�>?@AA?BCD?BCDD�E�����F�G�BCDBC�E��H���������B������
�����������I�F�J��	�K����L����=�>?@MM?DD@?D@D@�E�����F!��������
������	����������/3*�-*N(./*�O
�
��
��P		���
�����������������L���������=�Q.+;�8�RST3%&'�:'.(.(�:*+/'*U��
�	�V�������=�@WW?AAM?DADD�E�����!�C�����?>�
����I�F�P������	������������������
��������
�	�������!�����	�������������������������!�	������!�
�����	�����	����	����������������O����������P���������
���X���
��K�
�����������	���������
�Y�
����	�����������	���������� �����������
����O�O 	�Z����
��	������
��
��	�
���L�
�����	GP����O�O�[��	O���������	�
�����
��\�
����	G������
����	����G]�����������
R̂_R̀�<a<bc8;.%T<8+8;8U�d11�'.03/(�'*(*'e*;Uf.(./*g�c8;.%T<8+8;8U:8



���������	
��� ����������������������������������������� !"��#�$%&&��"�'!(��)����$*�)��"�%�)#+%,�"��+#�&�'-%-�!# ./0�123�4/567/00/38!+�+(!����+!-9#�+: �#+:-�!#����;:*-��':<�!=!-;�>!!?@�ABCD�B��������8E���F1F27G3�6013H/6
�(!�I�&&!���*J���'-%-;K������ !"9#�L%"#(� �)>(�&!�&�'-%-;�$*�)��"�%+�&%-"!��#�L:*�)!-��"@

M%�N:<9#�$!J���#+���+!-=!�+�:�#���+:%�%)�%��#:N�%&�#+�:-"%��O��"�(!�%N%)!J;�>�&&��:+�'!�%*+:J%+!)P�:&�N!�-!%&&;�):�:�!�+(��"9�(!��-'%���##*!Q��:� :&�N!�:-��:+�+: :&�N!R�!N*-�+;�%+������ !"�-%=!#�:##� -!=!�+�:��%+�%�N:#+���%&+!-�%+�=!�+:�#!N*-�+;

5b.03.01



���������	�
������	���	��	�������������������������������� ����! �"���"#�!$% $���&'�"(%�)*����)��!!������%� +�(� ,���!� ���-��������������.$!,�."��� ,���/%�!���#"��""'�-�0,�+1�����!��)��/�!�����)�/�� �"#!"..$�� +��!"�+� �.�-2����3��)�+��# ���""�&�4����/�*1�5�%%����$.�������+�����"�)�##���� -�0,���1���!,�%)���!%����*������.�� 6!"%"$��)�!,���&#%�//��*� ,�"$*,���/�! $����""'� �%%��� ,��,�.-�7�.�����������*, &���"�6+�%%"(!"�� �$! �"��8�� ����!,��*��*�,���/,"���� ��'�"�'�(,�%����//��*�#�".���0�.�9"� "��!"##���!$/-7�(".�����)�,���#� ,����/��'�(� ,��%�����������"$ �,"(� "�/��� ��� �:�#"�.�"## ,��!"./$ ��-�7���%)��%+�.���(�%'��"8��� "���,�%#&�/�!'��$/���5��8�%�;<=>?>@AB�!".�!�""'���)���%�:���"�������!,-0,���� ."�/,�������/���!�)��+� ,�����/��*"#� ,��.� �%�)� �! "��� � ,���� ���!����)��)�"���  �!,�)� "� ,��8�� ��"#� ("�/"%�!�"##�!����%�����*��*���� ��� ��%�-�0,���"(6!%"��)�C"..$�� +�C"���! �"����/�!�&(,�!,�"/���)����7/��%�DEDD&��� ���./ +�!�"���#�".� ,��%����"#�/�"/%��(�� ��*� "�*� ���/�! �)���)��!����)� "��� ��� ,��%�����+�/�!�-FGHIJ�K�L�MHN���OP�!"%��Q�"(��,����������)�)�!� �)�%�����+$����#"��RE�+����-�S,�1��8��� �)��%%�DE�%�����+����!,������4����/�*&�,$� ��*�#"����(*��/,�!��"8�%�� "�!,�!'�"$ -�Q�"(����T"+�*"��*� "� ,���.�%%�������!,�����!�$���"# ,��."����� �.� �&�!"..$�� +�#��%��*� ,�+

GU���	V�����W�X���Y	ZU�[
[�\�]̂ �U_�W�̀	̂�WG�X��Ẁ		�
V�	�W��W��	���
�a�b�	��
Z	�̀��W[
�U
[



����������	��
�����
�������������������������������������������
�����
���������������������������������������
���
���
��
������
���������	�����
�������������������	����������
������������������
��������������
	����	��
	��������������������
���
���������
������� ������	������	����!����������
�������!
�� ����
����	���
����"�� ��
��
�������
�#���	����
�����
�������	������������������� ���������������� 
�������������������

�������!
�������

���	�����������#������������
�#����	���������
#���������������������������
���������
����#�

���������������#��#��#��� ��������������
�����������
��#��������������
�� ����������������$#����	����#�����
���
��
���%���������
�����
�������������	�������
����������
����������
�����
������	�
#�����&���������
��#�����������
���������������������$��#�������������#������
�����
��	�������
�#
��������'(��#����
	���
��� ��������������

����
#���
���	��
�����
����������(��#���)�����*�����+()*,�#���	�
���������
!������-���
#����������#���������	��������./.0����	�
����	������
�����
�����
���	������������
� �����
������
�	�
�����
�����������
�������������������������������
�#�����
�����������������#���'
����
����������
���
�����������
���*�����
�������	�����������	������
����
���	���������������	�#���	��������������
�##����������
���������������1 #�����������
��
��#�
��	����&����20����

�������� ��!



�����������	�
����������������������������������������������������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��������������!�����������������������������"��������������������������������#��������������������������������������������������������������������$�%���������������������������������������������������&�����'(		������������)���������������������'(	�*�������������������!%����������)����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$+��������������������������������)��������������������,-./01,-./.�2-.,-./034211/.%������������������������������������������������������������������������������5������������*�������������������������)����������6�������7�������*��������������%87���	�(����������������������������'
���������(		�			���������9��������������������������������:����������������5��������;���������<�������� ������<����&�����=�������5���������������&������������������'>(�	?�����(		�			�������5��������������%87�������@�����A�����������������B�)���������������9������������	�
������������������((�����A��������������9���%87����������������������



��������	
�������������
����������������
������
����
���
����������
����������������������
�������
��
�����������
�� �
����������������
������������������������������
��!"��������
���
����������#$%&����������
���������
�����������
������������
��'	��������������
������������(���)
����*�������
�������	�����
�+�����������	
�����
����,����������������	��������
������
������������	��-����������������
������.�� ����������
��������������
����������� ���������������
�����/0��������
�����
�������	
��������	���������1����������� ������
�����������
���
����������������1�������������
������
�����������	 ������	����
�����	���������
 2�����
����/3��������4���������
���������
��������
������������������2*������
���	�������
�����	
�������
����
����������������������������	��������(��	����
�����
���������������
��!#�������� ������	��-��	��
��������������
�����������	��������������/3���
��
��	�������������
-����������
������-�
������
���� 2�*�����
����/0������������������	�������
�����������
�
���������������
������
����������	��������������	
�������������������5������� ����-����������	������.�����
�������������������26�����
�	�� ����	����������������������
��
������7������������
��������-��
��������������
����������##����������	�������



���������	�
�����
�����������������������������������
�	�����������������������������
�
�������
�����
��������������������	�	
����������
��	��������
��	������	������
���
������
�	�
������������
���������	�����������
�����	����	����������	����������
�� �������!���������
�������������������
��"���
������������	�#		����
�����	��	������������	�����
�������
���
���
��	�����	������������	�������	�
������
	�	
����������	��������	�������		���	
�
����
	�����
����������$�
������
������%��	��	��
�	������
��
��������������������
���������
����	�����
��������
	������������������
�������	���
���$	�
����������
���������
�����	����������������		�����������	������$�
���
������������
���������
��	�&������������������	������������$	��
�
�����������
������
��������	
��
����'�!��	��	��&(�$����������
��	�����������������
��	�����������������
��
������	�������
��������
��
��
�����
����������	�	
�����	�
������$�
��'������)����*��+�$��
����������
��	������	�������������
���	���������������
������		�
����,-.�/01-,�/23455.6607080,9:���)��������$��	����
����
������������������������"������������#��;
��
�����<=>?���
���	�����
��	���������$�	����	
��
���������
�
���"�����������������
��������@�
����	���+	���
������	
�
������$���	�����
�����	���	�



����������	

���	�������

����������������	������������	�������������������	������������
����������������
	�������������������	���������	�����������������������������������������������
�������������	���������	

���	�������

���������
	�����	����� !��	���������
�������	��������	�������������"����#����������������	���	������
�������	�������
	������$��������	�����������������
�������������������������	����������
���������������������$�������	����������	���������������������	�����	
���������������
������	������
	������������	���������	������������������
	������%��
�����������	&��	���������������	������'����
��������������������	�������������	�'���������������$���'���
	(�
���������������������������������������������������������!�
�������������������������
�!�����������	&��	�������'�����
�����������������
	�������������	��������	����	�������!)������������$����	����������	������*���!�����������#��������	��������	������������������	

���	��+	�������,��-������!.	��	���'����	�����	�	�����	������	���!�	����
�-��(!���
���/�������������������������	���%	���0��������*��!���������(�)�1��������	���	���������������	��
���
����
	����������	���%2������������������������������������	�
����������!�������
��������������

��	�
	����	������'�����	����������������	����������	���������!������	�����
	���������	�����!��������������	�	�����(���!�
����������
��!)������������������
��������	������	�������������������������������	��
����
��
	��������
���������



����������		
����	�������������
��		��������������������
��	�	���
��	��

��������	�����������������	����������	���	�
�������������������	����	�����	���������������	�	�������	��
	������	�
��������	����������		��������
� !���	��������������������	�����������	�������������	"#$�������	�%�

	������$����������	��	�������	���������������	����������	 �����������	�����������&��	���'�����������(���		�����	���	��������	����	) ����	������������������������������	�	��������	����������	�*+,-./�+�,0-123����	��"�������������	���	��
����������������	����������	���������"#$������������	���&�	������������	����	������	4���������������������������
����������	������
�5�����	���
�	� ���	��	��������		
������	��������������������	������
���������6���	���
�������� ����������
����������
	�	�������	�����	��		����
���������	��	��%������������	��
�����	������������������7��	�����
���������������	��7����	��	�	���"�����	�������8���������7��������	9:; ;;;����	������ !���	�������7�����	���	�	���
	��	� �7������

���������������	���	����	����	�������	�������	����
����!"�����������������������	�����	���	� ���	�����
	������	�����		
����������	�����	����		4�	��	��	�����
	��������������	�"#$�"����������������
���
������ ��������������	����� ����������������	���	��	�
���	������



�����������	�
�����������
����	�������
�����������������	�������	������	���
������������������������������������
�������������������������
�������	����������������������
����������
����
������������������������
����������������������������������������
����
�������	������������������������������� �����������	�������������������!���
�"#������������������������������������
���������������	�����������
���� ����������������������$���
�����������������
��������
��� ������������������������������������
�����	�����������������������	�������������������
������	������	�����	�����	������
������������
��� ����������%����������������������������
���������������������������������	����������������������������������	��&������'����!�	�������(����'�����	���	�
�	�
��������������������
�����
��������������������������
���������������)�������������
���������������&�����*
����+�������	���
�����������
���������������
����������������	���
����
���������������������	���
���������������
�����������������	�������
����������������
����������������������������������������,�������
�����
��������*
�����������
�����������
����������������
���������������������-�����
�	����������������	�����������)���
�����
����
�������������������������	������)�����������
����	����������������������������.��������������



����������
�	
�������������������	�������
�	�����������	�������	������
���
�����
�	���
���	��
�	�������	�����
�	�� �!�������������
�����
����	��
�	�"#������������	�$
����		�������
��	�����
����������������	����
%	���	�
��������	����������
���&
��
�	�!���
���
	���'(�	�
���
	����	����	������������	�������)��"��	�������'(�	�!�	���������
����
�����"*+,-./012�.3�45-+61�778�9+6,1:�;<�5=�>?@ABCD@E�FGH:I0�;<8�;J;<K�LMNO� �P�NNOPQR�9��MNPLR4O��MS��Q����GM�QLOMT�MT4ONQR�O4���9QOON�U�S��**�NQ�9RQRO��P�9QMPQ���M--�I53V13V�W;JJXY;J;<�Q01��3.V1:



���������	��
������������������������������������������������ !��" �"��#�$�!����%�&���!"�'�"�(��!�����)���!"�*��!�)�"��)!"��$������+�!"��"�*�)��������������+���������*�(��)����,-�./012345�16.78,92:.

5b.04.01



�����������	
��
������
���	��������
�����
����
 !�
!�!"
#
$�%&'()��
*�"��
����
 !�
!�!"+,-
./0123.
4567879
:;;<=58>5<?
@ABC7
D<?EC7C?=C
5;
>FC
G87HC;>
8??A8G
H8>FC75?H
<E
6<<I5;F
BA6G5=
;C7J8?>;
5?
>FC=<A?>79K
LFC
M89;NG<?H
CJC?>
8>
>FC
;B78OG5?H
PC>7<
L<7<?><
D<?JC?>5<?
DC?>7C
5;
6<>F
8?
5?MA;>79
>78MC
;F<O
8?M>FC
MC
E8=><
QCC>5?H
;B<>
E<7
8GG
<E
D8?8M8R;
G5678758?;S8
BG8=C
><
=8>=F
AB
<?
>FC
G8>C;>
5?
=8>8G<HA5?HT
F<6?<6
O5>FM5;>8?>
=<GGC8HAC;T
8?M
>8IC
;><=I
<E
>FC
;>8>C
<E
>FC
G567879KUVWVX
YZ[[
[\]XZV[
̂Z_V
\̀Z[
]aVb
cZda
ef
g]X
]eX
hVV_̂i
aVh[̂V\\VXjkifV
i]eX
VYlẐ
m9
=FC=I5?H
>F5;
6<n
o
=<?;C?>
><
>FC
A;C
<E
Q9
5?E<7Q8>5<?
E<7
CQ85G;
E7<Q
LFC
p8G7A;Kqrstuvwx?
8
65>>C7G9
=<GM
y75M89
>F5;
yC67A879T
>FC
E5?8G
M89
<E
>FC
z{z|
CJC?>T
JC?M<7;
5?
>FC
CnB<;5>5<?
F8GG
AB;>857;
OC7C
6A;9F8OI5?H
CJC79>F5?H
E7<Q
6<<INQ<J5?H
;C7J5=C;
><
Cn<>5=
8?5Q8G
J5;5>;K
y<7QC7
L<7<?><
Q89<7
}8J5M
P5GGC7
;8>
8G<?C
8>
>FC~?5JC7;5>9
<E
L<7<?><
�7C;;
6<<>FT
;A77<A?MCM
69
=<B5C;
<E
F5;
G8>C;>
F87M=<JC7T
OF5GC
8
6A��9
G5?C
E<7QCM
M<O?
>FC
85;GCE<7
;5H?CM
=<B5C;
<E
8
B5=>A7C
6<<I
86<A>
8
H58?>
6CC>K
}<O?;>857;T
5?
>FC
=<7B<78>CG9
?CA>78G
=<?E5?C;
<E
QCC>5?H
7<<Qz{z}T
8
EAGG
F<A;C
F8M
H8>FC7CM
><
>8GI
86<A>
<?C
<E
>FC
6A7?5?H
5;;AC;
8>
>FC
FC87>
<E
>FC
Q<MC7?
BA6G5=
G567879K�8FQ8
�8;F5T
8
;<=58G
O<7IC7
O5>F
8
675HF>
;Q5GC
8?M
8
6C5HC
FC8M
;=87ET
6CH8?
>FC
;C;;5<?K
xJC7
>FC
B8;>
MC=8MC
<7
;<T
5?7C;B<?;C
><
>FC
O8JC;
<E
JAG?C786GC
BC<BGC
8775J5?H
8>
>FC57
M<<7;T
Q8?9
�<7>F
:QC75=8?
G567875C;
F8JC
6CHA?
F575?H
5?NF<A;C
;<=58G
O<7IC7;K
�8;F5
O8;
<?C
<E
L<7<?><
�A6G5=
4567879R;
E57;>K
�87>
<E
FC7
7<GCT
;FC
CnBG85?CMT
O8;
><
Q8ICB87>?C7;F5B;
O5>F
;FCG>C7;T
O5>F
>FC
5MC8
>F8>
>FC
G567879
;F<AGM
8GO89;
6C
8
OCG=<Q5?H
BG8=C
E<7
CJC79<?C
6A>
>FC
7C8GO<7I
<E
B7<J5M5?H
;C7J5=C
><
BC<BGC
OF<
87C
F<QCGC;;
;F<AGM
6C
F8?MGCM
69
>FC
B7<EC;;5<?8G;K�������
����r��&�('��
�)�
����
��
��������&����(
�'%���'�(�'��
'�
�)�
�����(�
�
����
������
��
����('�����
�'�'��&
���)'��(
��&���
�)�
�����
 ¡���'����LFC
7C8G5>9
5;
;<QCOF8>
M5EEC7C?>K
o?
L<7<?><T
<JC7
>FC
B8;>
ECO
Q<?>F;T
�8;F5
CnBG85?CMT
>FC7C
OC7C
86<A>
¢¢T{{{
BC<BGCCnBC75C?=5?H
F<QCGC;;?C;;T
8==<7M5?H
><
>FC
=5>9R;
=<A?>K
LF8>R;
87<A?M
¢¢T{{{
BC<BGC
OF<
Q89
6C
=<Q5?H
5?
><
8
G567879;B8=C
><
O87Q
AB
MA75?H
>FC
M89T
;FC
;85MK
@<QC
678?=FC;
87C
<BC?
G8>C7
>F8?
<>FC7
;<=58G
;C7J5=C;T
8?M
Q<;>
;FCG>C7;
5?L<7<?><
F8M
6CC?
EAGG
8?9O89T
;<
G567879
O<7IC7;
OC7C
<E>C?
8;ICM
><
M<
>FC
5QB<;;56GCSE5?M
;FCG>C7
E<7
;<QC<?C
5?
8;9;>CQ
>F8>
<E>C?
F8M
?<
7<<QK
£pFC?
BC<BGC
=<QC
><
A;
8>
>FC
CGCJC?>F
F<A7T
OFC?
OCR7C
=G<;5?HT
8?M
>FC9
;89T
¤D8?
9<AFCGB
QC
E5?M
8
6CM
E<7
><?5HF>¥R
OC
=8GG
DC?>78G
o?>8ICT
8?M
>FC9R7C
8>
¢{{
BC7=C?>
=8B8=5>9K¦§5=I9
§87H8T
8
>OC?>9NE<A7N9C87
JC>C78?
<E
̈MQ<?><?
�A6G5=
4567879T
MC;=756CM
F<O
>FC
=5>9
F8M
Q<JCM
><O87M
EAGG95?>CH78>5?H
;<=58G
O<7I
5?><
>FC
8=>5J5>5C;
<E
5>;
Q85?
G567879
678?=FK
£�C<BGC
7C8GG9
M<
;CCI
>F5;
<A>T
6C=8A;C
5>R;
>FC
G8;>>7AG9
BA6G5=
;B8=CT
8;
oRQ
;A7C
CJC796<M9
5?
>F5;
7<<Q
I?<O;T¦
;FC
;85MK©ª«¬®̄°¬±¬²®



����������������	�����
�
����������������������������������������� ��!�"����#"�����$�"%#"%��&#�'()*+�,-�./01,)2/.�345,+.67)4.�8,+)�39:821�+3,1.;<�()*+�0-.�(�4.,5=�0/.5�,-=�0/.5�>428.�5.305)2-?�)42+�+)05@A�0B).-�2-/0C.=�,+�,C2-=�0B�:,=?.�0B�40-095;�D05�)4.�82:5,5@�EFG+�>40�-..=�)0�H9+)2B@�)4.25�:9=?.)+�)0�9-+@I3,)4.)21�12)@�109-128+A�)4.�345,+..I34,+2J.+�)4.�2I305),-1.�0B�)4.25�2-+)2)9)20-+K�82C.�)4.�78,+)�08=L?50>)4�5,2-B05.+)+<�05�7)4.�8,+)�M,8N3,?0+�)05)02+.+A<7)4.�8,+)�39:821�+3,1.<�+09-=+�82C.�+0I.)42-?�>.�+4098=�350:,:8@�+3.-=�+0I.�I0-.@�)0�35.+.5/.;O+�,�=.+1523)20-�0B�)4.�508.�0B�)4.�82:5,5@A�)4.�345,+.�2+�,8+0�,�5.I,5C,:8.�2889+)5,)20-�0B�40>�B,5�)4.�2-+)2)9)20-�4,+�10I.;P2:5,52.+�>.5.�0-1.�38,1.+�)0�,11.++�:00C+;�Q4.@�,5.�-0>�38,1.+�)0�,11.++�./.5@)42-?R�Q4.�8,+)�38,1.�)0�,11.++�,-@)42-?R�O+)4.�+012,8�+,B.)@�-.)�4,+�B5,@.=A�82:5,52.+�4,/.�B09-=�)4.I+.8/.+�B2882-?�2-�)4.�?,3+;�Q4.�10-/.5+,)20-�2-�500I�STSU�)4,),B).5-00-�>,+�)4.�+09-=�0B�82:5,5@�>05C.5+�+)59??82-?�>2)4�)4.�5.,82)@�)4,)A�=.+32).�)4.25�:.+)�.BB05)+A�,-�2-+)2)9)20-05?,-2J.=�,509-=�8.-=2-?�09)�4,5=10/.5+�I2?4)�-0)�:.�93�B05�)4.�H0:;F/.5@�82:5,5@�:5,-14�2-�./.5@�12)@�4,+�2)+�0>-�+3.12B21�2++9.+A�:9)�2-�10-/.5+,)20-+�>2)4�>05C.5+�,150++�)4.�109-)5@A�)4.:50,=�+)50C.+�0B�)4.�152+2+�,5.�)4.�+,I.;�P2:5,52,-+�+,@�)4.@*5.�+..2-?�I05.�3.038.�>2)4�I05.�10I38.V�-..=+�)4,-�./.5:.B05.;�(-�Q050-)0A�)4.�-9I:.5�0B�5.105=.=�72-12=.-)+A<�,�).5I�>4214�2-189=.+�/208.-)A�=2+593)2/.A�05�)45.,).-2-?�./.-)+A+32C.=�B50I�W;XY�3.5�XTTATTT�/2+2)+�2-�STXS�)0�Z[;W\�2-�STSX;�(-�F=I0-)0-A�>4.5.�82:5,52,-+�,5.�0BB.5.=�)5,2-2-?�)0,=I2-2+).5�-,80V0-.A�STSS�+,>�-2-.)@L-2-.�03202=�302+0-2-?+�,150++�)4.�+@+).I;�G-�],-109/.5�(+8,-=A�+0I.�>05C.5+�>.-)0-�+)52C.�B05�-.,58@�)>0�I0-)4+�0/.5�>05C38,1.�10-1.5-+�,-=�,�8,1C�0B�>,?.�?50>)4;�(-�,�8.)).5�)0�82:5,5@�)59+)..+A�)4.@,5?9.=�)4,)�7I,-,?.I.-)�4,+�5.B9+.=�)0�,?5..�)0�I,-@�2I305),-)�35030+,8+62-189=2-?�+089)20-+�)0�>05C38,1.�/208.-1.,-=�I.-),8�4.,8)4�2I3,1)+;<�P2:5,5@�>05C.5+�,150++�)4.�109-)5@�5.305)�:.2-?�,)),1C.=A�+3,)�0-A�)45.,).-.=A�+.V9,88@,++,98).=;�Q4.@�=.+152:.�)4.�.I0)20-,8�)088�)4,)�5.+98)+�B50I�-0)�4,/2-?�)4.�-.1.++,5@�5.+0951.+�)0�4.83�)4.�3.038.�>4010I.�)0�)4.IA�=,@�,B).5�=,@;�Q4.@�),8C�,:09)�321C2-?�93�)4.�340-.�)0�1,88�B05�4.83�,-=�5.,82J2-?�)4,)�-0:0=@*+�10I2-?;^4.-�)4.�B8005�03.-.=�B05�_9.+)20-+�)4,)�,B).5-00-�2-�Q050-)0A�4,-=+�+40)�93;�O�?5.@L4,25.=�I,-�>,-).=�)0�C-0>�40>I,-@�+012,8�>05C.5+�F=I0-)0-�4,=�425.=;�7̂ 2--23.?�H9+)�,==.=�2)+�)425=A�,-=�)4.5.�H9+)�,5.-*)�.-09?4�4095+�2-�)4.�=,@�B05)4.�=.I,-=A<�4.�+,2=�_92.)8@;�7̀0>�,5.�@09�?02-?�)0�2-15.,+.�+93305)�B05�+),BBR<�,+C.=�,�>0I,-�-.,5�)4.�B50-);�O�I,-I.-)20-.=�)4,)A�:.1,9+.�+0I.�0B�Q050-)0*+�:5,-14.+�)4,)�4,/.�I05.�=2BB2198)�3,)50-+�,5.�9-30398,5�,I0-?�+),BBA�)4.�8.,+).V3.52.-1.=A�8.,+)�+.-205�.I380@..+�0B).-�.-=�93�>05C2-?�)4.5.;7̂ 4,)�2+�)4.�-.V)�+).3R<�,+C.=�,�>0I,-�B50I�],-109/.5�a9:821�P2:5,5@;�()�>,+�)4.�_9.+)20-�)4,)�+..I.=�)0�:.�0-./.5@0-.*+�I2-=;�a.038.A�+4.�+,2=�:89-)8@A�>.5.�=@2-?;�7O)�>4,)�302-)�=0�82:5,5@�>05C.5+A�I,-,?.5+A�=25.1)05+�+3.,C�=25.1)8@)0�?0/.5-I.-)+R< bcdefghiejekg
lmmnopq�rqss�tumvqw�xqssm�ymzt{|}vn�~����up���q�pmvq�z����}��u}�������������������������������������������������� �����������¡�������¡�¢��£������¤�¥¦§̈©¦̈ª«¬�®̄�°±²²«³́«©µ¶¦ ·̧¹º»�¼½º̧



���������	�
����
��
�������������
���������������
�������������
�����������	��������������������
�����
��������������
�����������
����
��������������
����������������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������
��������������������������������������
���������������������������������������������
�
��� !��������������������������������
�������������������������

�����
	�
���������
��
��	�"�#��������������������$�#��
������������
�
������
�����
�$�����������%������
������������&���������������������'����%�����
���������(�%����������������������������������

������
����)*+,+),-.�,+/���
���
	����������������
�����0���	�����
���������������
��1�	���������������
�
�����
����������
����������������������%������	�������2������%����
����������
���3��
�
����� ������%��������������������
��
�����4�������
%��������������
	��������5�������� ����������������
���������������
���������
����%��677�
������������������������������
�
�������������8�
���1��
�������������
���6�9�����������
����
�����������67�:���������������������������������&!������������������
�����
������������������
�������������������
�����
���������������������
�;������'�����<�
������
������ !����=�������
�;������3��
�
�������
���������
�
�������������������;
��
�����(�%���������������
����������������8�
���1��
����������>?���
������������
�������

����������
�
����
��������������
���3��
�
������������������976@���������
��������
�������
"������A������
	�
������������
���������
����������1���
������������������
�����������
�������������
��������������������������������A	����
��
������������������������������
���������������
������������
��
��������������
��������������"��
����������������������������������������
����������������
����������������������������������������������������������
�������������
�������������
���������8���B�
	���������������&>9�;���������C�'����976D���������������������������E���%��677�&#�
�%�C
�������;�����'��������������
�(����������
���������
��������F��
��
���������������	�������������������
�����������������������������%���
���E���������������������
���������������������
��A����������1��@�������������
�����
��������������������
��������
��������
���������������
��������
�����������������������
�%�� ����4������������������������
�������E������
��
��������������������������������������������G���������1
�������������
�����������
�
��A����������������
������������
���������
����<���������������������������
����������������	��������
���������

������������������������������������������
���������������������
���������������������
�������������������������������������������������

�����������������������
��������������(��������
	�
���
��	������������������
������������
����������������������������
�
�%���
����A�����������(������0�������
�����������������
���������������

��������&���	�������
�'���������������
��������������������������
�������
���
��������������
����������������������
���������
����1��@">7����
�������
�������
����������������������
��������
��������������������
������1������������������������������
�����������������������
����������
��������
�����������������������������������������������������F��
��
�������	������
������A���������������	����	������%��������������
��������	�������G���
A<�������������������
���������������������������������������������
���

�����������������&���������
��'G�
���<������
��������
��A��
��A���
A���� !�����	���������������<������
�����������������
���������A��
����
�
����
������������5�����5������������
���
����	�����������
�
������������������
���	����G������������
��������������
�������������
��;������3��
�
��������������	������
������
����������������������
	������
����������������H������9796��&(���%��������
��������	�(���������������
��
���� !�'�����<������
��
��������&(�H���������������
	��(�����	��������
�
���������������	��������	��������
��������
�����'1�������	���������������<������
�
������
���������������<���
����;�
	�3��
�
���������
���
��������������
���
������
�
���
���������������������������������������������������
	�����������
�%����
����(���������������6D69�����������1�
�����
����������������������
������������������
����������������
�������I>>���������JKGL����������
�����������
��������������
����������������������9�>7D�����������
�
�����
����������
������������������������������
�����������������
��������������69>�������������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������������
�
���������E������������
�%�����������������!������������������������������
�����
��������
�����
���������
�
������
�����������������
���������������������
����������������������	���������
���



��������	
	��������������������������	������������������	�����������	������������������	���������������	��	����������	�	��������	�	�����������	������������	���������	��	�������������	������	��	������	�����������������������������������������������������	���������	������������������������������������ ����� ������!����	��������������������������	��	�����������������������	�������������������������"�������	������� ������������������������ ���������������
	������#��������$	����	����	�������������	����	���������������������������������������������	��	������������	��������	�����	����������$	����	��������������������	�����������������������������	��	���������������������	����������������%�	��&�����������	�'(('����������	��������������	�	�	�����������������	�������	�������	����������������������������������	����	��)���	������	������������������	�������	� ���������*+�,��������������������������	�������������������	������� ������������������������	�����	���� ������	����� �����������������	�����������-�����	���������������	������ ��	�������������������������������������	��	������������������	���	���	�����������������������	������$	����	�����������������������	�	�����	������������������������	�������������������	����������� �������������	�������������������������������������������������������	������������)���	�����������)����������������������������	����������������	�����.���	�	��������������������������	���/�	��	������	�������	�����!��������	�������	�������������������������	�����	����	���	��	�����������������������������������	��������������	�����	�����0	����	���	������������������������������%���1����������2�����	����������������	��	����������� 3456789:6;6<8������	�������	������������	���������������������������$	����	�����������������������	����������������	��������	���-��!��������������������)��	����	����	�����������������������������	���������������������������	���������������������	��������	��	�����	�����,������	���%���������������������������	���������������������������!������	��������������=>?(�������������������� ���	�������	��)��������!	��@���	���������������������	������	���������	����=>A(��"	������������������������������������	��	�����	������	��������������� ���� �����������������	���������������������	������������	��������	����	�����2�����	��������	�	���	�	��������������������	�	��� 	��	����������BC�(((�����	����������'(=D���'(''�������	�����������	�E�����-��������������-������������)��������������������������������������������������� ������	����	�������������������/�	�����������	���������-�����	������������	������	�������E�������������	�������'('(��'('=������	�����	�������	����������F�������������	��	�����������	������	���-��������������������������� ������������������� �����	�	��������������	�������������	������������������������������	�����������������������2�	����������	����������������	������	�)�������������������	���������	�������������������������������������������	�����)�����������������	��	����	������	���	�������������������	�����������	�����	��	����	�������	�����	�������)�����������	������������������� ������� 	�������������������������)���������������������������������������������������������������)����������������������	���������������������	�������� �����	�����	�����)����������������������	����	������������'(=G����������	����	���������	���������=B��������������������������������������!������	����������������	��������������E������������	�����������	����	��������	����������	���	���������	����2������������� ������	�����	������������������������	��	�������������������������������)�������������������������	�������	�������	���������	�������	��������������������������	�������	����������	�����������������������������	���������



�
���������	��
�		�
����
������
����
���������
���������������������
���
�������	����������������
�������		������������	���
���
���������������
��	����	�

����
��	������������
������� ����!�����������
����	������	�����
��"�����	���	����
���
��������	����
���	�������������#���		��$�����������������		��
��
����
���������
��
�
������	�������#����!���������	�������������
����
�%�������������������	
�����
��
������������
��������
���������������		��������
����!��
��
�������	������
������#�����������
������	�
�������
���������������������
�
�
�������#���		��
��������
�����	����
�����
������	������
�
����������		������������������������
������	���	�������&��
���	��������������#���
���$������
����
��
���������		����
���������������
����������������������	
����������������
��
��$�������������������
�����
��

'()�*+,-�././�
�����	�0102��3�������
����!����
���������
����������������������4�������4
��������������
�����������������
5	����	�������������������������	�����
�������6������������#�
��������
�
������$����������������	��������������	�
�



���������	��
��	�����
��	���������
�������	����������
���������	��	������������������	��	�����	�����������	������������������	�	���	������������
���	����
��	����������������������������	���������	��	��������	�������������������������
����	������������	���������������	�����	����������� �
����	������!
����������������������������
��������
�������
���������	�����	����"����
����	������	������������	������#��	�������		��
	�����
��$%����������	����	������	������������������������������������������
��������	��������&�������
���	��
��	����$'������	����	�������
����	�����	���������	��&��������	�����$���	����
�������%���������	��������������������
����(���������
���������&��������	������$%���������#�����	��	�����������������	������������	������	���������������	��������& )*+,-./0,1,2.3������	�����������������%��
������	��������������	�	����������������������
�������������
���������������������	�������������������������������
��	�����
��
���������������������	������	������	�	�����������
��������$4�����
��
�������	�������������������������	�����������������	��	�	��������������	����������������	���������������������	�
��
��5����������	����	��&����������$6������5����	�&����������	�����������������������	������������������������������$4����������������7���	�����	�������������������	����������	�&������
�����������5	���7���	�������������%�������
������
������	����������������������������������	���	��	�����������

���������	���������������������
�����%�������898:�������������������	������	�����
	���������	��	����	��������	�5����
�����������
��;�	����	�����
�������	�	���
��������%������������������	�����	���������
����������	��������
����
��	������������	������������������	������������	����������"�����	�����������������
���	���������������������������	������	��	��
	����$<����5	������	�����������5����������������4�	��	����	����	��	���
��	�&������=���>������?@3����A�����!�B������C���������D����������������<�����5��@����	�����E�����?����		��F�������������5���
��������	������	�	��������	��	����	��	����������	��������	������������$����	���������	��������������	���	������������������
���
��������������������	�����	�	��������	��������
����	���������&�����4	���������������	�����������������������	�����	������������	���
�����	�����������������	��	��7��	����$<�����������	��	�	����������������
	������	�������������	������	����	�����������������	������������������
�����������������������	�����
���	��	��	�&������G�����A������
������	����	�������	��B������C�������<�������H����B��	����	������������	�����������
�����A�������������������������	5���������	��
��	��	�	����������5���������$�����5�������������������%	�����	5�������������������	��
��	������	����������������������������������
����	��	5���
����������������	���������&������A������������������������	��	����������������	�	�	�������������������������������
�����	�
�������	������	�������������������������$G�	�%�	���������5	�#��	������	�������������	�������������������&������A������$%�	���	��	���������	����������	���
����������������	����	������
�	����
�	����	����	�����	�����
��	������	�������&�����������	��
�	���������������	���������!	���	�����	������	����	�����������$����������	��	�	�������������������
��	�	������������������������
���������������	����	�����������������������������������������	�����	������������	��	���
��	�������������������������	�&������A��	����A��������������	������	�����������������������	���������
��������	�<��	���H������	�������	������������������������5�������
��
�����������������������������������������
	������	�������	������������������������
���(	���
���������������������	���	���	���������������	�������������I�������(������JKL� 9���������	����	��B������C��������C��������(��������������������	��5���������(������	����J�8�9 �����J�K�:�8���������G�	�������	������	������������	�����������	��������
�������	�����!
��������������	�����	��	�����	��	���������������������������������������������������������	����������������	����!
��	����	����
��	���������		����	��������%�?������5��4�����	�����������>�����4	��������	��
��������������	�����������������	���������������������������	���	������������������������	����	��	����	���
��������$<�5�������������	������
��
���	��	�������������	����������



���������	
�����������������������	���������	������������������������	���
��	���	������������������������������	����������������
��������	�����������������������������
����	��������
����������������	����������������	�����������������	����������������������������
����
���������

	����� ����������	���������������������������	�����
�����������������������������	����������	�����������������	 �������������������	�����������	���	�������������������!"��������	��������������	��������#����$�����������%�����	��������������������������������������	����������	�	���������	����
��������

&���	��������� ��	���	�����	���������
��	��������'��������������	��� ���������� �
�������������	

������	������	
	���	������	�����(���������������	�	������	����	
�����������
	���	�������
��"�����	��������������	���)����
�*��
���"����	��	������	
��������������	���	�����������������������������������	���"��������������  �����������������������������������	�������������	���������	
��
�����������������������
���	����������)����� �������������	�������������
	�������������	��� �
�������
�����+�	����������
�����������
���������������������������������������	 	����	����	
������������
����
����������,�	����	���� ���
������!"��
�����	 �$�������������������������	����$�����������������	���������  �����������������'��������� �����
��
	�����	���	��	���	�	����-���������������	��	����	�������
��������������������	
������������
����
������������������������������������	��
	����	��������	���������������������������*�������*	

���	���������./01������
���	�
�����2���3	�4�������!5����	���
�"�������6	����	����	�7�'���6	���8��'�

������
����������������  ����������	���������������

������������	������������� �
	����	��������
�����������������������4�����������������������������
����������	���
���������	���������������������������	���������	

����� ������������!"��	������	���
	���
	 �9��9���������	��
�	��������	�������
��������������	���������+�	��������	�������������������������
������
��� ������������4��������	�����!'���
	������������������������������������	��������������������
�������	�� �	
���������������������������	��	��	�����

�����������%�'��������	��������������	��
	����	�����������	  	��
�������
���������!$���	��������	���������
	������������������
	����	����������������

��
� ��� ����������������
���
�� 	������	������	���
��	��
�����	����������

������������������������!:�������������������#$������

�������������������
��	�����������������	����������������$���������� �����
�����
	����	��������������	�������	���	��������	���������
����
�����	�	���$��	������������	����� ����������;<=>?@AB>C>D@����������� ����8	��	���������������	���
��������
�	�����������������������E���  ���������

������������������������������������	������	������	�����	�����+�����F��������
�	��������������������������
���������������������������
	����	�������	�������	������������ ���������������"������������� �������������������������������������	��
��
������	�	����-���	������
�����������������	��������������������
	������������	��������������� �������������	�����
�������	���!$����������������	����

�����

��������������

�����	���������������	�����	����������������	 	�����������	������  ��������
���������������
��
���	��������	����	����9����
��	��������	+���������	��
���	�������	������������������������	�	���������������	��������
��	�	�������������� �������� ���	��������������
����������� ����	��	����������	�������	�����������!$���������
���� ��	����	��	����#$����	�����

�������������	�����%��"��������	������
	�����%�$��������������	���$����������������������	���!$�������������������
�����	���$������

���	��������
���������� �����	����������������������������������������������������������	����������������� �������9��������������	��	�����������������������
������������������
	����	����������	����	���������
�����
���	����������	��������
��������������������
�����!$���	��������������	��������	���������	�	��
	3���������������
	���$�����������������	��������� ������������	����������������!$� 	���������������
������ �
������������	������
���� ����
�����	����������������

��������"�
���� ��	��������"�
���� �
������� ����������!(���
�����������������'�������������������
��	������������ ���	���$�����
��./0G��� �������  �������������	���	���	�
����	��	�������8	��	�����)	

���	���6	����������������������������������� �	�������	����	�����9���
�������	������	�������������(���������������������	�������
9������	����������'�����������	�����������������	��������	����������������������� 	�������'��������
����������������"�������	�����������

���)	

���	��� ���"

�����������������������	���������������������� �����������	����������������	��
	3�������
�� ������	�������
	�������8��
��������
�����������������	����

����	�



�������������	�
���	�	������	����	����	���������	��
��	�	�����	��	��������
�	������	���	���	���	�����������	���	��������	������	�����	��	�
�������	�����	�������	�����	����	� 	��	������	���	���� �	���	 ���	�������	��������	�	�������	��������	�  �������	�������	����	�������!	��	�����	����"���	�
����	� 	������	��������	���	 ���"	�
	���	���	���	��	�
����	� 	������	
����	��	�������"	������	� 	�������	������
����	��	�������	���	�
�����	������	�
	���	��	����"	#��
	�	����	� ��	���	����	�����������	��	����	���
�������
���	����	��������"�����	��	$�������	%%�	&'&&�	����(����(����(���	�����	)����	���	 �����	������	� ��	��	���������	�	*�������
�+������"	,�
�	��������	������	��	����	� 	 �
����	���	������	����	�������	���	���	����"	���	�������	������	 ��	���
��	�����	��	������������	����	�	 ��
��	�
	���	�	�������"	����	�	 
���	���������	�	����(���
��	����	������	�������	���������	���	������	�  �����	����	�������	�	��	����"-./	01.	�����	�	����	������	���	�����	�	��� ��	 ���	�������	�	�������"	�	��	
�	��	�����	��	2���������	��)������	��	���
��	� 	������	��������	��
�����	���������	���	���	�����	��	��	����3	����	����
���	��	��	������������	���	�����	����	�	��	
����	����"!	�	���	�	��	�����	������	������	���	��	��	���(����(���	 �����	 ��	��	����	��������
	�������	��	��	��
��	 ���"	�	
���	��	 ���	+����	���	�	������	�	������	����	� 	���	+������	����	��	2
���	4�����	�����	 ���	5�����	���	�	�����	��	 ���	����	���
��	� 	���	6
�����	�	����(���������	�
	����	������	7�����	7����8�����	���
	�	���
�	� 	��������	������	�����	����	�	)��������	�������"	�	������	���	��	�������	���
�	� 	��	������9� ������	+�������	��������	��	 ���
���	�
������	��	��	����	���	���	��	���	��	 �������	��	����	��	������	�� ��	� 	�������	�	���
� 
��	��
�� 
�	�����	������	���	���������	 ��	��	���� �:�	�����	��	�����	������	 ���	��	����	���	�����	��	�� �	����������	����"	#	�
����	�����"������	�������	�������	���	�������8���	��	����	�
����	������	���	����	�������	��	�����	� 	����	�������"	#��������	�6����	*�����8�	��	)74	� 	7������	6
����	+������	���	��	�����	� 	��	�� ��	���	���
���	�������	���
�	��	��)�������	;����	+��������	)�
����	���������	���	<��
����	�	���	���	�	�
	����	��
��������!	��	���	���������	�
��	���	�����	���	����	����
����"�����	���	����	���	���
	�	�������	������	���������	�������	�	�������	 ��	�������"	�	���	�	�����
�	����
���	������ ��	����	���	�	�����	�����	��	�������	��
��	�����������	���	��"	�
	���	��	����	�����	#��	�����	��	����	�������������	���3�	�����	��	7������	���	����	�	�
��	������	*�����8	�����	���3�	=
�	��	��	����	��	��3��	�����	�	�������	�������	�������	����
����	���	 
�����	�	���	���������	������	�������"!	+���������	����	*�����8	����	�������	�	����"�����	���	��	������	���	�����	��	��	����(#��	���
����	���	���	����	�����	�	�������	���	����	����	����	����
������	�������	� 	��	��������	 ���	����������"	�	���	���	�	������	����	 ���	������	�
����	��	�
������"��	����	���	��������	���	 ��	�	����	����	���������	��
��	��	���	���������	�����	��	>��	���3	��	�������	�
	������3!����	#�����	,������	��	�������	� 	������	����������	�	������	6
����	+������"	�#��	���	���	��
��	������	��	���������������	�����	��	>��	��	���������"	��	��	���������"3!	?��	���	����	���������	��������	����	�	�	����	�
���������@
������
�" ABCDEFGHDIDJF���	���������	��������	��@
����	����������	�	����	��	�
����"	#�	���������	����	����	��	����	��������������	��������3	����	�	���
�����
�	��������	��	 
�����"	� 	�	�
����	�������	����	�	����	������	������	�������	����	��	�������	����	�	���	 ��	�	���������	�	������	6
���	����	�	��	����	��	��������	�����	���	������	����	�
����	��  	�������	�����	�����������	��	������3�	�
���	��	���
	KL&M	��������	��	����	������	���	��	�������	�����3�	�������� 
����	���	���	����3�	������	�
���	��������	���	���
	��	����	������	��",�����	���������	�����	����	 
�����	�	�����	
�	��  ���	������	�	����	�������	��	�
����	���	����"	�
	�	����	����������	�����	��	���	�
��	����	��  ��
�N	�
������	����	������	��
�����	������	����	������	��������	��������	��	����������	��������	��������	����
���	�������	���	���������	����	������	�	�������	��������	�� ���	���	�����	��



���������	
�����	��������	����	������	����������	��	��	�����
����	�
���������	����������	����������	����	�������	������	�������	���	���
�	��	�����	������������	������	�������	���������	���������	�������	��	���
	�������	��������	���	��������������	����	����	����	 ����	�	�������
	���������	��	��������
	��	���	����������	��
	��	���	������	��������	��	� ����!�����!�������	����	��������	��	��� 	 ���	������	����������	����	 ���	����������	���
	�����	 ��	����	���	������	����	������	�������"�	#������	���	���	#������	$���	%�����������	����������	&'()	���*	�����	���	����������	��	�������	����������������	��	 �������$����
��	����	��	���������	��	�	
���������	�+����������	�����	���	�� 	�����	������������	����	��*�	��	�����	���������������������	,���������	��	�������	��	������	-���	��	����	 ��*	��	��������	"���	����
����	
���������	�� ���	����������
�	��� �������	�	�������	��������.
����	���	���
����	
��!��!
��	 ��*	��	�������
�����	��	������	����	 �����	���	 ����.������	�����*���������	/�������	�������	��	0�������	 ���	���	
����	�����
�	��������	��������
	��	�����	������	��	���	����
����	#������	�� ����!����!����!��
	�������������	���
���	����	1�����	���	��	���	������	��	���	����
	�����	��	���
��	��	��	
���	����	
�����	��+��!�����!����!��
	������
	���������	��� ��
	���	��������	�������	���������	�	����	��	����	�����������	� ������	��,���������	������	���
���	
� �������	��	���	����	��	����	�	�����
�	2����	�	�����!����!����!��
	��	�	���	����*	���
���	 ��	 ���������	��	���	
���!��	������	�������	 ���	��������	��	���	������	����������	��	���	������	�����	��
	����*�
	���	�0��������*	��	���*	���	�	���
�������	3��	��	���	�������4�����	���� �����	���	��	�	������	 ��
��	�����	��	���	����
�����	����	 ���	���	����!����!��
	����	2������	 ��	 ����������
��	�������	�	�����	�����	��	�������	�����	 ���	���������	������	
�� �����	����	��������	�����
	����	
� �	���������	����	��	���	���������	 ���	���	������
�	 ��	 ��	 ��*���	��	���	4��������	����	��+�	
����	��
	�� 	����	 �������
���	���	
��	����.���
���	�������	���*��	��������	,5,�	��
	0,�	��	��*�	�����	�����	���	��������	���������	�����	�����	*�
��	�����4����	���
	����	����	 ��	2�������	�����	����	��	0������	�������	���	����	 ���	��������	��	�����	����	�������	"�	 ��	����������	�����	��	�����	�	*�
	���	�����	���	�������	�	����	��	���
	����������	4����	��
	����	�	
������	��	"�
��	���	 ��	��������
���	���	�������	�����	��
	�������	���	��������	���	 ��	��*���	�	����	������	������	��	��
����	������	�
������������	��������	����
�	 ���
	����	���
	��	 ��*�	�����
	������
	����	�	�� 	������	�������	$���������	 ��	�����	�� �	��
	����	��	�	����������	����	����
	��	
���������	���	4����	��
	���	������	 ���	
����	�*���	����	��
	����
	�����	 ��	��	���	�������������	-�������	6���!��� �	75�� 	���	��������8-�������	6���!��� �	79���*������� �8	���	 ������	���	�������	����	6�:�����	��
	���	��������������	,������	����	75�� 	���	��������8,������	��	��	�����������	����
	��	���	�������	����	��������	4��	���
��
	������������	��	���	;���������	��	<�������	��
������������	��	4����
��	0�������=>?@	ABC	DE>F?GHIJK	LC	?CC@	?EL<�	���
	���	�� 	����	����	�����	"�	���������	������	��	��	�������	����	��������	��
��	�������	���������	��	���������	����	�� ��	 �	
����
	��	����	�������	��	*���	���	3���������	����������	��
	��
����
����	/���	��������	�����������	��	���������������:������	���	����������	���	�������	��	������	��
��	���	���	���������	���	����!���������	���	<������	���	������	��	3���������	��	���
�
	��	������
	����:���	��*�	����	���������	 �	���	��������	���	���������	��0���
���	��
��	��
	������	����	���	
��������	��������	<���	���	3���	��M



����������	
�������������������������������������������	 !"#$!�%�$#&'()*�+,--#.'!./��012��1����3�0��4��1���567789 :,;<#  ##=+ >#$!-%?! @<A.%.<!+BC@:DCE�FGHDH

I1�141JK�LM�N��O���PQ1R�



���� ����	� 
������ ������� ��	� ���� ������� ������ ����	���� ������� ������ ����������� ������		���

���� ! ����� ����"# $%& '(()* +$$,-, ./'012 31'4,4# $,)&5 ,5$,67 (6 16$&00&2$/,0 418%$59 '(() ',65 ,672,62&0 2/0$/4&:; <=>?; <@=A BC@=;; DEF G=>HDHCB> ;GFCD@IA CEB>>FJKF >HL@B@M ABDF@HB>N OPQ B>>=R;I;F@; D= EBSF IJ<FDDF@FT BCCF;; D= BJM HJ<=@ABDH=JN B; >=JK B; HD H; >FKB>UV����� �������WXYZ[\]̂_ ̀Xa bcd cecf  g  hi\j Xk_iĵ_ l ]mXn\ iom  g  p q[aXĵ n̂i_

"# $%& '(()* +$$,-, ./'01231'4,4# $,)&5 , 5$,67 (616$&00&2$/,0 418%$59 '(()rs�t��u�vw x1y& 21$# &z{0(#&&5 0(5$$%&14 |('5 0,5$ #&,4 ,5 ,4&5/0$ (} $%& x4,/7 ,67rs�t��u�v~ �($(24,5%�($(s�t��
m̀[a j]̂ �ma�̂n\ij[ma

��������� ��� ��� ���� ������� ��� �� �������� ��������� �  �¡¡ �¢ £���¤� ¥���¦�� ��� §̈ ¢�©�ª ��¤¡ ¡���¡

������������	���� ������ ��������� ���� u�

5b.05.01



����������	
���
��������������
���	
��
������
������
������
�������������������������		���
��������������	����������������
�����	
���������������		����������� �����
�������!"���#����������������������	��������������"�
	��	���������$��	
�����������������������������%���"� ����"
������������
������������������%�&���'�()�*����*+�,�-�������
�.//�01�234�56//�02�476�1489:1;�<76�=814�>68?�781�@662�8�?3AB7�326�C3?�/0@?8?061�82D�/0@?8?0821;

E2�F65�G?A21509:H�476?6�78I6�@662�J3?6�978//62B61�43�J846?08/1�02�=A@/09�/0@?8?061�02�476�C0?14�C65�566:13C�4701�1=?02B�4782�476?6�78I6�@662�02�476�=?3I0296K1�6240?6�70143?>H�180D�L8J61�<A?:H�D0?6943?�3C�476M0?6943?�3C�<3?3243�N64?3=3/0482�O20I6?104>K1�P624?6�C3?�Q?66�RS=?611032;E2�13A476?2�N82043@8H�/0@?8?>�148CC�78I6�@662�899A16D�3C�@602B�=6D3=70/61�82D�476?6�581�8�98J=80B2�43=?611�JA2090=8/04061�43�D6CA2D�/0@?8?061;E2�G?04017�P3/AJ@08H�476�TPNU�02I6140B846D�8C46?�8�J6J@6?�3C�476�8DI3989>�B?3A=�.94032VP828D83@W6946D�43�@33:1�02�=A@/09�19733/1�029/AD02B�E4K1�U6?C694/>�F3?J8/H�8�@33:�8@3A4�=A@6?4>�82D�16SA8/768/47H�82D�<76�G/A614�R>6H�8�XYZ[�23I6/�@>�F3@6/�U?0\6]502202B�8A473?�<320�N3??0132;�<76�TPNU9329/AD6D�4784�@33:1�D0D�234�J664�476�D6C0204032�3C�970/D�=3?23B?8=7>H�81�581�9/80J6D;

�&�,'���̂ &*̂)�������_

�&�,'���̂ &*̂)�������_



�������������	
�	����	����	��������	����������	������	�������������	������������	����������������	
������������ �
���	�!��������		
������	
�	���
�"���#���
������	�������	��������$�	��������������������	��
�����������	�	��%�	����
�&�&�'������	����(
�	�����	��#�����	#������ �
���	�!����
����	����	����������������������
�(����	�������%	��'���	��������	����� ����������������	
�������������
�����
��)�	�*����	���
��+����������	�
�	�����	��	���	����
������	�	�	
�	�����#	����'��	����'��	
�����	������
���	
�	����
���	�
	#�	�����
���,�����	��
����	�,�������	�-�����%'�$��������.��������
����
�	��/���'0��	����/	
�������0$������	���������	'���	�"���#��1������2�����%�������	��	�����#�����
������	���
�	��	��������		����������
�����	�	
����
���
����	��'���	������%�����#����	��������	��
�	��	�	�����	�������
%��
��������
'�����
������������	�����������
�����,�
����
��������
"���#�����������	����	���	������
���	����
�����,�����	��
����	�,�������	�-�����%'�#���	������ �
���	�!������	����
���	��������	����
�/*	���	����	������#
����������	�	
����������#�#	��
�	
�������	���������	�������
��#	���	���#�%���������������'�����#	�	�
		�����
�	����	�������
�����	������#
������'0��������
���3	���
���
'�#��#��������
�	����	�"���#��1������2�����%���,("�����������/)�	�	���	������4#�
���	���	�#�����
���#�
������	������
����)�	�	���	��	��4#�
���	���	�#�����
���#�
�����	������
��'0������)�����/)�	���#���
����	���������	����	���������5�����	����	�����
������	����	���
���	�
����	�
�%���������
�����	����	���������������	�"���#��1������2�����%������������		�%�����������	���	����
���������'��������	����������	
��	'���	�	�#����
����	���������	����
���	�������%�0
1�����	�����	���	�"���#��1������2�����%����������	
���%�,�
����
���#������	����	��
	��	�
��������	����	�	��	������	������	�	��
���	��	�	
����	�����'���	��	���
�	����,�
����
��6��
��������%�����	����
����	��	����
	����	����		�4���
��
��	7�	�
�����	����	�'������*	
�%�*�����'���	������������	�,�
����
-	�	�����
����2�����%�$���������
����
�	��	��������		�����������		�2������	����	������	��	���
�������%�������	�������
�����������	����	��������
��������
���%4����	��	�	7��	����
������
�#�	��	'������
����
'���	��'��
�����
��
'��
�����
������	�#��������	���
���	��
��
	
���
��'��
������������
���	�����	'������*������

89:;<�=:>9?>@A8�BAC:D

89:;<�=:>9?>@A8�BAC:D



�������������	��
��������������������������������������	���������
����������������������������
����	�����������������	����
�������	���������	������������������	�	������������������	��������	����������������	�
��������������	������	��
���������������	���
��	���	��������������������������	����������	��������������������������	�	��������	�����������������	������������	���	�������������������������������������������	���	���������	��������������������������������������������� �	��	���!�����!�	�����������������������	����	���	��	��"#�������������	���	����$%���������������������������	����������������	��&��������������	�������	����
'���	�������	�����������	���������	�������������!������(��	�����)	�����	�����	���
���	���������������	��*	�����
�������
�������
��	��	��������	����$)��������
�������������������������������"+����",��������	�������	����������	��������	��&���������������	���	����	������	����-��.������
�	����������������	�����������������������
����������������	�/0���1'
-����������������	�
��	���	��������������	�����������	��������������������������������	�����������������������	���������������������������	������	������������������������������������������������������	�������������
���	��*�	�����$*����������������	�������������������������	��	������	����	���������������������	�����������������
��������	���������	������������
�������������	������������	���������������	��������	������������������'������	�������	���������	���	������&�������������	���	2	������������	������� �������������������
'���������	������������
�	���	�����	��������������� ��������������������������������������������	��	����	��������������������	��3!�����
���	����	��������������������� ���������	�����	��
�����������	��������������������$���	�������	�	�	��'�����	���	���
��������������������
�����	������������������$�	���������������������������	������������	����	�������������������������������4�������������	�	�������	��
����	�	�	����������	2��	����������	�������������	������������������	���	�������	�����'�5�������	����������������������	�����������������	�����	�����	���������������
���	�������6

789:;�<9=8>=?@7�A@B9C

789:;�<9=8>=?@7�A@B9C

789:;�<9=8>=?@7�A@B9C



��������	��
������������������������
���������������������������������������������������������
�����������������
������������	���
����������������������
�������������������������
��������
����������������������������������������
����	������

�����������������������
������������������������
������������������������������������������
���������������������������������	�������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������������������� ��������������������������
��������������
��������������	���������������������������������������	�������������!��������������������������������������������������
��������������"����������������#�����!��������������
�������
�������������
��������$�%��#����������������������������������
�����
�����������������������������������������������������&��������	��������������������������������������������	��
����'������(������)�����	������������	����������������
����������
�������
�������������������������������������� ���������������������	��������������������������	����������������������*�����������+�
����������������������
�����������,���������������
����,�����������������
������������
���������������������
�����������������������-����������������������	���������������������������������������
��������
������������������������������������������������!��./..������+��������)�����	�+����������������������0�.12�������������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������./�	����������!��./.0�������������3.2������������

45678�96:5;:<=4�>=?6@

45678�96:5;:<=4�>=?6@



���������	��
������	�������������������������������������������������������������	�����������������������������������������	���������������������������������������������	���������������������������� ���������������������������������������!�	�����"�������������������������������������� ����� ����������������#���������	��������������������� �	�����������������	�������$��������������	��
����%	�����&���������������������������������	�����'������(��
��$(���)������*�	���!�	�����������
��������� ����� ���� ����������������	�������������������������	�����������������'+,,�-./�0./12/03)������*�	����!�	�������������������4�������$��������������������56�	��
���������)������*�	����!�	�������7877��(����������������������������	�������������4�����������7875�������79������������������������	����	�����������������	�������������������� �������������
*�	������	�������������������������������	��
����������������������������������������	����� ����������� ����� ����� �	������� ��������������
��������������������������������	��
������(������������������
���������������������� ���������4���������������������������������������	����&����	������:�4�����������������	������������������������� ��������������������������������������;8����������������������	#������������	��
���������������������� ������������������������������������������������ ������������������������������������������"��������������	���  ������������������������)������*�	����!�	����&����)������������������������������"����������� �������� ��������������;8�����������������������  �����(�����������)������*�	����!�	����&���������������������������������������������������������������������������
!�	��������������	��
������������������������������������������������ ����� ���������������������������������������������� �����������<�����4����������������	#����������<������� �����������������������������

=>?@A�B?C>DCEF=�GFH?I

=>?@A�B?C>DCEF=�GFH?I



���������	
�����
���
�������
���
����
���
����
��������������
����
���
������
������
���������
��������
 �����	���!
 ����
���
������
���
�"
���
����������
�"
����
���
������
��#�	���
��
���
�����
���!$���
�������
"��
�
����
��
��
��#����
"��#
���
����������
��
��������
��
�
�������	��
����
 �����	���!
$�%&%%�
����
���
�������	��
��������
��
��
���#
����	
��#����!
'��
�������
	����
��������
���
�	�
�"
���#��������
����	��"�����
��������
��
��������
������
����
����������
��
���
���	�!(�����
�
����
��
���
�����
��
���
������
������
�������
�������	��
��
%&%%
���
����
��������)
*+,
-.//0,
12
3+,
45667
4110895:;
<=
<>?@A
BCDAEFC
GC
HA?<FA
I<@BEF
J<D
KL<@@E=ME>
NOF
F<KP<@
D@?FDQ
RAJ<D
FEA<P=E>Q
I<@BEF;
JLO
>PE>
P=
STUV;
J<D
<
BCDAEFC
JFPAEF
JLODE
GOOWD
JEFE
X?G@PDLE>
P=
ALE
STYZD;[ZD
<=>
\ZDQ
] _̂̀
ab
cd_ef
gahib
j_̀ ìk�
�
l�������
����"������
�����
���
�������	��
"��
�����#!
$�
���
��������

m_neo
p_neo
_nq
̀̂ i
r_ssdant
cuuf
viwuk̀x
�
l�������
�����
�������
���
�������	��
"��
������������"��#�����!
$�
���
��������!mk_neani
yuzdì
jiìb
̀̂ i
{̂ ub̀
v_euun�
�
l�������
�����
�����
��
���#��
�������
�""�����
����������	��
"��
|�������
���	��	�!}
$�
���
��������!

~����
��������~
�����



�����������	�
��������������������������������������� ��!������"������#���������������������� $������������%&'(��) ����#�$ ���� ������� ���� �������*  ���������������"������#������� �������� ��� ��+(++����������� ,-./0�1.2-3245,�657.8



�����������	
�
�����������	�
������������������	���
	���������������������������������	����������������	
�������������
���������������������
������� ! �"#�$%&�'� &�(')�*�������
�+,�+-./�0-12�+23�4�56789:;8�<:=>6?8�@AAB3�C4D�=E4;;89F8G�HA?�IJKLMN�=A9>89>�O:94<<?A<?:4>8�HA?4F8PQ��R>�C4D�?8>4:98GP

LE8�<6@;:DE8?�AH�STUV2WX/�YZ[V2�YZV\3�4�9A9H:=>:A9�@AAB�AH�]GA;H�̂:>;8?_D�̀A9A;AF68D�>?49D=?:@8G�H?Àabca�>A�abcc�C4D�=E4;;89F8G�HA?�O?4=:D>�<6@;:DE8?PQ�LE8�@AAB�C4D�C:>EG?4C9�G68�>A�;AC�6D4F83�@6>?8̀ 4:9D�474:;4@;8�>E?A6FE�:9>8?;:@?4?d�;A49DPe2UTU�e-TVf�02/�/Zf12fW/�gX-fU-fh-f//2i�4�56789:;8�O@49G8�G8DD:9j8Q�k=4?>AA9�D>?:<l�:9�m?89=E�C4D=E4;;89F8G�HA?�?4=:D>�:̀4F8D�49G�=6;>6?4;�4<<?A<?:4>:A9P�R>�C4D�?8>4:98GPn-fV2�o�p2W-3�4�56789:;8�=À :=�:9�m?89=E�C4D�=E4;;89F8G�HA?�?4=:D>�:̀4F8DP�R>�C4D�?8>4:98GP



���������	�
����		
����������������������������������������������������� ������������!����������"#��$������%������������"
� � � �&'(()*+,-���!����������!!���������!���������������.��$�%�����.�������!��������������������������������������������������������.��������������������"�/�!!�����!�$���0��������������������!����������%��������������������������"�1����0�$������0����$������!!���������.������������������"�1����.�����%�����!����������������2$�����������������.������!�������$��������.��������$����$������!!���3��������������������������!!�����������$�����������������������$������������!!����"�4���������/�!!����$�5�������������!���������!������������������������������6����$�����!������������",789)�:';9�+7';<7+,#��������%��������������.��������3�$�����������%�����������"�=��$�����������$�������������3�������$����������������>���?��@ABB"
CDEF�GHI�JDFKILMNGEDF

9)&'(()*O)O�P9'(�)OQ+'9Q8RSTUVWXUYZ�D[[U\U]̂�_̀ [̂�̂UXTâTb�VcdefT�[c�fTgUffh�\Ti�VTfTj̀U[T�kl�hTÙ �̂cmXÙ ǹUgT

ocgnYpJ̀TU[T�UY�NVVcdY[MdĵV̀njT�mc̀�qYfnXn[TiDYfnYT�NVVT̂^+9)*OQ*<� rs�tuv�wxxyz�'tt{|{�}~w����R�w�{�s�t{yv��{��t{���x����tv��v�t~{�����ut���wxxy�w{���{����{��v���~�t~�v� P��v���ts�v���xsvv���x�t�tuv����xw���{�t�sv{��{��{��v�~�t�x��tuv�P�{~��{����{�tv�7xt���v� (xtx��s��v��{�v����v�������{�u�{t�,u{��x�����v�(xtx���x�t�}{�y�



���������	�
�����

���������������������	�����������	�� ���	���		�����������	������
��
��������������	��������������� �!�"#



�����������	�
�����������	����	���������
������������������������������� �!�""#���!$�����%�&��%�'�##������$�$�(���"���)*�������+��,�-�.�/��$#��)�0�/����1�����2$�(���$&�!��*$&1�3�-�)$��)4��5��� �-��'�6 (��1��/,�21��&&����2$�$/��21�!�������%�&�������2$�$/��21�4$7�0�&����89:��#�����������;$��<�4������<����$���<�2=+�8�=>�?@?8����$�$�(���"��<�$�)�*������� �!���5�)�$�������A�B�&C��##���/,��������*�)C�-�$��,���"�)�)�����%�����<���$��5��������������%#�&$���������&�#1����,�%���)C

��%�&��%�



�����������	���
�������������

����������������������������������� ��!��""����#��$� ����%����%�#&��	
��'(��)*��+�,�-�-.�/����0&

1���2��3��(
��
�2�	��4�5*��
�6�
4�7���
����6����
��1
�*�6
28���9���:;	��<�9���
*=�<���>?@
����
�6�@
�3���������
���6�
����(6��7��.�A��A��6*���4�<�
4�B*���1���2��3������	��C�3
�D��3�
���	��E�
67��6�F����G(��35*�2�0*5�����5�
�2,����1
�*�6
2:
+�H�++ �>8@
������
6��I*�����J����52�>���D�2������
����(6��7��.�A��A��6*���4�<�
4�B*����1���2��3������	��C�3
�D��3�
���	�E�
67��6�F����G(��35*�2�0*5�����5�
�2,����1
�*�6
2,�)*���+�,�-�-.:�K&��	
��'(���H�E�
67��6;�6
2

5b.06.01



������������	�
���	���������
��������������������������
������������
�������������
�������������������������
������������������������������������������������������
���	� !��"����������
������
���
�����������������������
�#��������������
��������������������������$������%
������������������������������
���������������%����������
�������������������
��#& ����
�����������������
�
���������%
������������������������
������������������
��
���������������������������
��������'������
�����
�#�������������������������������$�����������������������������������
�������������������������
�
�����������
�������
�������������
�������������
������������
�#& ���
�%�
����������������###�����%���������������
�������������
�(�����%�����������������������)���������������������%�����������������������������������������������������#����������
����������������������������������������������������'�������
�#*����
����������������
�����
������%����������������
�����
������+�������%�������
����������
�
��������������������������������%
��������������������������#&�����
���������������������������������������'�������
�#,�-���������
����������������
�����������%�������
����������������������������%
������%���������������
�����
�����
����
��#.���!�������-�!������������������
���������������
������������
�������
�����
���
�	��������
�������/
����������
������0����
����,�����%������������������������
�����
�������������������
���������������
�
��#&���
��������������������������������������+�����������
1����������#����
�������������������������������������������������������������������+����������'�������
�#�����������������������
���������
�����������������������������������
��
�
������������������������������������
����������������#& ����������������������%����������
���������������������
���
�����
�
��������������
����-���
���������� ��������������
�������������'�������
�#*�
������������������
��
��������������������������
���������
�
�����
�����
�������
����
�����������
����������
�������$�%������
�����������������
�
�������
��������
���������������������������������
�����������
�������������������������
���
�����
�����
�������������#



���������	�

����������	��������������������	������	�	�������	�����
��������	����
������		���������������	�����	�	���	�������������������������������
���������������	�����	�	���������
������	�	����		����������������
�	�	����	����������������	�
�������������������	��	���	����	����	 	��������������	�����������!����"��#�����������	�����	���
�	����	���
����������������	���������$���	�����%$&	'����()*����*���*���������������������	���+������	 	���	����������	�����������
�
������	���������	�������������������

�	���������������������������������	��,����������,��	���!	��������
������
��������������������������������%��������-'.��������	���������	������	���+������	 	������������������������!����"��$#��	�����	��
������	��	��	��'���	��������/��	����������	��	��	��	������������	���������	��	���������������������	��	����	��&	'��	������
�������#����������	���	��	������������'����	�������	���������������	����	���	�����������'����	��&����'	���������������	��������	�����	��	����������	��	���������	��
�	�������������	��%���������.������	�����	��	�,��0����!�����������
���	�������	����$#�������������������������	�����	������12*�������	�������	���������	����������������	��'����������������	�����

��	��,��	�����	���������%������������������������������������	����	�����������������������$��������������	�������
���	���������%��������#��������	���������	�������	�������������������������������"��$	����	�����	���	����������
��������	�������	�����	����!����������%3��	��.������� �����������	�	����4�$�������'����	������������
������
������������
������������������������	���	�����������'��������������!�%���������������������������	�������*�������	�	��������������*��� ����������������		���	�����������	��������������	�����5����	������
������'���	������������������	���
��	��������� ��/����������������������	����
	��	�� ��	����������-'.���������6�4�/�.�������	�������������3��������.���������/���,����������,������7��	���6���������������	���������	�����������
����	�8)��		����



���������������	
�������������������������������� �!���������������"##$���!�%��&������&�'�(����!�)����*����!�����"#"+������*�����������*�%��&���,��&���-���.��!-��!/�!�'�00��������1��	2 3�4����1��	2��0��5 6����	���������0���	7�8�	����9�1��:� �1:���;��1����



��������������	
����������������������	�����	� 5b.07.01





�



5 C . 0 1 . 0 1  

MAY2023
CEO
REPORT



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

1 

 

 

 

ACCESSIBLE SERVICES 

Accessibility Advisory Committee 
The Manager of Library Services and 
Collection Services presented to the Town 
of Innisfil’s Accessibility Committee on May 
10. She reviewed the Library’s various 
services and collections that support 
accessible access, including: 
 

 
• Centre for Equitable Library Access 

(CELA) services 
• Home Library Delivery Service 
• Large print books, audiobooks, ebooks, 

eaudiobooks 
• DAISY players (audio player for those 

with a visual impairment) 
• Book stands, magnifiers 

 
Attendees were able to handle the devices listed above, and were asked to provide feedback in 
order to help the Library improve accessibility. The response was very positive, and attendees 
suggested the Library explore more ways to promote these services to the public.  
 

National AccessAbility Week 
National AccessAbility Week was celebrated from May 28 to June 3, 2023. With a theme of 
“Disability Inclusion: From Possibilities to Practice” the goal of the week is to highlight: 

• the valuable contributions and leadership of persons with disabilities in Canada 

• the work of allies, organizations and communities that are removing barriers 

• ongoing efforts to become a more accessible and inclusive Canada 
 

Through our 
social media 
channels we 
highlighted a 

number of the Library’s 
accessible services 
including lendable 
devices and Home 
Library Service. 
 
 
  

Speak UP for diversity & inclusion 
 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

2 

 

BUILDING COMMUNITY PARTNERS 

Storytelling Innisfil with Innisfil Toastmasters 

The stage at Town Square hosted its first summer event on Saturday May 27 entitled Innisfil 
Toastmasters Present: Storytelling Innisfil. The Toastmasters are a terrific community partner, 
and the Library was able to provide support through marketing and use of audio equipment and 
setup on the day of the event using our portable sound system. Over the course of two hours, 
eight different speakers shared stories that entertained and educated as numerous residents 
stopped by to listen as they passed through Town Square. 

Organizer Deborah McGrath provided the following message as thanks: “Two little words can't 
fully capture the appreciation we feel for all your hard work and support! The planning, 
promotion and presentation of our 'little event' was so well done! We were pretty jazzed to be 
the inaugural group to 'christen the stage' and we truly hope this will pave the way for other 
groups to do the same.” 

Open UP opportunities to strengthen 

connection & engagement with our community 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

3 

 
Learning about the Innisfil Arts Council 
Twenty-five community members attended the info 
session for the Innisfil Arts Council. With a theme 
of renew and grow, community members were 
invited to learn more about the volunteer-run 
community organization. The Council is seeking 
new members and volunteers to help the 
organization grow and support arts and culture 
events in Innisfil. Curious visitors ranged from 
artists to art lovers and community volunteers. 
Many connections were made and hopefully this 
will be the beginning of a renewed enthusiasm for 
the arts in Innisfil. Mayor Dollin was present and 
noted the importance of the Library as a driver and 
supporter of culture in Innisfil. Numerous 
participants commented that "this Library is the 
best" and "is truly the heart of the community". 
 

 

COMMUNITY IN-REACH AND OUTREACH 

Nantyr Shore Secondary School Visit  

This month, two English as a Second Language (ESL) classes from Nantyr Shores Secondary 
School embarked on an educational field trip to the Lakeshore Branch of the Library. The 
purpose of the visit was to provide ESL learners with an immersive learning experience and 
enhance their familiarity with the resources available in a Library setting. To begin the visit, 
Library Staff toured the students throughout the space, highlighting areas of interest such as the 
Troy Scott Community Fridge, EarlyON resources, Seed Library and the Library of Things. 
Students were excited to learn that they could borrow video games, as well as board games and 
gardening tools.  
 

After the tour, students headed into the HackLAB to create customized bag tags using Inkscape 
and the laser cutter. This group was extremely engaged throughout the design process and 
enjoyed watching the laser cut out their final products. At the end of the visit, one student 
approached Library Staff to share that this was the first time he’d ever been to a Library. He 
shared, “When my teacher told us we were coming to the Library, I thought it would be terrible. I 
don’t want boring books but this place is good. I like the video games and the cutting space 
(HackLAB). I will be back again!”  
 

Since this visit, four students have returned weekly to use the HackLAB and complete their 
volunteer service hours. 

 

  



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

4 

School and Child Care Centre Outreach 
 

This spring we were able to offer Library visits to local schools and child care centers for special 
events and storytimes. We attended events at Alcona Glen Elementary School and Cookstown 
Central Public School to share Library resources as well as activities to help little ones get ready 
for kindergarten. Staff handed out frisbees and brochures to let families know about upcoming 
programs and events. We attended Goodfellow Public School’s 50th Anniversary and Lake 
Simcoe Public School’s Community Event as well.  These events are a great way to connect 
with families in the community and share information and resources, as well as highlight 
programs and items available to borrow with a Library card, like our robots, storytime kits, toy 
kits, and Library of Things.  We often see children who recognize staff from Library programs 
and they love to come and share how excited they are to start school and how much they love 
Library programs. 
 

The Library visited local child care centres Quiet Waters Montessori Academy, Innisfil 
Montessori, Treasure Garden Childcare Centre, and Eh to Zed Preschool Canada. Additionally, 
two preschool classes from Simcoe Child Care Services walked to our Lakeshore branch for 
storytime visits. The children and child care providers all enjoy the thirty minutes of stories, 
rhymes, and songs, and often try to convince the visiting programmer to stay longer!  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Library visiting the 

50th Anniversary 

Celebration at 

Goodfellow P.S.  



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

5 

 

 

 

 

 

OUR STORIES INNISFIL 

Cookstown Agricultural Society 
Thanks to a generous donation from the Cookstown Agricultural Society, the Our Stories Innisfil 
database now features 122 new photos and documents, primarily from the 1990s, showcasing 
countless memories of parades, fall fairs, and competitions that took place on the Cookstown 
Fairgrounds as well as right in the heart of downtown Cookstown.  
 

These images are an important documentation of Cookstown’s past, particularly in preserving 
memory of what the Fairgrounds looked like before the construction of the Cookstown Branch of 
the Library, as well as keeping a record of the Cookstown Agricultural Society’s own history and 
membership. The Society has been a long-time supporter and valued partner of the Library, 
and it is a great privilege to be entrusted with the preservation of these materials.  
 

Both the Society and the Library are excited to share these records with the Innisfil community 
and beyond, and promotion has already begun on the Our Stories social media pages on 
Facebook and Instagram.  
 

 
Tractor parade on the Cookstown Fairgrounds, 1997 

 

 

Build UP our reputation as a trusted  

community asset 

http://ourstoriesinnisfil.ca/islandora/object/ourstories%253A2650970


5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

6 

LIBRARY OF THINGS 

Strategy and Planning 

A committee was struck to create an organized plan for the Libraries collection of non-traditional 
items and equipment, known as the Library of Things [LoT]. The Committee is made up of 
Librarians from the Collections, Library Services, Programming, and Creative Making and 
Discovery departments, and their first task was to develop a Library of Things Strategy (see 
Appendix B) to guide decisions around the collection.  
 

The LoT collection is organized into six categories for ease of management, and cataloguing 
and discoverability purposes: 
 

• Coding and Robots 
• Assistive Devices 
• Lendable Tech 
• Digital Media Equipment 
• Toys and Instruments 
• Outdoor and Leisure 

 
The primary goals of the LoT collection are to enable access to the Library’s various services 
and programs, and to support ongoing independent learning. The Committee is reviewing the 
Library’s current holdings, and will determine if any of the items/equipment are at the end of 
their usable life and require replacement or deselection, as well as considering the addition of 
new items. They are also looking for opportunities to add books to kits, or otherwise make 
connections to the Library’s collection. Future tasks will include working with the 
Communications Team to develop a promotional strategy, and to make the LoT collection 
browsable in the branches. 
 

MORE eBOOKS 

Cantook Station French Language ebook Platform 

In May, the Library launched a new French language ebook platform, Cantook Station. The 
platform offers access to over 9,000 digital books and audiobooks in French, for all audiences, 
including well-known Québecois and European authors as well as translations of popular 
English-language titles. It is available both through a web browser or the app Aldiko Next. The 
platform is entirely managed by Ontario Library Service (OLS), who also selects all of the 
content. The Library pays an annual subscription fee for access.  
 

Due to the loss of the rotating multilingual collection formerly offered through the County, the 
Library is trying to increase our multilingual offerings in our digital ebooks, particularly for an 
adult audience. Cantook Station, along with new French, Spanish, Russian, and Portuguese 
titles added last year to cloudLibrary, the Library’s primary ebook platform, are ways the Library 
is providing material to engage with these audiences. 
 

  

https://www.innisfilidealab.ca/the-library-of-things/
https://innisfilidealab.cantookstation.com/


5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

7 

 

 

 

COMMUNITY HACKLAB PROJECTS 

Creativity in the HackLAB Saves the Day  

Library Staff continue to see customers using the HackLAB space and equipment for a wide 
variety of purposes, from creating custom art projects to solving a problem. This month, an avid 
HackLAB user had a problem. While installing a new door lock, he’d drilled a hole that was too 
big and realized that his door was not thick 
enough to complete the project. He 
reached out to Library Staff with an idea to 
3D print a plate that could help build out the 
lock and make it usable. Working with 
Staff, he created a design in TinkerCAD, a 
free 3D design website, and then was able 
to print the item on the 3D printer using the 
highest quality print.  
 
After the installation, he shared that “the 
fancy fingerprint door locks I bought only 
work with doors that are 6mm thicker than 
my doors.  I discovered this after drilling the 
larger doorknob holes that they also 
need.  Quite a pickle.  But solved with the 
plates you printed for me! Thanks for 
saving the day! The HackLAB staff are the 
best!”  
 

 

 

 
The finished project, complete 

with 3D printed plate. 

 

 
  

Raise UP the Library’s identity as an  

innovative hub 

https://www.tinkercad.com/


5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

8 

COOKSTOWN BRANCH REFRESH 

Children’s Area 
New shelving was installed at the Cookstown Branch in order to reorganize the children’s area 

and collections. The DVD collection was moved to the last row of the adult collection to create 

the space needed to expand the footprint of the children’s collection. To add the new shelving, 

Staff had to shift tens of thousands of books - the entire collection at this Branch, including adult 

materials. This was done over the course of two days, a month apart. The new furniture is 

mobile and easy to move, and will allow children’s programs to be run in the Library space, 

instead of the Community Room where they were previously held. Running storytimes and other 

programs in the Library space means children and caregivers will be surrounded by books, 

creating a high amount of exposure to various displays at all reading levels and building comfort 

with the Library space, setting children up for a lifetime of reading.  

 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

9 

The new layout and shelves also create the much needed shelf space for faceout display of 

children’s materials, something which has proven to be highly effective with enticing children to 

select their own books. Proper display stands will be added soon, ensuring materials are not 

damaged and are merchandised to the Library’s standards.  

 

Tables and Chairs 
Some public seating and tables were at the end of their life, with visible damage, and were 

replaced this month. The large wooden table was replaced with two smaller tables, allowing 

more flexibility with configurations. The lounge seating was also replaced, and side tables 

added which double as a laptop stand. The built-in benches on either side of the fireplace were 

converted into storage, and cushions added to make them a more inviting place to sit.  

 

 

 

 

 

  



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

10 

INNISFIL IS FOR THE BIRDS 

Centennial Park Bird Walk with Kevin Shackleton 

Library programming went outside with a fully packed Bird Walk on World Migratory Bird Day. It 
was a perfect day for bird watching: a warm, spring morning with the sun shining, just a light 
breeze, and the birds chirping away! Birding expert, Kevin Shackleton led us through Centennial 
Park in Innisfil informing participants about birding apps to download in order to detect the 
species and pointing out certain ones we saw and heard. He also shared a bird species list to 
hand out to participants so they could check off ones they saw during the walk.  
 

 
 
Participants from all walks of life joined us, including couples, singles, and families. Many 
participants came equipped with binoculars and cameras. They asked lots of questions and 
there was some great discussion about various species of birds and the kinds of set-ups people 
had in their yards like bird feeders, etc. Participants were delighted to see orioles, Canada 
geese and their goslings, red-winged blackbirds and many other species. Many of the 
participants shared how thankful they were for this event, and that they are so excited for the 
next bird walk. 
 
Birds play an important role in the ecosystem. With our emphasis on developing pollinator 

gardens and educating the public, there is a growing demand for hands-on engagement 

opportunities regarding nature and conservation issues. 

 

 

 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

11 

 

 

SENIOR OUTREACH 

Meeting Seniors Where They Are 
May was filled with invaluable visits to our neighbours and community partners; serving seniors 

where they live and gather outside of the Library spaces.  

• Coffee Chat at Sandycove Acres 
Library Staff attended the monthly Sandycove Acres Coffee Chat to talk about all the 
Seniors activities available through the Library. After the presentation, many attendees 
came up to the Library’s table to ask questions and collect tip sheets for our databases 
and digital service offerings. One attendee shared that “the Library has saved me these 
last two years”, and continued to share how much she loves Tinkershops, and our other 
adult programs. An estimated 125 Sandycove residents were in attendance, and many 
participants filled out Library card sign-up paperwork on the way out. 
 

• YMCA Innisfil Silver Club – Terracotta 
Pot Painting  
Library Staff guided the group members 
through a perfect springtime craft with 
terracotta pot painting. Each participant 
thought carefully about how the painted 
pot would fit in and suit their garden. This 
activity provided a supportive 
environment for seniors to connect with 
each other over shared interests; 
including complementing their artistic 
skills and sharing tips for gardening.  
 

• Lakeside Retirement – Watercolour 
Painting  
Staff at Lakeside Retirement Home were 
very supportive, and made sure to help 
all of their residents who had registered 
by assisting them down to the program 
area. The programmers had anticipated 
going through the steps of a painting all 
together, but the group was more 
interested in doing their own thing and 
exploring the medium. Most participants were fairly new to watercolour, except for one 
who used to paint all the time, so she was happy to get back into it. The group was so 
focused it was often pretty quiet, but at the end everyone had lovely paintings and 
shared how much fun they had. A few of them asked when we would be back as we had 
really made their day!  

 

 

Light UP pathways to personal &  

professional growth 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

12 

SUPPORTING LIFELONG LEARNING 

Crafting for Humanity 

Throughout the month of May Crafting for Humanity saw high attendance numbers, with many 
registrants on the waitlist. Across 3 program sessions: 24 Library customers were registered, 
and there were an additional 20 customers on the waitlisted. 

In support of the Yarn Bombing 
art display to raise awareness 
for DeafBlind Ontario, we ran a 
session devoted to crocheting 
12 inch squares. Participants 
were given a variety of 
patterns, ranging in skill levels 
and designs, so that everyone 
could pick one that they liked to 
create a square to donate. 
Most of the group picked a 
textured heart design, as they 
loved the idea of including 
texture in a project that is to 
raise awareness for DeafBlind 
Ontario. Everyone in this group 
had crocheted before, so some 
patrons just needed a bit of 
help reading the pattern or 

figuring out a certain stitch, but overall everyone was chatting happily while creating their 
squares. They talked about other programs they are enjoying at the Library, other craft projects 
they are working on, and other times they like to meet up and craft together. One participant 
even did a little dance and sang a little happy song when she realized she was understanding 
the pattern and could see the heart starting to form in her work! 
 

Later in the month, two members of 
Bridget's Bunnies visited the session 
to crochet bunnies and talk about 
how their organization helps support 
families going through pregnancy 
and infant loss with their comfort 
kits. We had full registration, and a 
few of the ladies took extra materials 
home to make more than one 
bunny. There was lots of great 
discussion while participants 
crocheted, and some were asking 
how they could get more involved 
with the organization, and perhaps 
offer their own "bunny making" 
events. We will definitely want to run 
this program again and get more 
bunnies donated to their comfort 
kits! 

https://www.bridgetsbunnies.ca/


5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

13 

Digital Literacy Training for Seniors 

Our community's need for technical assistance seems to be increasing. Our Confidently 
Computing sessions regularly have full registration. These programs focus on developing the 
basics of computer skills, and in May we offered Intro to Computers. This cohort of participants 
were novices, and jokingly referred to themselves as “Computer Experts”. The skills gained 
were all about the fine motor skills required to click, double click, and, click & drag their way 
around a desktop computer. The relaxed environment of these programs allow programming 
Staff to adapt the program to the needs and interests of its participants. Since some of the 
participants were interested in learning more about tablets, we brought out a few of our 
programming iPads to show how to send and receive iMessages. The development of 
technology confidence in our regular users is evident; a long-time Library program attendee 
spent some one-on-one time sharing their tips and tricks for using a calendar app on their tablet 
with a newer participant. 
 
Tech Help is our one-on-one 
technology support session, 
offered at both the Lakeshore 
and Cookstown branches. 
The audience for this popular 
program is primarily seniors, 
and each session brings 
unique questions, problems 
and solutions. Sessions are 
often filled quickly, with long 
waitlists. 
 

During one session, an 
attendee asked about text on 
her phone, wondering if when 
typing on her phone, she needed to keep the text from overflowing over into the margin (as one 
would when writing with pen and paper). As a result, she was adding line breaks every time she 
got close to the edge of the text message’s input box. This was an interesting example of how 
many individuals try to take what they know about the physical world into the digital realm. She 
was also asking about storage and making e-transfers. We were able to give her the assistance 
she needed. She mentioned a couple of times how silly she felt for asking these questions but 
we assured her that there are no silly questions. Interactions like this demonstrate the need for 
building technological confidence in our community. Ultimately, Library Staff are able to support 
our customers in their digital learning journeys, ensuring our seniors community members have 
the skills they need in the digital world. 
 

In an unusual Tech Help session, the attendee discovered she was receiving messages on 
behalf of an American country radio station on her Facebook Messenger app. Staff discovered 
that she was mistakenly added as an admin for the radio station's Facebook page resulting in 
numerous notifications and messages intended for the radio station. Fortunately, we were able 
to help her regain control by removing her as an admin, preventing any potential mishaps for the 
radio station. This incident highlighted the value of our library in resolving unique situations and 
providing the necessary support. 

  



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

14 

SPRING AUTHOR SERIES WRAP-UP 

Jessica Hamilton and Catherine Hernandez 

In May the Spring Author Series concluded, following talks from Gail Sweeney in March, Jessica 
Hamilton in April, and Catherine Hernandez in May. Across these 3 events, 75 attendees got to 
dig into some interesting books! 
 

In April, Jessica Hamilton joined us from Orillia to chat about her thriller, What You Never Knew. 
Jessica was delightful, and recounted the many ups and downs of the publishing world, and 
what it took to get this book to readers. As the story goes, the manuscript for this book helped 
her snag a literary agent, but after shopping it around to multiple publishers, she was on the 
brink of dropping the novel for good, before being picked up by Crooked Lane Books. By the 
time she found a publisher, she had already finished a draft of her second book, which she was 
then able to also have published by Crooked Lane Books shortly after the first. She also 
discussed how the novel was a way for her to come to terms with being estranged from her 
mother, and get out some of the thoughts and feelings that could not otherwise be easily 
expressed. Attendees were interested to find out more about how the novel's structure came to 
be, and what makes a good ghost story! 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jessica 
Hamilton 
reads a 
passage. 

 
 
In May, award-winning author Catherine Hernandez Zoomed in to give us an insightful and wide 
ranging author talk. She shared many details about her writing process for her novel The Story 
of Us, and how her goal was to focus on the story her ancestors wanted her to tell, and have 
that process reflected in the narrative. In her book, the narrator is the protagonist's unborn child, 
who relates to their future mother's life through the memories of their maternal ancestors. It 
makes for an affecting narrative, which many participants connected with. During the Q&A 
period we were able to dig a little deeper into Catherine's motivation for writing the book, and 
how she feels about the representation of her characters. She was very generous with her 
answers, and I believe everyone left with much to think about. 

 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

15 

EARLY LITERACY FUN 

Drop-in Family Storytimes 

In May, the Library has continued to offer Drop-in Family Storytimes at the Cookstown branch 
on Wednesdays, Stroud branch on Fridays, Lakeshore branch on Saturdays, as well as starting 
our outdoor storytimes that rotate to different parks around Innisfil after the May long weekend. 
The drop-in format allows families the flexibility to participate in Library programs without pre-
registering and to attend different locations depending on what works best for them. These 
storytimes are often well attended, with an average of 20-30 people at each one, with our 
Saturday Lakeshore storytimes sometimes attracting more than 50 people into the Children’s 
area! We have some families and home child care centres that drive to different locations to 
participate every week, and they tell us that the Library is an important part of their weekly 
routine.  
 
Families often tell us how they heard about our Drop-in Storytimes from other family members 
or friends, our brochure or other registered programs. Some families visited our Toddler 
Tuesday storytime at Tanger Outlet Mall, then went to the Cookstown branch the next day to get 
Library cards and attend Family Storytime there! We have some participants that attend Drop-In 
Storytimes with their daycares on one day, then with their parents on Saturdays, and are very 
comfortable in the space and with the Staff even though they are very young. For our first 
Outdoor Storytime at Town Square, we had almost 40 participants join us for stories, singing, 
and dancing. Lots of families came up to say thank you before they headed into the Lakeshore 
branch to explore and pick out some materials to borrow. 
 

 

  
 

  



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

16 

STAFF DEVELOPMENT & TRAINING 

Mental Health First Aid 
All Staff attended a Mental Health First Aid training course offered by St. John’s Ambulance. 
The course delivered material related to recognizing stressors and mental health crises in 
colleagues and others. Mental health supports continue to be a priority to ensure that Library 
Staff have access to the appropriate resources, training and support systems for mental well-
being. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

17 

APPENDIX A: 

Level UP! Communications Insights 

Media Outreach & Social Media Response 

DATE 
PUBLISHED 

NEWS 
OUTLET 

TITLE 

May 4, 2023 Simcoe.com Bird Walks and Author Talks: The Innisfil ideaLAB & Library 
suggests 5 things to do in May 

May 8, 2023 Barrie Today 
'Showcase our town pride': Pitch-In Day returning to Innisfil 

May 11, 2023 Simcoe.com Innisfil holding annual Pitch-In Day community cleanup on 
May 13 

May 14, 2023 Simcoe.com 
Award-winning Innisfil Farmers' Market returning to Stroud, 
and many favourite vendors will be there 

May 15, 2023 Bradford 
Today 

Keep it clean: Innisfil residents come together for Pitch-In 
Day 

May 19, 2023 Innisfil Today Neighbourhood Nights returning to Innisfil  

May 19, 2023 Innisfil Today Innisfil Library hosting arts, storytelling events 

May 23, 2023 Innisfil Today 
Innisfil Arts Council invites you to tonight's meet and greet  

May 25, 2023 Orillia Today 
Uber remains in the driver's seat in Innisfil despite some 
bumps 

May 25, 2023 Innisfil Today 
Dairy, eggs now being accepted for Troy Scott Community 
Fridges 

https://www.simcoe.com/life/bird-walk-and-author-talks-innisfil-idealab-and-library-suggests-5-things-to-do-in/article_5e6092d4-5cbe-510c-ba78-1e8dc8298d6e.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/bird-walk-and-author-talks-innisfil-idealab-and-library-suggests-5-things-to-do-in/article_5e6092d4-5cbe-510c-ba78-1e8dc8298d6e.html
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/showcase-our-town-pride-pitch-in-day-returning-to-innisfil-6950476
https://www.simcoe.com/news/innisfil-holding-annual-pitch-in-day-community-cleanup-on-may-13/article_f37a906b-9ee8-58a4-9f15-94441a0e84b1.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/innisfil-holding-annual-pitch-in-day-community-cleanup-on-may-13/article_f37a906b-9ee8-58a4-9f15-94441a0e84b1.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/award-winning-innisfil-farmers-market-returning-to-stroud-and-many-favourite-vendors-will-be-there/article_cc30164c-2852-5883-b6ec-a59f34b0e1f9.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/award-winning-innisfil-farmers-market-returning-to-stroud-and-many-favourite-vendors-will-be-there/article_cc30164c-2852-5883-b6ec-a59f34b0e1f9.html
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/keep-it-clean-innisfil-residents-come-together-for-pitch-in-day-7001631
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/keep-it-clean-innisfil-residents-come-together-for-pitch-in-day-7001631
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/neighbourhood-nights-returning-to-innisfil-7019410
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/innisfil-library-hosting-arts-storytelling-events-7026743
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/innisfil-arts-council-invites-you-to-tonights-meet-and-greet-7031844
https://www.orilliamatters.com/local-news/uber-remains-in-the-drivers-seat-in-innisfil-despite-some-bumps-7050776
https://www.orilliamatters.com/local-news/uber-remains-in-the-drivers-seat-in-innisfil-despite-some-bumps-7050776
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/dairy-eggs-now-being-accepted-for-troy-scott-community-fridges-7049937
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/dairy-eggs-now-being-accepted-for-troy-scott-community-fridges-7049937


5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

18 

May 27, 2023 Innisfil Today 
Gallery: Innisfil Toastmasters Club members share their 
stories 

May 30, 2023 Innisfil Today 
Neighbourhood Nights begins this evening in Ward 2 

May 31, 2023 Innisfil Today 
Tanger Outlets donates $3K to Troy Scott Community 
Fridges 

 

  

https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/innisfil-toastmasters-club-members-share-their-stories-7060918
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/innisfil-toastmasters-club-members-share-their-stories-7060918
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/neighbourhood-nights-begins-this-evening-in-ward-2-7062505
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/tanger-outlets-donates-3k-to-troy-scott-community-fridges-7074077
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/tanger-outlets-donates-3k-to-troy-scott-community-fridges-7074077


5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

19 

Facebook Insights (May 1 to 31, 2023) 

FOLLOWERS # OF 
POSTS 

TOTAL ENGAGEMENT TOTAL IMPRESSIONS 

3,603 (Followers) 
3,105 Page Likes 

66 during 
this period 

885 engagements (769 
reactions, 65 shares, 51 
comments) 

Posts earned 28.9K 
impressions over this period 
(number of times our posts 
have entered a person's screen) 

Top Organic Post (based on reach): 
Date, May 17, 2023 23.6K Reach 

 

 

 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

20 

Twitter Insights (May 1 to 31, 2023) 

FOLLOWERS # OF 
TWEETS 

TOTAL ENGAGEMENT TWEET IMPRESSIONS 

1,539 
  

47 during 
this period 

68 engagements (44 likes, 
17 retweets, 7 quote tweets, 
0 reply) 

17 Mentions 

10.4K impressions over this 
period (number of times users 
saw our tweets) 

Top Organic Post (based on reach): 
Top Tweet earned 715 impressions 

  

 

  



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

21 

Instagram Insights (May 1 to 31, 2023) 

FOLLOWER
S 

# OF POSTS TOTAL LIKES & 
REACH 

TOTAL COMMENTS 

1,944 63 during this 
period 

7,862 accounts 
reached. 

1,384 likes.  

19 comments in total on 
content posted during this 
period 

Top Post (based on engagement): May 7, 2023  446 Reach 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

22 

Top Reel (based on engagement): May 26, 2023  2.7K Reach 

 

 

  



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

23 

APPENDIX B: 

Library of Things  

Strategy 

 

INTRODUCTION & GUIDING PRINCIPLES 

The Innisfil ideaLAB & Library provides access to a collection of items beyond the traditional 
formats of print, audio, and video. The Library of Things enables people to extend their learning 
beyond the walls of the Library and Programs, and helps to combat inequities of access that 
arise from socio-economic factors.  
 

The Library of Things is not a static collection, and must grow and adapt to the changing needs 
of its users and the evolving Programs and Services offered by the Library.  
 

The Library holds the following principles and guiding documents as priorities in the 
development and implementation of the Library of Things Strategy and related actions:  
 

 

• The goals set out in the Library’s Strategic Plan will advise selection and management of 
the Library of Things collection 

• We are committed to the principles of equity, diversity and inclusion, and the Library’s 
Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion Policy will advise planning 

• We actively support the development of strong print literacy and digital literacy skills 
• We follow a human-centred approach that prioritizes user behaviours and needs 
• The Library is committed to sustainability and minimizing our environmental impact 

 

https://www.innisfilidealab.ca/strategic-plan-2/
https://www.innisfilidealab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/E-Equity-Diversity-Inclusion-Policy-E-2022-17.pdf


5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for May 2023 

24 

STRATEGIC GOALS & ACTIONS      

Build a collection that 

meets the needs of 

customers and 

supports the Library’s 

services and programs  

1. Develop a long term plan for growing the Library of 
Things Collection  
 

2. Create a standardized procedure for evaluating new 
items before adding them to the Collection 

 

3. Conduct an inventory of the current Collection and 
assess the value of these items in meeting the 
Library’s goals   

 

Make it easy for  

customers to access  

and borrow items in  

the Collection 

1. Develop a standardized cataloguing and processing 
procedure for adding new items 

 

2. Create a promotional plan to inform customers about 
the items available and how to access them 

 

3. Make instructions and tutorials on using items in the 
Collection readily available to users  

 

Ensure Staff have the 

skills and knowledge 

necessary to manage 

and promote the 

collection 

1. Develop a Staff training plan  

2. Make resources that support the Collection easily 
available to Staff 

 

 

 



7a.01.01 

Municipal Council Report 

 

 

May 10, 2023 Council Meeting 

● Watch the meeting. 

● The Library Board delivered a presentation highlighting some achievements and the 

completion of the economic and social impact study. The presentation was well-received 

and the Mayor noted that this Board has Council’s full support. 

● Amanda Fellows delivered a presentation regarding the Stopping Harassment and 

Abuse by Local Leaders Act - Bill 5 Women of Ontario Say No. Council endorsed the Bill 

and expressed support for it. 

● Town Staff delivered a presentation about the Innisfil Beach Park Implementation Plan. 

Read the full staff report DSR-058-23 Innisfil Beach Park Implementation Plan PKS374 

Decision making on this item was deferred until May 24, 2023. 

● The plan to consolidate Fire Services between the Town of Innisfil and Bradford West 

Gwillimbury was dissolved. DSR-071-23 Fire Consolidation Update 

● Plans for the 2023 summer season at Innisfil Beach Park were updated, DSR-059-23 

Innisfil Beach Park (IBP) 2023 Seasonal Update Highlights to include: 

○ Creation of a permanent dog beach 

○ Dogs will be permitted in most municipal parks 

○ The Pride crosswalk will be removed, but installation of a new landscape feature 

including a flagpole dedicated to the pride flag will be installed in May 

○ Pop-up shops and Music in the Park will return 

○ Sierra’s Chair, accessible beach wheelchair) will once again be available 

● Proclamations for the month of May included: International Day Against Homophobia & 

Transphobia (May 17), National Public Works Week (May 21-27), and National 

AccessAbility Week (May 28-June 3). 

 
May 24, 2023 Council Meeting 

● Watch the meeting. 

● A number of delegations, presentations, and petitions were received by Council from 

members of the public, including: 

○ Rotary Club of Innisfil presented to Council about their Peace Pole initiative. The 

Lakeshore Branch is a location for the installation of one of the artistic poles. 

Rotary Club Peace Poles Presentation 

○ Innisfil Accessibility Advisory Committee delivered their annual presentation, 

spoke about the Breaking Down Barriers awareness program and highlighted 

Magaretta (Champion) Park as an all-inclusive park, with barrier free amenities. 

○ Khuram Tunio re: a petition to reinstate the use of BBQs at Innisfil Beach Park. 

○ Michael Hayes re: street light installation on Limerick Street 

○ Donna Orsatti re: support for the Innisfil Beach Park Implementation Plan 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_OFip-NHs1Q&t=1490s
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/1FB21490215B4AF49A924743B5172A09-2023.05.01%20A.Fellows%20Delegation%20Info%20-%20Women%20of%20On.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/ED55C1C18D4E4FCD9B8306BA1DA38F4A-Innisfil%20Beach%20Park%20Implementation%20Plan%20PKS374.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/55D554BFD3B945C686418C86E4CD90C7-Fire%20Consolidation%20Update.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/84BF76ACCB964F1F8189F3CDE0ED0676-Innisfil%20Beach%20Park%20(IBP)%202023%20Seasonal%20Update.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/84BF76ACCB964F1F8189F3CDE0ED0676-Innisfil%20Beach%20Park%20(IBP)%202023%20Seasonal%20Update.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=yNGBtcRyPv4&t=7546s
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/6403FD7B6318432A91336AD836DDA3CA-2023.05.24%20Rotary%20Club%20Peace%20Poles%20presentation%20(I.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/8130C824A7ED437E8C046512ECA0C941-2023.05.24%20IAAC%20Annual%20Presentation%20to%20Council%20Fin.pdf


7a.01.01 

Municipal Council Report 

 

● The following community members were appointed to the Electoral Engagement 

Advisory Committee (EEAC): 

○ Steve Fishman 

○ Karen Hazlett 

○ Juli Lin 

○ Anne Smith 

○ Dana Stott 

○ Bill Van Berkel 

○ LeAnn Lloyd 

● The following community members were appointed to the Ward Boundary Review 

Ad-Hoc Committee (WBRAHC): 

○ Rob Nicol 

○ Donna Orsatti 

○ Emma Perry 

○ Bill Van Berkel 

○ Paul Wardlaw 

● Proclamations for the month of June included: Innisfil Pride Month, National Indigenous 

History Month and National Deafblind Awareness Month. 

● Council revisited the Innisfil Beach Park Implementation Plan that was deferred from the 

previous meeting. There was discussion surrounding the addition of another road in and 

out of the park. A motion to amend the recommendation to request Staff to revisit the 

road, the motion was defeated. The final decision was to approve the 20 year plan and 

to authorize Staff to commence the design for Phase 1. 

● Council carefully considered the Innisfil Transit - 2022 Results and Update report which 

included trip and ridership data over the past year. 2022 saw over 94 000 rides with 

Innisfil Transit, and it was recommended that the partnership with Uber continue. The 

motion to continue the partnership with Uber was carried, as were amendments to the 

motion to include research of a transit hub in Cookstown and to undertake an additional 

transit survey as a component of the Transit Master Plan. 

● Council received 2022 Final Operating & Capital Results 

● Council received an Orbit Development Application Status Update outlining the details 

of a series of development applications received by Town staff, including: 

○ 1. Application for Site Plan Control for the proposed GO Station on lands 

municipally known as 1350 6th line (SP-2022-024); 

○ 2. Application for Site Plan Control for a mixed-use development project on lands 

municipally known as 1214 6th line (SP-2023-003); 

○ 3. Application for Draft Plan of Subdivision to create 7 Blocks and 2 streets on 

lands north and west of the 6th Line/GO Transit track/line (D12-2023-001); and 

○ 4. Application for a Redline Revision to a Draft Plan Approval on lands north and 

east of the 6th Line/GO transit track/line (D12-2013-002). 

● Deputy Mayor Fowler provided a notice of motion for consideration at the June 7 Council 

meeting to recommend the refreshment trailer (food truck) by-laws be revisited to allow 

for more trailers and more locations. 

https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/F60870602DA042EAB0C14646531A71D6-Innisfil%20Transit%20-%202022%20Results%20and%20Update.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/4C0BAF05464B44BA9E13573538F557FF-2022%20Final%20Operating%20_%20Capital%20Results.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/A0E0B8F07F8448DC89DD478A55CBF722-Orbit%20Development%20Application%20Status%20Update.pdf


7a.01.01 

Municipal Council Report 

 

 

News from the Community 

● New awards honour Black, multicultural businesses in Simcoe County 

● Innisfil Fashion Market season kicks off Mother's Day weekend 

● Firefighters wanted! Local town council approves 20 new hires 

● South Simcoe police opening their doors this weekend 

● 'No bad blood': Innisfil council snuffs out fire department merger 

● Town introduces community benefits charge 

● Move to Give campaign raises $74K for YMCA of Simcoe/Muskoka 

● DMZ Innisfil launches new programs to transform local businesses 

● Keep it clean: Innisfil residents come together for Pitch-In Day 

● Innisfil supports bill to end harassment from councillors 

● Innisfil girl to be sworn in as honorary paramedic next week 

● Innisfil resident heading to Italy for inline hockey's World Cup 

● Innisfil begins development of three-year economic plan 

● Dairy, eggs now being accepted for Troy Scott Community Fridges 

● Uber still in the driver's seat in Innisfil 

● Town seeking feedback on strategic plan 

● 'It's difficult': South Simcoe police in need of more officers 

● 'Less wiggle room': Innisfil finds itself in the red for 2022 

● Triton Music Ensemble's triumph 'is for the entire community' 

● Music festival helps RVH Foundation to the tune of $16K 

● No timeline for new GO station in Innisfil 

● 'Broad strokes': Council OKs Innisfil Beach Park revitalization 

● Innisfil Community Foundation funds ongoing palliative support with Hospice Simcoe 

● 'Really fun': School project sees Innisfil student open another Little Free Library 

● Award-winning Innisfil Farmers' Market returning to Stroud, and many favourite vendors 

will be there 

● 'They get to tell their stories': Innisfil's Brian Everett captures his memories in book 

created with Senior Wish Association 

● South Simcoe municipalities may be asked to kick in funding for Museum on the Boyne 

● Q&A with 'The Cuban' film director Sergio Navarretta and why he loves Innisfil 

● 'Love for All, Hatred for None': Ahmadiyya Muslim Women’s Association hosts interfaith 

symposium in Cookstown 

 
News from the County and Province: Upper-tier Municipality Review 

● Simcoe County up for review following Peel Region break up 

● ‘We need to deliver a clear message’: Simcoe County council responds to proposed 

Ontario legislation 

● 'High-growth pressures': Simcoe County among upper-tier municipalities to go under 

Ontario's microscope 

● Region of Peel to be dissolved by province, Brampton and Mississauga and Caledon to 

become stand-alone municipalities 

https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/new-awards-honour-black-multicultural-businesses-in-simcoe-county-6953843
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/innisfil-fashion-market-season-kicks-off-mothers-day-weekend-6950826
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/jobs-of-the-future/firefighters-wanted-innisfil-approves-for-20-new-hires-6967048
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/south-simcoe-police-opening-their-doors-this-weekend-6968413
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/no-bad-blood-innisfil-council-snuffs-out-fire-department-merger-6984653
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/town-introduces-community-benefits-charge-6994232
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/move-to-give-campaign-raises-74k-for-ymca-of-simcoemuskoka-6993339
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/dmz-innisfil-launches-new-programs-to-transform-local-businesses-7001463
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/keep-it-clean-innisfil-residents-come-together-for-pitch-in-day-6999495
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/innisfil-supports-bill-to-end-harassment-from-councillors-7000712
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/innisfil-girl-to-be-sworn-in-as-honorary-paramedic-next-week-7027920
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-sports/innisfil-resident-heading-to-italy-for-inline-hockeys-world-cup-7041132
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/innisfil-begins-development-of-three-year-economic-plan-7042358
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/dairy-eggs-now-being-accepted-for-troy-scott-community-fridges-7049937
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/uber-still-in-the-drivers-seat-in-innisfil-7049219
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/town-seeking-feedback-on-strategic-plan-7052256
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/its-difficult-south-simcoe-police-in-need-of-more-officers-7053438
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/less-wiggle-room-innisfil-finds-itself-in-the-red-for-2022-7054874
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/triton-music-ensembles-triumph-is-for-the-entire-community-7053581
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/music-festival-helps-rvh-foundation-to-the-tune-of-16k-7055935
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/no-timeline-for-new-go-station-in-innisfil-7060800
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/broad-strokes-council-oks-innisfil-beach-park-revitalization-7064740
https://www.simcoe.com/life/innisfil-community-foundation-funds-ongoing-palliative-support-with-hospice-simcoe/article_fe215661-d33e-5f7d-b8ad-5a63be7ecd2e.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/really-fun-school-project-sees-innisfil-student-open-another-little-free-library/article_35eb969a-fd96-5353-8063-4ccb6361ca58.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/award-winning-innisfil-farmers-market-returning-to-stroud-and-many-favourite-vendors-will-be-there/article_cc30164c-2852-5883-b6ec-a59f34b0e1f9.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/award-winning-innisfil-farmers-market-returning-to-stroud-and-many-favourite-vendors-will-be-there/article_cc30164c-2852-5883-b6ec-a59f34b0e1f9.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/they-get-to-tell-their-stories-innisfils-brian-everett-captures-his-memories-in-book-created/article_8d318e85-835e-5916-ab04-f346a332a527.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/they-get-to-tell-their-stories-innisfils-brian-everett-captures-his-memories-in-book-created/article_8d318e85-835e-5916-ab04-f346a332a527.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/south-simcoe-municipalities-may-be-asked-to-kick-in-funding-for-museum-on-the-boyne/article_5ccc444e-0825-5280-ba34-5a6749ee4b69.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/q-a-with-the-cuban-film-director-sergio-navarretta-and-why-he-loves-innisfil/article_73b42be5-f2eb-5517-8037-c5260a070239.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/love-for-all-hatred-for-none-ahmadiyya-muslim-women-s-association-hosts-interfaith-symposium-in/article_afae9b0b-f426-5a8a-996b-d74a2be484ce.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/love-for-all-hatred-for-none-ahmadiyya-muslim-women-s-association-hosts-interfaith-symposium-in/article_afae9b0b-f426-5a8a-996b-d74a2be484ce.html
https://barrie.ctvnews.ca/simcoe-county-up-for-review-following-peel-region-break-up-1.6404595
https://www.simcoe.com/news/council/we-need-to-deliver-a-clear-message-simcoe-county-council-responds-to-proposed-ontario-legislation/article_da053270-9d87-5878-81d5-f89df2a49f7b.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/council/we-need-to-deliver-a-clear-message-simcoe-county-council-responds-to-proposed-ontario-legislation/article_da053270-9d87-5878-81d5-f89df2a49f7b.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/high-growth-pressures-simcoe-county-among-upper-tier-municipalities-to-go-under-ontarios-microscope/article_31e07850-d80a-54ef-b566-77515162e1cf.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/high-growth-pressures-simcoe-county-among-upper-tier-municipalities-to-go-under-ontarios-microscope/article_31e07850-d80a-54ef-b566-77515162e1cf.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/council/region-of-peel-to-be-dissolved-by-province-brampton-and-mississauga-and-caledon-to-become/article_ee4b2143-f1b0-5a84-b373-7887f4768abb.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/council/region-of-peel-to-be-dissolved-by-province-brampton-and-mississauga-and-caledon-to-become/article_ee4b2143-f1b0-5a84-b373-7887f4768abb.html


JHSC Meeting Agenda  

MEETING DATE: Thursday, May 18, 2023 

TIME: 1:00PM 

LOCATION: Ops Meeting Room 2 and Teams 

CO-CHAIRS: Management Co-Chair – Eric Chudzinski; Worker Co-Chair Richard Rivet 

MINUTES: Jennifer Miyasaki 

ATTENDANCE Nick Ayers, Eric Chudzinski, Jennifer Miyasaki, Richard Rivet, Ken Schuyler, 
Jennifer Sheremeto, Paul Tomaszewski, Sierra Warren 

REGRETS Kristi Williams 

Item Agenda Item Lead Item Details 
ACTION & NOTES 

1. Call Meeting 
to Order 

Co-Chair - Time – opened - Meeting started at 1:00 p.m.

2. Approval of 
Previous 
Minutes 

Co-Chair 

2023.04.20 JHSC 

Meeting Agenda 

Minutes Draft.pdf 

(Desktop, Web, 

Mobile) 

- Jen S. motioned to approve the minutes of the

previous meeting.

- Seconded by Paul T.

- All in favour; Motion Carried.

3. JHSC 
members 

Co-Chair 

02.09.23 JHSC 

Members February 

2023 (Desktop, Web, 

Mobile) 

- No changes

4. 
Workplace 
Inspections 

WHIMIS 
LOTO 

Co-Chair Roundtable 

discussions 

Richard – Potential hazard noted: plow wings storage – 

unsure if the method of storage is safe 

Action: EC/RR Will review storage of wings and assess 

hazard/risk to staff 

Jennifer M – All facilities were inspected on May 1. 

Minor deficiency noted; the issue is being rectified. 

Nick – Inspections are planned for the following week. 

Recently trialed a remote-operated flail mower and 

believe an SOP is being drafted.  EC confirmed this is 

correct.  

Paul – Completed inspections; item noted: First aid kits’ 

supplies are depleted; is it easier to purchase a new kit, 

7d.01.01

m-files://show/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/0-738147/1030527?object=697367EF-F263-4681-94BE-9CE7ADDE5329&file=9CDCBF01-F524-4B1F-851D-AD28457BBA0F
m-files://show/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/0-738147/1030527?object=697367EF-F263-4681-94BE-9CE7ADDE5329&file=9CDCBF01-F524-4B1F-851D-AD28457BBA0F
m-files://show/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/0-738147/1030527?object=697367EF-F263-4681-94BE-9CE7ADDE5329&file=9CDCBF01-F524-4B1F-851D-AD28457BBA0F
m-files://show/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/0-738147/1030527?object=697367EF-F263-4681-94BE-9CE7ADDE5329&file=9CDCBF01-F524-4B1F-851D-AD28457BBA0F
https://mfiles.innisfil.ca/openfile.aspx?vault=247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE&objtype=0&docid=738147&fileid=1030527&filever=-1
m-files://show/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/0-738147/1030527?object=697367EF-F263-4681-94BE-9CE7ADDE5329&file=9CDCBF01-F524-4B1F-851D-AD28457BBA0F
m-files://show/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/0-655387/1006383?object=909367FF-4439-4E67-8620-B2E88CAE92F0&file=AB79AD58-C2E0-4F0F-80B9-06A34065CAF8
m-files://show/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/0-655387/1006383?object=909367FF-4439-4E67-8620-B2E88CAE92F0&file=AB79AD58-C2E0-4F0F-80B9-06A34065CAF8
m-files://show/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/0-655387/1006383?object=909367FF-4439-4E67-8620-B2E88CAE92F0&file=AB79AD58-C2E0-4F0F-80B9-06A34065CAF8
m-files://show/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/0-655387/1006383?object=909367FF-4439-4E67-8620-B2E88CAE92F0&file=AB79AD58-C2E0-4F0F-80B9-06A34065CAF8
https://mfiles.innisfil.ca/openfile.aspx?vault=247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE&objtype=0&docid=655387&fileid=1006383&filever=-1
m-files://show/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/0-655387/1006383?object=909367FF-4439-4E67-8620-B2E88CAE92F0&file=AB79AD58-C2E0-4F0F-80B9-06A34065CAF8


 

Page 2 of 3 
 

or source supplies and replenish? Also need to 

determine who owns this responsibility. 

Action:  Determine whose responsibility it is to replenish 

the kits – EC to confirm 

Re: Ladder stickers – reach out to Jen S. to obtain 

Kristi – Absent – Inspections not yet completed for  May 

– will try to complete next week 

Sierra -  Jen S. joined Sierra on her inspections; nothing 

needed to be addressed; noted that at Ec Dev, a blind 

that had fallen; it appears they were not properly 

installed; paint cans in the kitchen at Rizzardo – need to 

be stored properly; recommendation for Ec Dev janitor 

closet/supply room: needs to be tidied and have shelves, 

racks and a curtain across the doorway.   

Jen S. inquired about inspections at camp locations; 

need to determine obligation/scope of inspections (e.g. 

Centennial Park washrooms; IBP building behind soccer 

pitch) 

Eric – Re: Inspection Sheet - a new section under 

security heading re: doors – should  ensure they 

latch/are not propped open for safety reasons 

5. 
 

SOP’s 
Corporate 
Policies 

Co-Chair Any updates for 

discussion? 

- SOPs continue 

- Respectful Workplace Policy being updated – Eric 

will send to Committee for feedback 

 

6. Workplace 
Incidents & 
Accidents  

Co-Chair 
Report on last 

month’s accidents 

(April 2023) 

- 2 incidents in April; minor incident in which first aid 

was required; another incident involving a vehicle 

reversing in a parking lot – no injuries 

 

7. Budget & 
Training 

Co-Chair  

1. Budget (status 
update) 

 
2. Member 

Certifications 

1. Within budget 

 

2. Sierra completed Part 1; Part 2 for Sierra and Kristi 

will be scheduled for the end of the year; Jen S. will 

have refresher in July. 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

8. 
JHSC  
Other 

Business 

All 
Members 

1.  JHSC BBQ 
(status update) 

 
 
2. Ergonomics  
 
 
 
 
 
3. Respectful 

Workplace Policy 
updates 

 
4. Question added to 

inspection under 
new heading 
Security: “Are 
exterior doors 
secured from 
unauthorized 
entry (i.e. closing 
and latching, not 
propped open) 

 
5. Naloxone in the 

Workplace 
Update/Risk 
Assessment 

 
 

1. 140 people have RSVP’d; activities planning 
continues 

 
 
2. Just a reminder to ensure your workspace, whether 

at home or in the office that you’re using best 
practices to ensure better physical wellness and 
prevent MSDs or repetitive task injuries 

 
 
3. Eric will send out proposed changes for comment  
 
 
 
4. Eric advised earlier in the meeting that the inspection 

forms have a new section under the Security heading 
to ensure doors are being latched/not propped open. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.  Legislation as of June 1, 2023, any workplace with 

at-risk staff are required to have naloxone kits in staff 
spaces 
 
Eric shared an opioid risk assessment form (survey); 
the JHSC review and completed it. 

 

9. ACTION 
ITEMS 

Follow up 

Co-Chair 

Review of Action 
items from April 20, 
2023, meeting 
minutes. 
 

- ACTION: Eric and Jen M will take Terms of 

Reference offline to review and decide on 

appropriate action(s). – Keep it as it for now – action 

closed 

 

- ACTION: Nick and Eric to work with Parks/Facilities 

Managers to determine purpose and requirements 

for CO/CO2 detectors at the IRC. – sensors require 

upgrading; sensors will be inspected every 6 

months – keep this action open until some sensors 

are replaced – Eric and Nick to follow up on this – 

keep this action open until confirmed complete 

 

 

 
 

10. Close 
Meeting 

Co-Chair - Time enter of 
meeting closed. 

- Meeting closed at 1:58.p.m. 

 



INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY STAFF REPORT 

STAFF REPORT NO. LIB-06-2023 

DATE: June 19, 2023 

TO: Innisfil Public Library Board 

FROM: Erin Scuccimarri, CEO 

SUBJECT: Library Trends Report 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT Staff Report LIB-06-2023 Library Trends Report dated June 19, 2023 be received as 
information. 

INTRODUCTION: 

Staying on top of both community and industry trends is crucial for public libraries to 
remain relevant, responsive, and forward-thinking. By being aware of emerging trends, we 
can better meet the needs and interests of our customers, and be proactive in our 
decision-making processes. Community trends can include changes in demographics, 
emerging interests, and evolving needs within the community. By being aware of 
community trends, the Library can anticipate future needs and plan accordingly, allowing 
us to better serve our customers. In addition to community trends, libraries also need to 
stay on top of industry trends, such as changes in technology, library design, and evolving 
service models.  

Through an annual trends report, Library Staff will address and analyze trends and identify 
priority areas for Library Staff and Board actions. By anticipating future needs and staying 
up-to-date on emerging trends, we can continue to serve as important community spaces, 
provide valuable resources and programming, and meet the evolving needs of our 
community. 

Using the Library’s Strategic Plan as a guide, we have identified six emerging trends. This 
document will serve as a road map for future planning and will identify actions to achieve 
the goals set out in the Library’s Strategic Plan. 

7e.01.01



STAFF REPORT #LIB-06-2023 – Library Trends Report 

2 

TRENDS ANALYSIS: 

Trend 1: Intellectual Freedom 

Libraries face increasingly difficult choices in their responsibility to provide a range of 
viewpoints that allow individuals to develop their own critical understanding of a topic. 
Librarians have combated attempts by community members to restrict the ideas in their 
collections or programs for decades, but in recent years this adherence to allowing 
controversial and diverse thought has increasingly collided with the values of inclusion and 
diversity for which libraries strive. Concerns have been made considerably more public in 
an era of social media. 

Our Response: 

1. Policy reviews: Conduct comprehensive reviews of existing policies to ensure they
align with the principles of intellectual freedom and reflect the evolving needs of our
community.

2. Professional development: Provide relevant training to staff and Board members to
equip them with the knowledge and skills to advocate for intellectual freedom and
defend against censorship.

3. Communications plan: Develop a plan to educate the community about the
importance of intellectual freedom and the role of public libraries in providing access
to diverse materials and programming.

Trend 2: Growing Community 

In 2011, Innisfil had a population of 33,079, representing an increase of 6.1% from 2006 
(slightly higher than the national average growth). Innisfil is currently forecasting high 
levels of growth. By 2031, the population is expected to grow by 70% compared to 2011 
(over 58,000 residents). This projected population growth presents a key opportunity to 
create shared spaces that relate to the Town’s educational, recreational, cultural, social, 
and economic needs while cost-effectively sharing certain spaces aligned with the 
emerging population hubs. Predictably, Innisfil will be far more diverse in the future and will 
likely have a younger than average adult population with more children. According to the 
2021 Census data, Innisfil already has more people aged 0-14 than 65+. Typically, these 
demographics are heavy users of library facilities and services. As the community grows, 
so too will the need for shops, schools, community centres, infrastructure, and, of course, 
libraries. If the Library doesn’t grow in proportion to the population, it will not be able to 
accommodate the new and existing residents, which will have severe social and economic 
implications. The relationship between the population and the amount of library space has 
been thoroughly studied and regularly reviewed.  



STAFF REPORT #LIB-06-2023 – Library Trends Report 

3 

Numerous authorities (Administrators of Rural and Urban Public Libraries of Ontario, 
Ontario Library Service, etc.) have established a standard that for every person there 
should be 0.7 square feet (ft2) of traditional library space, and 0.3 ft2 of cultural space, for a 
total of 1.0 ft2 per person for library facilities. In 2021, Innisfil had a population of 
approximately 41,415 residents and 36,571 square feet of library space, which equals 
approximately. 0.9 ft2 per person. In 2051, the forecasted population is 86,850 people; if no 
additional space is built, there would only be 0.4 square feet/ person, or less than half of 
the allowance existing today. In order to meet and sustain the Library’s strategic goals to 
make a fundamental difference in the economic, social vitality, educational, and cultural 
activities in the Town of Innisfil, the Library must plan for the addition of 50,279 square feet 
of space over the coming decades, as well as new locations to meet both current and 
future needs to be ready for the 2051 growth projections.  

The challenges anticipated by the growth of the community are addressed through the 
most recent Facilities Master Plan. However, increasing Library square footage is a long 
term solution and the Library is already seeing pressures created by community growth. 
Some think, wrongly, that e-content and digital services have reduced the need for more 
space. Rather, digital content and services require more space as up to 25% of Ontarians 
do not have access to the internet and/or necessary devices at home or work. The 21st 
century public library program portfolio supports reading, digital and other literacies, school 
and college readiness, access, learning, employment, and use of government services, to 
name just a few. Crowding in the current branches will be the norm with the anticipated 
population growth; and Innisfil’s current space-to-population ratio already registers low in 
comparison to its peers. 

Our Response: 

1. Space planning: Using the facilities master plan as a guide to ensure Library spaces
can grow adequately in the community to meet current and future needs.

2. Needs assessment: Conduct regular assessments of the library's facilities and
services to ensure they align with the changing demographics and evolving needs
of the community.

3. Advocacy and partnerships: Advocate for adequate resources and partnerships to
support the expansion of library facilities and services.

Trend 3: Pressure for Space by Outside Agencies 

The role of public libraries as community hubs continues to grow as libraries tailor services 
to meet a wide range of community needs. As a result, there is a growing trend towards 
flexible, multifunctional spaces that house more than books.  



STAFF REPORT #LIB-06-2023 – Library Trends Report 

4 

Libraries are trusted sources of community and government information and provide vital 
services such as health clinics and emergency response centres.   Increasingly, libraries 
coordinate and partner with government, community organizations, schools, and the 
private sector to provide services that meet local community needs. Community and social 
service agencies are seeking access to the Library to establish a foothold in Innisfil. 
Hosting services at the Library allows various agencies the ability to connect directly with 
our residents, in their community. In a typical week, residents can connect with a variety of 
social service agencies including (but not limited to) CMHA, CONTACT affordable housing, 
SHIFT - a homelessness outreach program, Elizabeth Fry Society, YMCA Newcomer’s 
Services and EarlyON programming, in addition to accessing food through the Troy Scott 
Community fridges. Increased traffic in the branches requires more staff time, and once 
community members in need enter the Library, they are connecting with our staff about a 
variety of other challenges they are experiencing.   

With their community reach and reputation as a safe space, libraries have been shown to 
be effective in delivering a wide-variety of services and programs through partnership with 
outside agencies. 

Our Response: 

1. Flexible spaces: Design and adapt library spaces to accommodate diverse activities
and functions, allowing for the hosting of community groups, social service
agencies, and individuals.

2. Partnerships: Foster collaborations with government, community organizations,
schools, and the private sector to deliver services that meet local community needs.

3. Resource allocation: Allocate resources to support the demand for multifunctional
spaces and facilitate the provision of services through partnerships with outside
agencies.

Trend 4: The Library of Things 

Traditionally, libraries have primarily focused on providing access to books and other 
printed materials. However, with changing needs and evolving technology, libraries are 
expanding their collections to include a wide range of non-traditional items that customers 
can borrow. This trend reflects the growing recognition that libraries can play a role in 
providing access to resources beyond books. The Library of Things movement sees 
libraries offering an array of items such as tools, musical instruments, kitchen appliances, 
sports equipment, and even specialty items like sewing machines or virtual reality 
headsets. By updating the materials libraries include in their collections, they are adapting 
to the changing needs and interests of their communities, providing valuable resources 
that may not be easily accessible or affordable for everyone. The Library of Things trend 
promotes sharing, sustainability, and experiential learning, allowing customers to explore 
new hobbies, try out different technologies, and engage in hands-on experiences that 
enhance their learning and personal growth. 



STAFF REPORT #LIB-06-2023 – Library Trends Report 

5 

Our Response: 

1. Strategy: Develop Library of Things Strategy and Goals to ensure the growth of the
collection both meets community needs and Library strategic goals.

2. Needs assessment: Shape the existing Library of Things collection into one that
meets the needs of customers and supports the Library’s services and programs.

3. Storage and display: Plan for future Library of Things storage and display in current
and future spaces to ensure usage and connection to programs and services.

Trend 5: Artificial Intelligence 

Artificial Intelligence (AI) refers to the development of computer systems or machines that 
can perform tasks that typically require human intelligence. AI technology aims to simulate 
human cognitive abilities, such as learning, reasoning, problem-solving, perception, and 
language understanding. In recent months, there has been an explosion in publicly 
accessible AI tools. Public libraries have long played a vital role in promoting digital 
literacy, and this role will become even more important as AI technology advances. 
Libraries can take the lead in educating the public about AI concepts, risks, and 
responsible use. In the coming years, in addition to digital literacy, community members 
will need to further develop critical thinking and media and information literacy skills related 
to AI use. Libraries are poised to help consumers use AI technology wisely. Developing 
media and information literacy skills helps individuals critically evaluate and verify the 
information they encounter, reducing the risk of falling for false or misleading information.  
AI systems can be biased due to the data they are trained on or the algorithms used. Such 
biases can be reflected in search engine results, social media feeds, and recommendation 
systems, potentially shaping individuals' opinions and beliefs. Media literacy empowers 
citizens to recognize and challenge these biases, ensuring they have a more nuanced 
understanding of the information they consume. 

As AI technology becomes more prevalent, media and information literacy skills are 
essential for individuals to navigate the information landscape effectively, critically evaluate 
content, protect their privacy, and actively participate in democratic processes. These skills 
empower citizens to make informed decisions and engage responsibly in the digital age. 
The rapid growth of AI technology will require public libraries to adapt and evolve their 
services and expertise. Librarians will play a crucial role in assisting the public in 
understanding and using AI responsibly, while also addressing ethical considerations and 
promoting digital, information and media literacies in an AI-driven world. 

Our Response: 

1. Skill development and training: Library Staff will need to acquire new skills and
knowledge related to AI technology to effectively assist customers. Staff will seek
training programs or workshops to help stay up to date and enhance their ability to
guide the public in navigating AI technologies responsibly.



STAFF REPORT #LIB-06-2023 – Library Trends Report 

6 

2. Monitor AI trends and technologies: Staff will monitor the trends and new
technologies that continue to develop, and will seek best practices in the areas of
basic understanding AI algorithms, data privacy issues, applications of AI
technology, and the ethical implications of AI.

Trend 6: Rising use of Digital Collections 

With the rise of new digital formats over the last two decades, some physical mediums are 
predicted to become obsolete. Books are the oldest format, and will endure for many years 
to come and the physical collection in libraries will remain as a core library service; 
however, physical video and audio formats are quickly being replaced by online services. 
The pandemic increased the pace of obsolescence, with many people turning to paid 
streaming services (Netflix, Prime, Disney+) for quick and easy access to content from 
their own homes. Simultaneously, there was a rapid uptake of the Library’s digital 
collection, which has since plateaued and shows no sign of falling to pre-pandemic levels, 
resulting in a new standard of usage and demand for these services, especially eBooks. 
Additionally, high-speed internet access is not distributed equally across Innisfil, with 
members of the population being unable to access basic Internet services, let alone 
streaming services. Our response must carefully balance the broader trends of increasing 
use of streaming services and ensuring that the community can access the resources 
purchased by the Library. 

The shift to digital comes with several challenges for public libraries, and Innisfil is no 
exception. eBook purchasing models and the terms for loaning titles are restrictive, 
volatile, and unregulated. The result is inconsistent pricing and access, limiting our ability 
to provide access to the full range of titles available in the marketplace. The limited number 
of platforms available to libraries means we have very little (often none) input over the 
design and content, and are at the mercy of the companies that own and manage the 
services. As companies seek to add more content, quality is not necessarily a priority and 
it can be difficult or impossible for librarians to monitor and curate collections to ensure 
they meet our standards.  

Our Response: 

1. Monitor usage patterns and market developments: Staff continuously monitor usage
patterns and stay informed about market developments in the digital content
industry. This includes tracking trends in streaming services, digital publishing, and
new technologies that may impact the Library's digital collection and services. This
information can inform collection development decisions and help ensure the
Library provides relevant and in-demand content to its customers.



STAFF REPORT #LIB-06-2023 – Library Trends Report 

7 

2. Facilitate digital access: prioritize improving digital access by providing reliable and
high-speed internet connectivity throughout library spaces. This includes offering
Wi-Fi access to customers, ensuring the availability of computers and other devices
for public use, facilitating remote access to digital resources, and exploring options
for hot spot lending.

3. Advocacy: Work with other libraries and organizations to advocate for better terms
and oversight of digital content, at a price that is fair to all parties involved. FOPL
and OLA are currently advocating for a province-wide digital Library.

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES: 

No options/alternatives are identified as this report is being provided solely for 
informational purposes. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

While there are no financial considerations associated with this report; actions related to 
the Library response to these trends may require operational dollars and/or additional 
budgetary requests in the future. 

CONCLUSION: 

The annual trends report serves as a vital tool for our Library to adapt and thrive in an 
ever-changing landscape. This and future reports will be valuable tools to identify 
emerging trends, analyze their implications, and align our actions within the Library's 
Strategic Plan. Based on our findings, we recommend implementing several measures to 
enhance accountability and ensure effective progress towards our goals. 

1. To ensure ongoing progress and accountability, we recommend Staff provide
quarterly updates to the Board on our initiatives and the achievements made in
relation to the identified trends. Regular reporting will also facilitate a culture of
continuous improvement and enable us to respond swiftly to any shifts in the
landscape.

2. We recommend incorporating the identified trends and corresponding actions into
the CEO's review process. The CEO's evaluation should not only assess their
performance in day-to-day operations but also their ability to adapt and respond to
emerging trends. By tying the CEO's review to the identified trends, we reinforce the
importance of forward-thinking and strategic decision-making in our organization's
leadership.

https://fopl.ca/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/FINAL-2023-OLA-FOPL-Pre-Budget-Submission.pdf


STAFF REPORT #LIB-06-2023 – Library Trends Report 

8 

3. Ensuring the Library response to emerging trends are aligned with the goals
outlined in the Strategic Plan will also be important. The six trends identified in this
document are not inclusive of all the actions the Library is undertaking in order to
meet the goals laid out in the Library’s Strategic Plan, however, the alignment of
these trends and corresponding actions have been identified in Appendix A.

By implementing these measures, we will strengthen the Library's ability to anticipate and 
meet the evolving needs of our community. We will be well-positioned to leverage 
emerging trends, provide innovative services and resources, and remain at the forefront of 
the industry. 

PREPARED BY 
Kathryn Schoutsen 
Manager of Engagement & Community Development 

REFERENCE MATERIAL: 

Innisfil ideaLAB & Library Strategic Plan 

“Protecting Local Public Libraries across Ontario 2023 Pre-Budget Submission” issued by 
FOPL and OLA 

https://www.innisfilidealab.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/ILL-Strat-Plan-2022-for-website.pdf
https://fopl.ca/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/FINAL-2023-OLA-FOPL-Pre-Budget-Submission.pdf
https://fopl.ca/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/FINAL-2023-OLA-FOPL-Pre-Budget-Submission.pdf


STAFF REPORT #LIB-06-2023 – Library Trends Report 

9 

Appendix A: Strategic Plan Alignment of Trends and Actions 
Trend 1 

Intellectual 
Freedom 

Trend 2 
Growing 

Community 

Trend 3 
Space 

Pressure 

Trend 4 
Library of 

Things 

Trend 5 
Artificial 

Intelligence 

Trend 6 
Rise in 

Digital Use 

Speak Up for Diversity & 
Inclusion 

X X X 

Amplify voices of those who 
have been 
underrepresented. 

X X 

Ensure our spaces are 
barrier-free. 

X X 

Celebrate diversity in all we 
do. 

Capture community memory 
to reflect our diversity and 
our Indigenous past present 
future 

X 

Open Up Opportunities to 
Strengthen Connection 
and Engagement with our 
Community 

X X 

Enrich existing connections 
by exploring untapped 
opportunities for 
collaboration. 

X X 

Spark new relationships 
between organizations and 
changemakers in our 
community. 

X X 

Empower staff, board, allies 
to act as ambassadors in all 
we do. 

X 

Be the trusted source for 
community-wide information, 
reaching people where they 
are, enticing and engaging 
users and non-users. 

X X X 



STAFF REPORT #LIB-06-2023 – Library Trends Report 
 

 

10 
 

 

 

Appendix A: Strategic Plan Alignment of Trends and Actions 

 Trend 1 
Intellectual 
Freedom 

Trend 2 
Growing 

Community 

Trend 3 
Space 

Pressure 

Trend 4 
Library of 

Things 

Trend 5 
Artificial 

Intelligence 

Trend 6 
Rise in 

Digital Use 

Build Up our Reputation as 
a Trusted Community 
Asset 

X    X  

Combat fake news with 
factual information and 
stimulate critical inquiry. 

X    X  

Support and encourage the 
democratic process. 

X      

Establish our virtual and 
physical spaces as venues 
for idea exchange and 
dialogue. 

X X     

Embrace our role as an 
open, warm, welcoming 
space for all. 

X X X    

Raise Up the Library’s 
identity as an innovative 
hub. 

  X X X X 

Push beyond our comfort 
zone to meet our 
community’s evolving needs. 

   X X  

Forge into the future by 
continuously integrating new 
ideas and creative solutions. 

   X X X 

Challenge staff to embrace 
novelty and thrive with 
change. 

 X   X  

Inspire transformation within 
our community and our 
industry 

 X X X  X 

Light Up Pathways to 
Personal and Professional 
Growth 

X  X X X  

Ignite curiosity, stimulate the 
imagination and evoke joy 
through opportunities to 
express, create, discover 
and connect. 

   X   

Instill a love of lifelong 
learning and discovery    X   

Champion all forms of 
literacy. 

X   X  X 

Empower the community 
with tools, skills, 
opportunities and human 
connections. 

 X X X X X 

 



Policy Changes Summary 
 

 
8a. ACCESSIBILITY – Integrated Access Standards Policy #A-2023-14 

• Minor wording and formatting changes 

 

8b.  EMPLOYMENT – Social Media Policy #E-2023-15 

• Minor wording changes 

• Formatting changes to have sections numbered for ease of reading 

• New Section Added under Section 1. Responsibility: 
o Library employees with authorized access to official Library social 

media channels are expected to represent the organization 
professionally and positively, according to the goals and standards 
set out in this policy.  

 
o Library Board members do not have access to official social media 

channels, however, board members may have a role in sharing 
Library updates and promoting organizational initiatives across their 
personal social media accounts and should adhere to the Library's 
policies, code of conduct and guidelines. 

 
o Authorized External Contributors include individuals and partner 

organizations outside the organization who are invited to contribute 
content to the official social media channels of the Library. They 
have an important role in maintaining a welcoming and supportive 
environment on the Library's social media channels, which can be 
done by adhering to the Library's policies, code of conduct and 
guidelines. 

• Section called “Using Innisfil ideaLAB Social Media Accounts” was 

renamed “Content Guidelines; Section was moved to "Guidelines" from 

"Administration"; minor changes to language in this section 

• Additions/changes to Section 5. Monitoring Inappropriate Content: 

The Innisfil ideaLAB & Library encourages focused, thoughtful comments 
and discussion which respond to a particular topic, new initiative or 
upcoming event. Comments that include one or more of the following may 
be removed or modified at any time, and users that ignore these comment 
guidelines may be banned or blocked. The Library reserves the right to 
delete, remove, or not accept, any content submitted that the Library 
believes, in its sole and unfettered discretion, is objectionable or that: 

 
o Is misleading, false, deceptive, or attempts to derail the 

conversation; 
o Is in violation of any provincial or federal law, rule, regulation or any 

third party right or promotes such illegal activity; 
o Is in contravention of any Innisfil ideaLAB & Library policies or 

guidelines; 
o Is harmful, racist, homophobic, discriminatory, malicious, 

aggressive, threatening, sexist, harassing, defamatory, vulgar, 
sexually explicit or otherwise objectionable; 



Policy Changes Summary 
 

o Is unsolicited or unauthorized, such as unsolicited or unauthorized 
advertising or promotional material; 

o Is in breach of any confidence; 
o Includes personal data or information about others; 
o Impersonates any person or entity, or falsely states or otherwise 

misrepresents their affiliation with a person or organization; 
o may infringe another person's intellectual property rights, including 

copyright. 
 
In general, Library accounts should be frequently monitored during core business hours 
and during special events; however, it is understood and noted on the accounts that 
they will not be monitored at all times. 

• Section added under 8. Personal Use of Social Media 

o When using social media for personal use and when identifiable as 
a Library employee, staff must be aware of their role in the 
organization and the potential impact of their communications on the 
brand, reputation and service values of the Library and act 
appropriately and with good judgement. 

 
o In accordance with the Library’s policies and procedures, the Library 

may take appropriate action in response to prohibited behaviour, up 
to, and including, dismissal and/or legal action. 

  

8c.  EMPLOYMENT – Hours of Work and Overtime Policy #E-2023-16 

• Minor wording and formatting changes 

• In Section 2. Unexpected Closure, addition of: 

o During periods of extraordinary circumstances, such as a pandemic, 
significant inclement weather, or other emergencies, the Library may 
request that employees work remotely for a temporary period, if 
operationally feasible, based upon the nature and scope of the 
positions. 

 

8d. EMPLOYMENT – Working Alone Policy #E-2023-17 

• Minor wording and formatting changes 

• Addition of the definition of “Hazard” 

• Removed procedural section, as it is contained in the Working Alone 

Procedure 

 

 



SUBJECT:  ACCESSIBILITY - INTEGRATED ACCESSIBILITY 
STANDARDS - REGULATION 191/11 (AODA 2005) 
POLICY 

Policy No: A-2023-14

Date: June 19, 2023 

Review Date: June 2027 

Pages: 11 + 7 Appendices 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to facilitate the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library’s regulatory 
compliance with the Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation (O. Reg. 191/11) of 
the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA) and all policy 
requirements under the Regulation. The AODA and its Regulations indicate that failure to 
comply with the requirements set out in the Act and Regulations may result in 
administrative penalties for the obligated organization. 

This policy outlines the Library’s commitment to providing unhindered access to all users, 
as well as the overall strategic direction that the Library will follow in the identification, 
removal, and prevention of barriers to ensure consistent opportunity and access to the 
Library’s goods, services, and facilities. 

POLICY 
General  
Statement of Organizational Commitment  
The Innisfil Public Library Board establishes and implements practices and procedures 
that respect the dignity and independence of persons with disabilities.  The Library is 
committed to ensuring that each employee, volunteer and customer receives equitable 
treatment with respect to employment and services without discrimination, and receives 
accommodation where required, in a timely manner, to the point of undue hardship and 
in accordance with the Ontario Human Rights Code and the AODA and its regulations. 

The Innisfil Public Library Board is committed to providing persons with disabilities 
consistent opportunity and access to the Library’s goods, services, and facilities. The 
Library will ensure that policies, procedures, and practices are provided in a manner that 
is timely and guided by the principles of integration, independence, dignity, and equal 
opportunity.  

8a.01.01



 

Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards-Regulation 191/11  
(AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14                                                          Page 2 of 11 
 

When communicating with a person with a disability, Library Staff will do so in a manner 
that takes into account the person’s disability. The Library will endeavor to follow the 
compliance schedule of the legislation when implementing each of the requirements 
addressed in this policy. 
 
Background 
Effective July 1st, 2016, Ontario Regulation 429/07 - Accessibility Standards for Customer 
Service, and Ontario Regulation 191/11 – Integrated Accessibility Standards (Information 
and Communication, Employment, Transportation and Design of Public Spaces), were 
consolidated into a single Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation through 
amendments contained in Ontario Regulation 165/16.   
 
Application 
This Policy applies to all Library employees, including full-time, part-time, student, co-op, 
or contract service employees, Board Members and volunteers, who work in the Library 
or in library owned or controlled offices, facilities and work sites, and as such also applies 
to all Library Branch facilities. 
 
Definitions 
Accessible Formats may include, but are not limited to, large print, recorded audio and 
electronic formats, Braille, and other formats usable by persons with disabilities. 
 
Barrier means anything that prevents a person with a disability from fully participating in 
all aspects of society because of his or her disability. This includes physical, architectural, 
information or communication, attitudinal or technological barriers, a policy or a practice. 
 
Communication Support may include, but is not limited to, captioning, alternative and 
augmentative communication supports, plain language, sign language, and other 
supports that facilitate effective communications. 
 
Disability means, as per the Human Rights Code: 

• Any degree of physical disability, infirmity, malformation or disfigurement that is 
caused by bodily injury, birth defect or illness and, without limiting the generality 
of the foregoing, includes diabetes mellitus, epilepsy, a brain injury, any degree 
of paralysis, amputation, lack of physical coordination, blindness or visual 
impediment, deafness or hearing impairment, muteness or speech impediment, 
or physical reliance on a guide dog or other animal or on a wheelchair or other 
remedial appliance or device; 

• A condition of mental impairment or a developmental disability; 

• A learning disability or a dysfunction in one or more of the processes involved 
in understanding or using symbols or spoken language; 

• A mental disorder; or 

• An injury or disability for which benefits were claimed or received under the 
insurance plan established under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, 
1997. 

 
 
 



 

Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards-Regulation 191/11  
(AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14                                                          Page 3 of 11 
 

 
Guide Dog means a dog trained as a guide for a person who is visually impaired and 
having the qualifications prescribed by the regulations in the Blind Persons’ Rights Act. 
 
Kiosk means an interactive electronic terminal, including a point-of-sale device, 
intended for public use that allows users to access one or more services or products or 
both. 
 
Library means Innisfil Public Library Board.  
 
Planned Service Disruption means a scheduled shutdown or closure of a Library 
facility, program or service which may result in a reduction or change to a service level. 
 
Support Person means, in relation to a person with a disability, another person who 
accompanies him or her in order to help with communication, mobility, personal care or 
medical needs with access to goods, services or facilities. 
 
Service Animal is an animal for a person with a disability, if 

a) The animal can be readily identified as one that is being used by the person for 
reasons relating to the person’s disability, as a result of visual indicators such as 
the vest or harness worn by the animal; or 

b) The person provides documentation from a regulated health professional as 
indicated in the Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation, which confirms 
that the person requires the animal for reasons relating to the disability. 

 
 
Guidelines 
1.0 Responsibility 
It is the responsibility of the Innisfil Public Library Board and all Library employees to 
ensure that this policy is adhered to and that the practices of the Library demonstrate a 
commitment to accessibility as outlined in this policy and accessibility legislation. 
 
2.0 Application 
2.1. Accessibility Plans 
The Library will establish, implement, maintain, and document a Multi-Year Accessibility 
Plan that will outline its strategy to prevent and remove barriers to persons with disabilities 
and meet the requirements under accessibility legislation. The plan will be established in 
consultation with the Innisfil Accessibility Advisory Committee. Members of the public, 
including those living with disabilities, will be encouraged to provide input into the plan. 
The Innisfil Public Library Board will review and approve the plan. 
 
At least once every five years, the Library will review and update the Accessibility Plan 
following the same public consultation and approval process as outlined for the initial 
development of the plan.  
  



 

Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards-Regulation 191/11  
(AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14                                                          Page 4 of 11 
 

 
Status reports will be presented to the Library Board and the Innisfil Accessibility Advisory 
Committee.  The report will outline the progress of measures taken to implement the plan 
and the Library’s strategy to identify, prevent, and remove barriers to those with 
disabilities.  
 
The Library will make all accessibility plans and annual status reports available to the 
public. All plans and reports will be posted on the Library’s website and made available 
at library facilities. The Library will provide the documents in an accessible format, upon 
request. 
 
 
2.2. Procuring or Acquiring Goods, Services or Facilities 
The Library will incorporate accessibility criteria and features when procuring or acquiring 
goods, services or facilities, except when it is not practicable to do so.  
 
The Library will provide an explanation, upon request, when it has not been practicable 
to incorporate accessibility features. 
 
2.3. Self-Service Kiosks 
The Library shall have regard to the accessibility for persons with disabilities when 
designing, procuring or acquiring self-service kiosks. 
 
2.4. Training 
The Library will ensure that training is provided on the requirements of accessibility 
standards, the purpose of the Act, and on the Human Rights Code as it pertains to 
persons with disabilities.  
 
Such training will be provided to: 

• All paid employees, Library Board Members, and Long Term Volunteers (See 
the Volunteer Policy); 

• All persons who participate in developing Library policies; and 
 

The training will also review the requirements of the Customer Service Standards, and 
instruction about the following: 

• How to interact and communicate with persons with various types of 
disabilities; 

• How to interact with a person with a disability/disabilities, who uses an 
assistive device or requires the assistance of a guide dog or other service 
animal, or the assistance of a support person; 

• How to use equipment or devices available on the service  provider’s 
premises or otherwise provided by the service provider that may help with the 
provision of goods, services or facilities to a person with a disability;  

• What to do if a person with a particular type of disability is having difficulty 
accessing the provider’s goods, services or facilities. 

 
 
 



 

Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards-Regulation 191/11  
(AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14                                                          Page 5 of 11 
 

The specified training and information will be provided to each person to whom this 
policy applies as soon as is practicable, as well as on an ongoing basis in respect to 
any changes to the Library’s policies, procedures and practices governing the provision 
of goods, services, and facilities to persons with disabilities. 
 
A record of the training provided, the date of the training and the recipients will be 
maintained.  The names of individuals trained will be recorded for training administration 
purposes, subject to the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy 
Act. 
 
2.5. Feedback 
The Library will ensure that the processes for receiving and responding to feedback are 
accessible to persons with disabilities. The public will be notified of the availability of 
accessible formats and communications support by including notice on the Library’s 
website, on Library premises and other appropriate locations. Upon request, accessible 
formats or communication supports will be provided or arranged. 
 
2.6. Accessible Formats and Communication Supports 
Upon request, the Library will provide, or arrange for the provision of, accessible formats 
or communication supports for persons with disabilities. 
 
These accessible formats and communication supports will be provided in a timely 
manner and in a way that takes into account the individual’s accessibility needs due to 
disability. The Library will consult with the person making the request to determine the 
suitability of an accessible format or communication support. Such accessible documents 
and communication supports will be provided at a cost no greater than the regular cost 
charged to others. 
 
The Library will notify the public about the availability of accessible formats and 
communication supports, upon request, by including a notice on its website and on many 
of the documents produced by the Library. If a document, or portions of a document, 
cannot be converted into an accessible format, the Library will provide an explanation or 
summary of such information in an accessible format. 
 
2.7. Emergency Procedure, Plan or Public Safety Information 
The Library will, upon request, provide emergency procedures, plans and public safety 
information in an accessible format or with communication support, as soon as is 
practicable. 
 
2.8. Accessible Websites and Web Content 
The Library will ensure that its publicly accessible  Internet websites and web content 
conform with the World Wide Web Consortium Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 
(WCAG) 2.0 initially at Level A and increasing to Level AA.  
 
 
 
 
 



 

Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards-Regulation 191/11  
(AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14                                                          Page 6 of 11 
 

2.9. Recruitment, Assessment and Selection 
The Library is committed to equitable consideration of candidates during the recruitment, 
assessment and selection process. All job applicants will be notified of the availability of 
accommodations for persons with disabilities in the employment application process. 
 
Individuals selected to participate in assessment or selection processes, such as an 
interview or testing, will be notified of the availability of accommodation, upon request, 
during such an assessment or selection process. In cases where accommodations due 
to disability are requested, the Library will consult with the individual and provide or 
arrange for suitable accommodations in a manner that takes into account the applicant’s 
disability needs. Accommodations will be provided with respect to the materials or 
processes used in recruitment. 
 
When making offers of employment, the Library will notify the successful applicant of its 
policies for accommodating employees with disabilities. This notification will be provided 
verbally at the time of offer and in the Offer of Employment letter.  
 
2.10. Informing Employees of Supports 
The Library will inform employees of its policies, and any updates to such policies, used 
to support employees with disabilities. The Library will provide this information to new 
employees as soon as practicable after commencing employment. This includes policies 
on providing job accommodations that take into account the employee’s accessibility 
needs due to disability. 
 
2.11. Accessible Formats and Communication Supports for Employees 
The Library will, when requested by an employee living with a disability, consult with the 
employee to provide or arrange for the provision of accessible formats and 
communication supports for information that is required in order to perform the job, as 
well as information that is generally available to employees in the workplace. 
 
The Library will consult with the employee making the request in determining the 
suitability of an accessible format or communication support. 
 
2.12. Workplace Emergency Response Information 
The Library is committed to ensuring the safety of its employees. Individualized workplace 
emergency response information will be provided to employees who have a disability, if 
the disability is such that the individualized information is necessary and the employer is 
aware of the employee’s need. This information will be provided as soon as practicable 
after the Library becomes aware of the need for accommodation. 
 
When an employee requires assistance in an emergency, the Library will, with the 
employee’s consent, provide such information to the person designated by the Library to 
provide assistance. 
 
The Library will review the individualized workplace emergency response information 
when an employee moves to a different location within the organization, when the 
employee’s overall accommodation needs and plans are reviewed, and when the Library 
reviews its general emergency policies. 



 

Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards-Regulation 191/11  
(AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14                                                          Page 7 of 11 
 

 
2.13. Documented Individual Accommodation Plans 
The Library will develop a written process for the development of documented individual 
accommodation plans for employees with disabilities. The individual accommodation plan 
will include: 
If requested, any information regarding accessible formats and communication supports 
provided to the employee; 

• If required, individualized workplace emergency response information; and 

• Any other accommodations which are to be provided. 
 

2.14. Return to Work Process 
The Library will maintain a documented return to work process for employees with a 
disability and who require disability-related accommodation in order to return to work. 
 
The Library’s return to work process will outline the steps the Library will take to facilitate 
the return to work and will include documented individual accommodation plans as part 
of the process. 
 
This return to work process will not replace or override any other return to work process 
created by or under any other statute (i.e., the Workplace Safety Insurance Act, 1997). 
 
2.15. Performance Management, Career Development and Advancement, and 

Redeployment 
The Library will take into account the accessibility needs of employees with disabilities 
and any individual accommodation plans when providing any performance management, 
career development, and advancement.  
 
In the event of redeployment (reassigning employees to other branches or service area 
jobs within the Library as an alternative to layoff when a particular job or service area has 
been eliminated), the Library will also take into account the employee’s accessibility 
needs due to disability and any individual accommodation plan. 
 
2.16. Use of Service Animals 
Persons with disabilities may enter premises owned and/or operated by the Library 
Board accompanied by their service animal and keep that animal with them in 
areas/premises that are open to the public, when accessing goods, services and 
facilities provided by the Library, unless the animal is otherwise excluded by legislation 
(see non-exhaustive list of such legislation under References and Related Documents). 
  



 

Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards-Regulation 191/11  
(AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14                                                          Page 8 of 11 
 

In the event that a service animal is otherwise prohibited by law from the premises, the 
Library will ensure that alternate means are available to enable the person with a 
disability to obtain, use or benefit from the Library’s goods and services and facilities. 
 
Where it is not readily apparent that an animal is a Service Animal, Library Staff may 
ask for verification by asking to see a letter from a physician, nurse, or an identification 
card from the Ministry of the Attorney General, as per legislated guidelines. 
 
Service animals must be supervised by their owners and be kept in control at all times.  
 
2.17. Use of Support Persons 
Persons with disabilities are permitted to be accompanied by their support person in 
areas/premises that are open to the public when accessing goods, services and facilities 
provided by the Library.  
 
If a person with a disability is accompanied by a support person, the provider of goods, 
services or facilities, shall ensure that both persons are permitted to enter the premises 
together and that the person with a disability is not prevented from having access to the 
support person while on the premises. 

 
The Library may require a person with a disability to be accompanied by a support person 
while using library premises in situations where it is necessary to protect the health or 
safety of the person with a disability or the health and safety of others on the premises, 
and if there is no other reasonable way to protect the health or safety of the person with 
a disability or the health or safety of others on the premises.  The Library will consult with 
the person with a disability and consider the available evidence to determine if the person 
with a disability is required to be accompanied by a support person. 
 
A support person, when assisting a person with a disability to obtain, use or benefit from 
the Library’s goods, services, or facilities, will be permitted to attend at no charge where 
an admission fee is applicable; however, where it is beyond the control of the Library 
Board to waive the fee, advance notice of the fee will be provided.  In situations where 
the Library requires a person with a disability to be accompanied by a support person, 
any fee or payment will be waived with respect to the support person’s admission to the 
premises or in connection with the support person’s presence on the premises.  
 
2.18. Notice of Service Disruptions 
In the event of a planned service disruption to goods, services, facilities, or systems, the 
Library will provide notice of the disruption in advance. In the event of an unexpected 
disruption, the Library will provide notice as soon as possible. 
 
The notice will include information about the reason for the disruption, its anticipated 
duration and a description of alternative goods, services, facilities, or systems that may 
be available.  
 
Notice may be given by posting the information in visible places, or on the Library’s 
website (www.innisfilidealab.ca) or by such other method or means as is reasonable 
under the circumstances.  

http://www.innisfilidealab.ca/


 

Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards-Regulation 191/11  
(AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14                                                          Page 9 of 11 
 

 
2.19. Customer Feedback 
In an effort to improve on the provision of library goods and services to persons with 
disabilities, feedback from the public is welcomed. To assist with the collection of 
feedback, the Library will maintain a feedback form and will also accept comments in 
any form (in person, electronic format, written, etc.).  All feedback will be logged, and all 
questions and concerns will be acknowledged within a maximum of two (2) business 
days from the date of receipt. Response time to the feedback will depend on the issue, 
but will not exceed fifteen (15) business days unless there are extenuating 
circumstances. In this case, individuals will be notified that there will be a delay in 
receiving a response. 
 
Complaints regarding accessibility issues, collected through the feedback process, will 
be provided to the Innisfil Accessibility Advisory Committee (I.A.A.C) subject to the 
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, for review and 
discussion. The Committee will then forward its recommendations to the CEO for 
consideration. 
 
Information on the feedback process will be readily available to the public through 
postings on library premises, the library website and other appropriate locations. 
 
2.20. Notification of the Availability and Format of Documents 
The Library shall notify the public that the documents required by the Integrated 
Accessibility Standards (Ontario Regulation 191/11) and the Library’s Integrated 
Accessibility Standard Regulation Policy, procedures, notices of temporary disruptions, 
training records are available upon request, subject to the Municipal Freedom of 
Information and Protection of Privacy Act (MFIPPA).  
 
Notice of the availability of documents may be given by posting the information in 
conspicuous places owned and/or operated by the Innisfil Public Library Board, the 
library website and/or any other reasonable method. 
 
When communicating with a person with a disability, the Library will do so in a manner 
that takes into account the person’s disability. The Library and the person with a 
disability will agree on what format will be used.  The document or information will be 
provided to the person in an accessible format or with communication support in a 
timely manner and at a cost that is no more than the regular cost charged. 
 
2.21. Public Libraries 
In Section 19 of the Integrated Accessibility Standard, Ontario Regulation 191/11, there 
are requirements that relate specifically to public libraries. 
 
Innisfil Public Library Board: 

• Shall provide access to or arrange for the provision of access to accessible 
materials where they exist;   

• Shall make information about the availability of accessible materials publicly 
available and shall provide the information in an accessible format or with 
appropriate communication supports, upon request; 



 

Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards-Regulation 191/11  
(AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14                                                          Page 10 of 11 
 

• May provide accessible formats for archival materials, special collections, rare 
books and donations. 

 
 
3.0 References and Related Documents  

• Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2001;  

• Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005;  

• Ontario Regulation 191/11 – Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation;  

• Ontario Human Rights Code;  

• Town of Innisfil Annual Accessibility Plan; 

• Innisfil Public Library Accessibility Plan; 

• Other Accessibility Standards as approved into Regulation 
 
 
Appendices 
Appendix #1 – Request for Innisfil Public Library Documentation in an Alternate Format 
Form; 
Appendix #2 – Customer Feedback Form; 
Appendix #3 – Customer Feedback on Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Form; 
Appendix #4 – Record of Customer Service Feedback as per Accessibility for Ontarians 
with Disabilities Act 2005 Form; 
Appendix #5 – Notice of Service Disruption – Planned Form; 
Appendix #6 – Notice of Service Disruption – Unexpected Form; 
Appendix #7 – AODA Training Record Form. 
 
 
Related Policies 
E-EMPLOYMENT – Accommodation and Return to Work Policy. 

 
 
Related Procedures 
A-2014-02 – AODA 2005 Feedback Process; 
A-2014-03 – AODA 2005 Notice of Temporary Disruptions Process; 
A-2014-04 – AODA 2005 Training Process; 
A-2014-05 – AODA 2005 Accessible Clear Print Guidelines. 

 
 

 
 
Approved by the Innisfil Public Library Board, June 19, 2023, Motion #2023.XX 
 
Supersedes Policy #A-2019-16, approved June 17, 2019, Motion #2019.53; and merges 
and supersedes AODA – Meeting the Requirements of the Regulations Policy #2014-02, 
approved January 20, 2014, Motion #2014.07 (Policy REPEALED June 17, 2019, Motion 
#2019.54);  & 
Supersedes Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation Policy #A-2016-15, approved 
October 17, 2016, Motion #2016.79;  &  



 

Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards-Regulation 191/11  
(AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14                                                          Page 11 of 11 
 

Merges and supersedes Integrated Accessibility Standards – Regulation 191/11 (AODA 
2005) Policy #2012-13, approved December 10, 2012, Motion #2012.85 Final Approval 
- January 21, 2013, Motion #2013.07; &  
Accessibility - Accessible Customer Service Policy #A-2014-18, approved September 
15, 2014, Motion #2014.65; & 
Policy #2009-12, approved November 16, 2009, Motion #2009.75. 



Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards – Regulation 191/11 (AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14 – Appendix #1                                                                                
  A-19-2014 - Request for IPL Documentation in an Alternate Format Form    

 

Request for Innisfil Public Library Documentation in an Alternate Format Form 

Name: 
 

Address: 
 
 

Telephone Number: 
 

Fax Number: 
 

Email: 
 

Name of Document: 
 

Name and Date of Event: 
 

Format Requested: Example: Large Print, Electronic, etc. (Please indicate any 
technical needs) 
 
 
  

Additional Information regarding the request or document (i.e. time factors): 
 
 
 
 
 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO:   CEO, Innisfil Public Library,  

967 Innisfil Beach Rd., Innisfil, Ont., L9S 1V3  

or email accessibility@innisfilidealab.ca. 
 

Personal information collected on this form is collected under the authority of section 
367 (1) of the Municipal Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.M.45. It will be used to provide a 
document or information produced by the Innisfil Public Library, as requested.  
Questions about this collection may be directed by mail to the CEO, Innisfil ideaLAB & 
Library, 967 Innisfil Beach Road, Innisfil, Ontario, L9S 1V3. 
 

Internal Use – To Be Completed by the Library 

Date Received Document’s Originating Contact Date Completed Cost 

 
 

   

 

This document is available upon request in an alternate format. 

mailto:accessibility@innisfilidealab.ca


Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards – Regulation 191/11 (AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14 - Appendix #2
 A-20-2014-Customer Feedback Form 

Customer Feedback Form 

Thank you for visiting a branch of the Innisfil Public Library.  Your feedback is important to us.  By 

answering the following questions you will help our organization to better assist you. 

 

1 Date, time and place you visited: 
 

2 Did we respond to your customer services 
needs today? 
 

□ Yes 
□ No 

3 Was our customer service provided to you 
in an accessible manner? 
 

□ Yes 
□ Somewhat (Please explain 

below) 
□ No (Please explain below) 

4 Did you encounter any problems in 
accessing our goods and services? 
 

□ Yes (Please explain below) 
□ Somewhat (Please explain 

below) 
□ No 

 

The Innisfil Public Library Board welcomes your comments:   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Thank you. 



Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards – Regulation 191/11 (AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14 - Appendix #3 
A-21-2014-Customer Feedback on Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities 

 

 

Customer Feedback on Accessibility for  
Ontarians with Disabilities 

 
The Innisfil Public Library strives to meet the needs of our customers.  We use your feedback to 

ensure that we meet reasonable expectations and can provide our services to all of our users, and 
make improvements where necessary. 

 

NOTE: This form is always available online at www.innisfilidealab.ca and is available in alternate 

formats at the Library.  

 

 
When did you visit the Library (date and time)? 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Which Branch did you visit? 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Did we respond to your customer service needs? 
 
            □  Yes                       □ No 
 
Was your customer service provided in an accessible manner? 
 
            □  Yes                       □ Somewhat                        □ No 
 
Please explain: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.innisfilidealab.ca/


Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards – Regulation 191/11 (AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14 - Appendix #3 
A-21-2014-Customer Feedback on Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities 

 

Did you have any problem accessing our services? 
 
 
            □ Yes                       □ Somewhat                        □ No 
 
Please explain: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Do you have any other comments?  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Contact Information (OPTIONAL): 
 
Name: 
 
Address: 
 
Phone Number: (Day)                                           (Evening) 
 
Email Address: 
 
Preferred Method of Contact:   □ Mail    □ Phone    □ Email 
 
 
 



Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards - Regulation 191/11 (AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14 – Appendix #4 
A-22-2014-Record of Customer Service Feedback as per Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act 2005 

 

 

Record of Customer Service Feedback as per  

Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act 2005 
 

Date Feedback Received:         ____________________________________________________ 

 

Date Feedback Acknowledged:  ____________________________________________________ 

 

Contact Information:    

Name:   

Address:    

Phone (Day):                                          

Phone (Evening):    

E-mail: 

Preferred Method of Contact:  □ Mail      □ Phone      □ E-mail  
 

Summary of Feedback:  

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Management Team Member Assigned to:     

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date for Update to Chief Librarian/CEO:      ___________________________________ 

 



Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards – Regulation 191/11 (AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14 – 
Appendix #5                                                                           A-23-2014 – Notice of Service Disruption - Planned 
 

 
NOTICE 

Service Disruption 
 

There will be a scheduled service disruption at the [name] Branch of 

Innisfil Public Library located at [address].   

 

The disruptions will be from [time] on [day month year] until [time] on [day 

month year]. 

 

These disruptions include: 

 

• ____________________________ 

 

• ____________________________ 

 

The following alternative services are available: 

 

____________________________________________________ 

 

For questions or additional information, please contact 705-431-7410 

 

Or email accessibility@innisfilidealab.ca. 

mailto:accessibility@innisfilidealab.ca


Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards – Regulation 191/11 (AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14 – 
Appendix #6                                                                     A-24-2014 – Notice of Service Disruption - Unexpected 
 
 

 

NOTICE 

Service Disruption 
 

The [name] Branch of the Innisfil Public Library, located at [address] is 

experiencing an unexpected service disruption.   

 

The estimated time of the service disruption will be from [time] [day month 

year] to [time] [day month year]. 

 

These disruptions include: 

 

• ____________________________ 

 

 

• ____________________________ 

 

The following alternative services are available: 

 

____________________________________________________ 

 

For questions or additional information, please contact 705-431-7410. 

 

Or email accessibility@innisfilidealab.ca. 

 

 

mailto:accessibility@innisfilidealab.ca


Accessibility – Integrated Accessibility Standards – Regulation 191/11 (AODA 2005) Policy #A-2023-14 – 
Appendix #7  A-25-2014 – AODA Training Record 
 

 

AODA 2005 Training Record 

Date: 

Location: 

Training Content: 

Trainers: 

 

Name Signature 

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



SUBJECT:     EMPLOYMENT - SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

Policy No:  E-2023-15

Date:  June 19, 2023 

Review Date: June 2027 

Pages: 6 

PURPOSE  

The Innisfil ideaLAB & Library is committed to providing excellence in customer 
service and delivering services in an efficient and effective manner. The intent of 
this policy is to help employees understand opportunities, manage risks, and 
recognize the responsibilities and boundaries associated with using social media. 
Staff should use this policy to guide them in the acceptable use of social media 
and to help them distinguish between corporate use and personal use. In 
addition, the policy provides best practices for creating, posting and working with 
social media. 

POLICY 

General 
Recognizing excellence in customer service, employee accountability, the 
execution of strategic deliverables and community services/programs, the Social 
Media Policy recognizes the value and public interest in social media, creating a 
dynamic communications opportunity to keep Library customers informed and 
engaged.  

Application 
This policy applies to all Library Staff and  Innisfil Public Library Board members. 

8b.01.01



 

EMPLOYMENT - SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY #E-2023-15                       Page 2 of 6 
 

Definitions 
 

Social Media Channel – Internet-based websites and applications that enable 
the creation and sharing of content or to participate in social networking. 
 

Content – Any information that is communicated on a social media channel. 
 

Corporate Use – Refers to approved activity on social media or a social media 
account that is operated and maintained by the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library. 
 

Personal Use – Refers to an employee’s personal use of social media accounts 
on any social media platform at any time. 
 

GUIDELINES 
 

1. Responsibility 
Social media is a communication and engagement tool used by the Library to 
reach its customers.  The Manager of Engagement & Community Development is 
responsible for oversight of the Library’s social media channels and the Library’s 
Communications staff are responsible for managing the overall image, brand and 
reputation of the Library.   
 
The conduct of each and every employee has an influence on the image of the 
organization. Library employees with authorized access to official Library social 
media channels are expected to represent the organization professionally and 
positively, according to the goals and standards set out in this policy.  
 
Library Board members do not have access to official social media channels, 
however, board members may have a role in sharing Library updates and 
promoting organizational initiatives across their personal social media accounts 
and should adhere to the Library's policies, code of conduct and guidelines. 
 
Authorized External Contributors include individuals and partner organizations 
outside the organization who are invited to contribute content to the official social 
media channels of the Library. They have an important role in maintaining a 
welcoming and supportive environment on the Library's social media channels, 
which can be done by adhering to the Library's policies, code of conduct and 
guidelines. 
 
 

2. Content Guidelines 
Authorized users of any of the Library’s social media accounts, act as a 
spokesperson for the organization and must conduct themselves accordingly by 
following the Library’s Code of Conduct/Conflict of Interest policies. Each Library 
social media account should have a specific purpose and take advantage of any 
popular/relevant trends when possible. Any posting made on the organization’s 



 

EMPLOYMENT - SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY #E-2023-15                       Page 3 of 6 
 

social media accounts must be respectful and must serve or reflect the Library in 
one or more of the following ways: 
 

• Providing customers with relevant news and/or information about the 
Library; 

• Directing users to information that can be found on the Library’s website; 

• Responding to relevant, legitimate questions made by customers about 
programming and services; 

• Promoting Library events, programs, services, job postings and 
achievements; 

• Engaging and building relationships with patrons, stakeholders and others 
interested in learning more about the Library; 

• Promoting the rich culture and/or diversity of Innisfil and its residents; 

• The Library will endeavour when possible, to post or reshare community 
posts, permitted they meet our content guidelines, and the Library has 
availability in its content calendar. The Library retains the right to deny 
requests. 

 

3. Emergency Management 
During an emergency or extraordinary event, the Town of Innisfil’s Emergency 
Information Officer or their designated alternate will provide emergency 
information for the Library’s social media accounts. The Emergency Information 
Officer is responsible for making sure that critical emergency response details 
and/or information is posted in a timely manner. 

 
ADMINISTRATION 
Participating in social media carries a certain amount of risk. To manage risk 
effectively, all Library employees need to know, understand and put into practice 
the guidelines for acceptable use of social media. The following guidelines have 
been developed to help staff use social media appropriately and effectively in 
their work. 
 

4. Standards 
All content posted to corporate Library social media accounts must be accurate 
and reflect all applicable corporate policies already in place. Content is subject to 
the following: 
 

● Confidential or sensitive information acquired through work must not be 
posted; 

● Library employees should take care not to put themselves into a conflict of 
interest in online discussions of organizational issues – even if they are 
speaking from their personal perspective, people may assume they are 
speaking on behalf of the Innisfil Library and/or the Town of Innisfil; 

● The Library Board of Directors, CEO, managers, staff and suppliers, as 
well as Town of Innisfil elected officials, CAO, directors, managers, staff, 
suppliers, consultants and the like may not be quoted/cited without their 
approval; 



 

EMPLOYMENT - SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY #E-2023-15                       Page 4 of 6 
 

● Any error made on social media must be corrected transparently; 
erroneous comments cannot be deleted as this action risks misleading the 
public; 

● Content must be respectful and cannot promote statements that could be 
deemed politically sensitive, religious, copy written, or libelous; 

● Corporate platforms cannot be used for staff or Board commercial gain or 
to promote illegal activity. 

 

5. Monitoring Inappropriate Content 
The Library encourages focused, thoughtful comments and discussion which 
respond to a particular topic, new initiative or upcoming event. Comments that 
include one or more of the following may be removed or modified at any time, 
and users that ignore these comment guidelines may be banned or blocked. The 
Library reserves the right to delete, remove, or not accept, any content submitted 
that the Library believes, in its sole and unfettered discretion, is objectionable or 
that: 
 

● Is misleading, false, deceptive, or attempts to derail the conversation; 
● Is in violation of any provincial or federal law, rule, regulation or any third 

party right or promotes such illegal activity; 
● Is in contravention of any Library policies or guidelines; 
● Is harmful, racist, homophobic, discriminatory, malicious, aggressive, 

threatening, sexist, harassing, defamatory, vulgar, sexually explicit or 
otherwise objectionable; 

● Is unsolicited or unauthorized, such as unsolicited or unauthorized 
advertising or promotional material; 

● Is in breach of any confidence; 
● Includes personal data or information about others; 
● Impersonates any person or entity, or falsely states or otherwise 

misrepresents their affiliation with a person or organization; 
● may infringe another person's intellectual property rights, including 

copyright. 
 
In general, Library accounts should be frequently monitored during core business 
hours and during special events; however, it is understood and noted on the 
accounts that they will not be monitored at all times. 
 

6. Elections and Political Posting 
Library Social Media accounts are not to be used as a platform for political 
campaigning at any time. Communications Services monitors all corporate 
accounts to ensure they are not used for any political reasons. During a 
municipal, provincial or federal election, corporate accounts should not have any 
connection to a politician running for office. Library accounts already following or 
liking such politicians should stop following them for the duration of the political 
campaign.Library accounts should not share content from election candidates or 
endorse candidates. 
 



 

EMPLOYMENT - SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY #E-2023-15                       Page 5 of 6 
 

 

7. Privacy and Record Keeping 
Privacy, and human rights laws and policies apply to social media sites and 
accounts as they do to other forms of communication. The Library is subject to 
the Ontario Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 
(MFIPPA). As a result, any content posted on any Library Social Media account 
will be in accordance with the organization’s records management bylaws. A 
copy of any content that is removed because it does not meet the Library’s 
standards, including inappropriate content, must be saved in a digital and/or 
printed form by Communications Services. 
 

8. Personal Use of Social Media 
In addition to using social media for business purposes, Library employees in 
their private capacity as a citizen, may want to use social media to share 
information and communicate with friends, family and co-workers.  
 
When using social media for personal use and when identifiable as a Library 
employee, staff must be aware of their role in the organization and the potential 
impact of their communications on the brand, reputation and service values of 
the Library and act appropriately and with good judgement. 
 
In accordance with the Library’s policies and procedures, the Library may take 
appropriate action in response to prohibited behaviour, up to, and including, 
dismissal and/or legal action. 
 
Employees who identify themselves as Library staff or who are identified as  
Library staff in their personal social media use should consider the following: 
 

● Even if you do not explicitly identify yourself as an employee, others may 
identify you as an employee by your name, your place of work, a 
photograph, or by the content you post; 

● Do not place yourself in a conflict of interest, including revealing 
confidential or privileged corporate information, as described in the 
Library’s Code of Conduct/Conflict of Interest Policies; 

● Do not identify or comment about other employees or customers without 
their consent; 

● In their personal use, self-identified or identifiable Library employees must 
abide by the Respectful Workplace Policy and other applicable policies 
that govern employee behaviour; 

● Members of the Library Board must be respectful and considerate in their 
posts, even when using personal accounts. In consideration of the Code 
of Conduct, all members must follow the general conduct outlined within, 
including guidelines around confidential information, improper use of 
influence and conduct during an election campaign. 

 
 

 



 

EMPLOYMENT - SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY #E-2023-15                       Page 6 of 6 
 

Related Policies 

EMPLOYMENT - Respectful Workplace, Harassment & Violence Prevention 
Policy 
EMPLOYMENT – Staff Code of Conduct Policy 

EMPLOYMENT - Conflict of Interest Policy 
 
 
 
 
Approved by the Innisfil Public Library Board, June 19, 2023 
Motion Number:  2023.XX 
 
Supersedes Policy #2020-17, approved June 15, 2020, Motion #2020.50; and 
Policy #2016-03, approved January 18, 2018, Motion #2016.10 & Policy #2012-
03, approved April 23, 2012, Motion #2012.32;  & 
Policy #2009-01, approved on January 19, 2009, Motion #2009.06;  &  
Policy #2006-02, approved on January 16, 2006, Motion #2006.06;  & 
Policy #2001-03, approved on November 13, 1991, Motion #91.66.  
 
 
 



SUBJECT:     EMPLOYMENT – HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 

Policy No:  E-2023-16

Date:  June 19, 2023 

Review Date: June 2027 

Pages: 5 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the hours of work and overtime as 
applicable to Innisfil ideaLAB & Library Staff. 

POLICY 
Application 
This policy applies to all employees at all locations of the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library. 

Definitions 
Full-time employment means employees whose normal work period consists of seventy 
(70) hours in two weeks and not more than 1,820 hours annually.

Part-time employment means employees whose work period consists of less than 1,820 
hours annually. 

Permanent employees means full-time or part-time employees who have successfully 
completed the stipulated probationary period and whose contracts do not include a 
specific termination date. 

Contract employment means employment for a specific period of time and which is 
terminated upon completion of such time-period. Contract employment may consist of 
full-time or part-time hours, as designated by the contract. A contract may be extended 
contingent upon library needs, budget and satisfactory job performance.  

Relief employment means employees who are contracted to fill in gaps in the schedule 
on an ‘as required’ basis.   

8c.01.01



EMPLOYMENT – Hours of Work and Overtime Policy #E-2023-16      Page 2 of 5 
 

 
 

 
The Library’s work week shall be from Monday to Sunday and as such may include 
weekends, evenings and shift work. 
 
 
Guidelines 

1. HOURS OF WORK 
Hours of work, work schedules and days of work for all employees shall be 
determined based on the needs of the Employer and are subject to the provisions 
of the Employment Standards Act, 2000, as amended. The minimum shift for all 
employees shall be three (3) hours. 
 
The following paragraphs and sections are intended to define the hours of work 
and shall not be construed as a guarantee of hours of work per day or per week or 
of days of work per week. 

 

1.1 Permanent Full-Time Employees  
  The regular hours of work for permanent full-time library employees shall consist 

of seventy (70) hours in two weeks exclusive of meal periods, scheduled as 
required to ensure optimal library operations, and thus employees may be 
required to adjust their hours of work from time to time.  

 
1.2 Permanent Part-Time Employees 
The workweek and/or shift for part-time employees will consist of such hours and 
times as may be determined from time to time by the CEO and subject to the 
requirements of the applicable branch or service area. 

                                      
Contracted hours may be exceeded in certain circumstances and at the sole 
discretion of the CEO.  When library needs require that the employee’s average 
weekly allotment of hours be increased for a specific period of time, the employee 
will be notified in writing. 
 

 
2. UNEXPECTED CLOSURE 

When a decision to close a Branch or the entire library system during normally 
scheduled hours of work, is issued by the CEO or designate, Staff will be paid for 
the shift(s), which they were scheduled to complete.   
 

 During periods of extraordinary circumstances, such as a pandemic, significant  
 inclement weather, or other emergencies, the Library may request that  
 employees work remotely for a temporary period, if operationally feasible, based 
  upon the nature and scope of the positions. 
 

At the discretion of the CEO or designate, employees may be required to work 
their normal scheduled hours at another branch of the Library or location.  
 
 
 



EMPLOYMENT – Hours of Work and Overtime Policy #E-2023-16      Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 
 

3. REST PERIODS 
3.1 Paid Rest Periods 
If the employee is expected to remain in the workplace, then the rest period is paid 
(Employment Standards Act, 2000, as amended).   
 
Employees scheduled to work for a five (5) hour shift shall be provided with a fifteen 
(15) minute rest period, subject to the requirements of the service area. 
 
3.2 Unpaid Rest Periods 
All scheduled employees working more than five (5) hours in a day will be provided 
with one non-paid lunch/dinner break of minimum one-half hour during each shift 
worked.  

 
 

4. CHANGE IN WORK-DAY LOCATION 
In the event that an employee is required to work at more than one location within 
an assigned workday, the employee’s reasonable travel time from one location to 
the other, shall be considered work-time. 

 
 

5. OVERTIME 
a. Except in the case of an emergency, all overtime must be authorized in 

advance by the CEO or designate. The Employment Standards Act 2000, 
as amended, states that no one may work more than 8 hours per day or 48 
hours per work week unless they receive prior authorization from the CEO 
or designate. 

  
b. For Full-Time employees whose positions fall below Level 7 on the Job 

Classification Salary Grid, all authorized time worked beyond forty-eight 
(48) hours in a week shall be considered as overtime and shall be paid at 
the rate of time and one half for the hours worked. In lieu of being paid for 
overtime, upon employee request, some overtime earned may be banked 
as lieu time at the discretion of the CEO or designate, to an accumulated 
maximum of thirty-five (35) hours per calendar year.   
 
Banked lieu time (which is accumulated at the same rate as overtime – time 
and one-half) is to be taken within three (3) months of earning the banked 
time. Such lieu time shall be taken at a time mutually convenient to the 
employee and employer and is subject to the approval of the CEO or 
designate.  

 
Any accumulated and authorized time off in lieu of overtime earned by the 
employee but not taken as of December 31st of the calendar year in which 
it was earned, will be paid out to the employee by the Library at the overtime 
rate at which the overtime was originally earned.   



EMPLOYMENT – Hours of Work and Overtime Policy #E-2023-16      Page 4 of 5 
 

 
 
Where an employee is attending a conference or seminar paid for by the 
Library Board, overtime compensation shall not apply. 
 

c. Certain Officers / Staff not Eligible 
Employees whose positions fall into Level 7 and above of the Job 
Classification list will from time to time work beyond a regular work week 
based on the regular work week of their department, recognizing that they 
may be required by the Library, from time to time, to work more than the 
regular work week in any one week.  
 
Employees whose positions fall into Level 7 and above are ineligible for 
overtime. These employees will be entitled to up to five (5) days time off in 
lieu per year such time to be taken subject to the approval of their manager. 
This time must be taken in the current year or within the first three months 
of the following calendar year.  
 
Certain employees, who do not fall into Level 7 and above on the Job 
Classification Salary Grid, and who are required/expected to work outside 
of and above their regularly scheduled hours, may be considered eligible 
for this allocation of lieu time at the discretion of the CEO.   
 

d. Part-Time and Overtime 
For the purposes of Permanent Part-Time Employment, overtime shall be 
governed in accordance with the Employment Standards Act. 
 

e. Vacation/Statutory Holiday Pay  Not Calculated  
Employees receiving vacation/statutory holiday pay under the vacation 
provisions in the Vacation Policy are not entitled to add those hours or pay 
for the purposes of calculating overtime. 

 
 

6. MEAL ALLOWANCE 
An employee required to work more than four (4) hours of continuous overtime 
following any one shift shall be provided with a meal allowance as per the Library’s 
current EMPLOYMENT – Education, Training & Development (Including 
Reimbursement of Expenses) Policy. 

 

 

7. CALL-OUT GUARANTEE 
Employees who are called to work outside of their scheduled hours for emergency 
purposes shall be paid for a minimum of three (3) hours at time and one half. 

 
 

8. STAND-BY PAY 
Where an employee is requested by their supervisor to be on "stand-by", that 
employee shall be entitled to stand-by pay at the rate of $25.00 per day. 

 
  



EMPLOYMENT – Hours of Work and Overtime Policy #E-2023-16      Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 
Related Policies 
EMPLOYMENT - Flexible Work Arrangement Policy 
EMPLOYMENT – Inclement Weather Policy 
EMPLOYMENT - Paid Holidays Policy 
EMPLOYMENT- Vacation Policy 
 

Employment Standards Act, 2000, S.O. 2000, c. 41 

 
 
Approved by the Innisfil Public Library Board, June 19, 2023 
Motion Number:  2023.XX 
 
 
Supersedes Policy #E-2019-12, approved May 21, 2019, Motion # 2019.44; and Policy 
#E-2011-18, approved October 17, 2011, Motion #2011.62;  & 
Sections 12 and 13 of the Town’s Employee By-Law #038-06 appended to Policy 
Number 2006-20, approved June 12, 2006 & 
Policy Number 2002-30, approved September 12, 2005. 



SUBJECT:     EMPLOYMENT - WORKING ALONE POLICY 

Policy No:  E-2023-17

Date:  June 19, 2023 

Review Date: June 2027 

Pages: 2 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to protect the health and safety of and minimize the 
risk to Library Staff who work alone during their workday. 

POLICY 
General  
The Innisfil Public Library Board is committed to implementing and maintaining a 
system to support the safety and security of employees working alone. Working 
alone has the potential to threaten personal safety in situations where assistance 
is not readily available when needed. Innisfil ideaLAB & Library endeavours to 
ensure employees do not work alone wherever possible. 

Application 
All Staff of the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library. 

Definitions 

Hazard - A situation or condition that may be dangerous or harmful to employees’ 
health and safety. 

Working Alone - A Staff Member is considered to be ‘working alone’ when he/she 
is working without another Staff Member present in a Library Facility, when they 
cannot be seen or heard by another person, or when travelling alone on work 
related business. While it is not always hazardous to work alone, it can be when 
other circumstances are present. Whether a situation is high or low risk will 
depend on the location, type of work, interaction with the public, and/or the 
consequences of an emergency, accident, injury, etc. Each situation must be 
assessed individually for potential risks. 

8d.01.01



 

WORKING ALONE POLICY #E-2023-17                                        Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Working Alone Contact – The designated in-charge person assigned the duty of 
ensuring Staff working alone are in regular contact as per this policy.  
 
GUIDELINES: 
 
1. Responsibility 

Management will: 
● Conduct hazard assessments at each Library facility and work site to 

identify existing or potential working alone hazards; 
● Take measures to eliminate or control the hazards of working alone; 
● Identify previous incidents that have occurred related to working alone. 

Issues that emerge will be identified and potential solutions will be 
incorporated into the work alone procedure; 

● Provide measures for the discreet handling and storage of cash; 
● Ensure that affected employees are informed of the hazards and methods 

used to control and eliminate them; 
● Provide an effective system for communication between any workers who 

work alone and persons capable of assisting the worker; 
● Develop working alone procedures specific to each facility or work site; 
● Ensure incidents are reported, investigated and documented; 
● Ensure no student, volunteer or youth worker (under 18) shall be allowed to 

work alone. 
 

Employees will: 
● Report all work site incidents immediately to their Supervisor; 
● Participate in work site hazard assessment and the implementation of 

procedures to eliminate or control the hazards of working alone; 
● Participate in work alone training; 
● Comply with the site-specific working alone policy and procedures. 

 
 

 
RELATED DOCUMENTS 
Working Alone Procedure 
Respectful Workplace, Harassment & Violence Prevention 
Health & Safety 
 
 
 
Approved by the Innisfil Public Library Board, June 19, 2023,  
Motion Number:  2023.XX 
 
Supersedes Policy #E-2020-20, approved July 13, 2020, Motion #2020.59; and 
Policy #E-2014-05, approved February 18, 2014, Motion 2014.16 


	2a - 2023JUN19 -FINAL
	5a.01.02 2023MAY15-Board Minutes Draft
	5b.01.01 CBC Article - Book Challenges
	5b.02.01 CBC Article - Cheers as Brandon School Division rejec..
	5b.03.01 City support for libraries is overdue – The Uniter
	5b.04.01 Have You Been to the Library Lately_ _ The Walrus
	5b.05.01 Ottawa Public Library _plants a flag_ over intellectual rights _ Ottawa Citizen
	5b.06.01 Despite protesters, Drag Queen Storytim..
	5b.07.01 Illinois Bans Book Bans - I Love Libraries
	5c.01.01 CEO Report May 2023
	May 2023 CEO Report Title Page
	Draft May 2023 Board Report

	7a.01.01 Municipal Council Report May 2023
	7d.01.01 2023.05.18 JHSC Meeting Agenda Minutes Draft
	7e.01.01 LIB-06-2023 Library Trends Report
	8. Policy Change Summary
	8a.01.01 Accessibility - Integrated Accessibility Standards
	A-IntegratedAccessStandardsRegulationPolicy#A-2023-14 CLEAN
	App. 1 Request for IPL Doc in Alternate Format Form
	App. 2  Customer Feedback Form
	App. 3  Cust.Feedback-Access.forOntarians with Disabilities
	App. 4 Record of Customer Service Feedback
	App. 5 Notice of Service Disruption - Planned
	App. 6 Notice of Service Disrupton - Unexpected
	App. 7 AODA Training Record

	8b.01.01 E-Social Media Policy #E-2023-15 - CLEAN 
	8c.01.01 E-Hours of Work&Overtime Policy#E-2023-16 CLEAN
	8d.01.01 E-Working Alone Policy #E-2023-17 CLEAN



